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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STAT EMENTS

We may make forward-looking statements in filingghwthe Securities and Exchange Commission (theC'$Hncluding this Annual Report
on Form 10-K and the Exhibits hereto, filings inpmrated by reference, reports to our shareholdedspther communications that we make
in good faith pursuant to the safe harbor provisiohthe Private Securities Litigation Reform AEtl895. These forward-looking statements
represent our beliefs, plans, objectives, goalslaiines, expectations, anticipations, estimated,iatentions. Such statements are subject to
significant risks, uncertainties, and change basgedarious factors, many of which are beyond outred. The words “may,” “could,”
“should,” “would,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “estimte,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan,” and other similaxpressions are intended to identify
forward-looking statements. The following factaasjong others, could cause our financial performamciffer materially from that

expressed in such forward-looking statements:
» the strength of the U.S. economy in general andtilength of the local economies in which we condperations

» the effects of, and changes in, trade, monetaqyfianal policies and laws, including interest rptdicies of the Federal Reserve
System;

« inflation, interest rate, market and monetary fiations;

» our timely development of competitive new produantsl services and the acceptance of these procuttseavices by new and
existing customers

» the willingness of customers to substitute compes’ products and services for our products and senandsvice verse

» the impact of changes in financial services laws r@gulations, including laws concerning taxes kivam securities, and
insurance, and the impact of the D-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protectioh

» the impact of the U.S. Department of the Treasag/faderal banking regulatorsbntinued implementation of programs to adc
capital and liquidity in the banking system; furthfeiture and proposed rules, including those #natpart of the process outlinec
the International Basel Committee on Banking Suigerm’'s “Basel lll: A Global Regulatory Framewor&rfMore Resilient Banks
and Banking Systen” which are expected to require banking institutitmegcrease levels of capit:

» technological change

» the effect of acquisitions, including, without lit@iion, the failure to achieve the expected revagrowth and/or expense savings
from such acquisition

» the growth and profitability of our noninterest,fee, income being less than expec

e unanticipated regulatory or judicial proceedir

» changes in consumer spending and saving habits

* our success at managing the risks involved in ¢hegioing.
We caution that the foregoing list of importanttéas is not all-inclusive. If one or more of thetars affecting these forward-looking
statements proves incorrect, our actual result§opeance, or achievements could differ materifityn those expressed in, or implied by,
forward-looking statements contained in this AnrRaport on Form 10-K and other reports we filechvifite SEC. Therefore, we caution you
not to place undue reliance on our forward-lookiffgrmation and statements. We do not intend tcatgdny forward-looking statements,

whether written or oral, to reflect changes. Alvfiard-looking statements attributable to our Conypaire expressly qualified by these
cautionary statements. See Item 1A, “Risk FactansPart | of this report.
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PART |

Unless the context suggests otherwise, the ugeedetms “First Community,” “Company,” “we,” “ourdnd “us” in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K refer to First Community Bancshares, b its subsidiaries as a consolidated entity.

ltem 1. Business
Corporate Overview

First Community Bancshares, Inc. (the “Companyjnancial holding company, was founded in 1989 emudbrporated under the laws of
Nevada in 1997. The Company provides banking prisdared services through its wh-owned subsidiary First Community Bank (the
“Bank”), a Virginia-chartered banking institutiondnded in 1874. The Bank operates under the tragees First Community Bank in
Virginia, West Virginia, and North Carolina and pé&s Community Bank, a Division of First Commurignk, in Tennessee and South
Carolina.

The Company provides insurance services throughihitdly-owned, full-service insurance agency suiasidGreenpoint Insurance Group,
Inc. (“Greenpoint”), acquired in 2007. Greenpoipeaates under the Greenpoint name and under tihe niemes First Community Insurance
Services (“FCIS") and Carolina Insurers Associatedorth Carolina, Carr & Hyde Insurance and FGQi¥irginia, and FCIS in West
Virginia. During 2013 we purchased one insurana@nay. See Note 2, “Acquisitions and Divestiturég,the Consolidated Financial
Statements in Part I, Item 8 of this report.

In addition, the Bank offers wealth managementiamdstment advice through its wholly-owned subsigdiirst Community Wealth
Management and the Bank’s Trust Division. The Camypga the common stockholder of FCBI Capital Tritlse “Trust”), which was created
in October 2003 to issue trust preferred securitieaise capital for the Company.

Our focus is on organic growth that may be suppteetby strategic acquisitions.

The Company is a legal entity that is separatedistthct from its affiliates. As a financial holdjrcompany, the Company is required to ac
a source of financial strength for its subsidiaayk. The Company’principal source of revenue is derived from diwids paid from the Bar
which are subject to certain restrictions by retpriaagencies and determined in relation to eamiagset growth, and capital position. For
additional information see “Regulation and Supeéovisbelow.

Operations

We operate in one business segment, Community Bgnkihich consists of commercial and consumer lrakending activities, wealth
management, and insurance services. Our princiagiutive office is located at One Community Pld&legfield, Virginia. As of

December 31, 2013, our Community Banking operatimei®e conducted through 80 locations in 5 statégjiMa, West Virginia, North
Carolina, South Carolina, and Tennessee. We salliweese base of individuals and businesses tlcatde a variety of industries, such as
manufacturing, mining services, construction, tetaalthcare, military, and transportation. Wedao material concentrations of deposits or
loans from any single customer or industry. Sem e “Selected Financial Data,” in Part Il of tinkport for a summary of our financial
performance.

We offer a wide range of services and productsutocastomers that include:
« demand deposit accounts, savings and money margetiats, certificates of deposit, and individudireenent arrangement
e commercial, consumer, and real estate mortgage,|@en lines of credi
» various credit card, debit card, and automatedrtetlachine card service
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» corporate and personal trust servic
* investment management services;
» life, health, and property and casualty insurarrcelycts.

Employees

We had 729 full-time equivalent employees as ofdbduer 31, 2013. No employees are represented gcteé bargaining agreements, and
management considers employee relations to belentel

Competition

The financial services industry is highly compegstand there is substantial competition in attrecteposit and loan relationships in our
market areas. The ability of non-bank financiaiterg to provide services previously reserved fammercial banks has intensified
competition. We compete with other commercial baak financial service providers, including thrifavings and loan associations, credit
unions, consumer finance companies, commerciahfi@and leasing companies, securities firms, begjeefirms, and insurance companies.
Competition for deposits generally comes from ottemmercial banks, savings institutions, credibasj mutual funds, and other investment
alternatives. The primary factors that influence aility to attract and retain deposits includeeiest rates, personalized services, quality and
variety of financial offerings, convenience of offilocations, automated services, and office h@wmpetition for commercial and business
loans generally comes from other commercial bankscammercial finance and leasing companies winifepetition for mortgage loans
primarily comes from other commercial banks, sasiimgtitutions, mortgage banking firms, mortgageklers, and insurance companies. The
primary factors that influence our ability to ongie loans include interest rates, loan originafé@s, quality and variety of lending offerings,
and personalized services. Our competitors may fesager resources and higher lending limits thatvefor services to be offered that we
not provide. Competition could also intensify i tluture as a result of general and local econ@enditions, industry consolidation, bank
failures, technological developments, and bankagtatory reform. See “Competition” in the “ExeeatiOverview” section in Part Il, ltem 7
of this report.

Available Information

Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as aeub(ithe “Exchange Act”), we are required to fileaal, quarterly, and current reports;
proxy statements; and other information with theusiéies and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). Aogument we file with the SEC may
be read and copied at the SEC’s Public ReferencenRad 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 2054®ad® call the SEC at (800) SBG3(
for further information about the public referemoem. The SEC maintains a website at www.sec.gatdbntains reports, proxy and
information statements, and other information rdupay issuers that file electronically with the SEC.

Our website, www.fchinc.com, makes available, fseeharge, our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Qurteeports on Form 10-Q, Current
Reports on Form 8-K, and other information, inchgdany amendments thereto, as soon as reasonablycpble after we file such reports
with, or furnish them to, the SEC. Investors arecemaged to access these reports and other infiemetbout our business. Information
regarding our Board of Directors, executive offs;eand corporate governance policies and principlexluded on our website and includes
the Standards of Conduct governing the Companyétiirs, officers, and employees; the chartere®ftanding committees of the
Company'’s Board of Directors; and the Company'sdeisTrading and Disclosure Policy. Additional infmation found on our website is not
part of this report.

Regulation and Supervision

Banks and financial holding companies operatehighly regulated industry and are subject to exatidm, supervision, and comprehensive
regulation under applicable federal and state kawdsvarious regulatory agencies. Regulations aeaded primarily for the protection of
depositors, the Deposit Insurance Fund (“DIF”)
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of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDI&nd the banking system as a whole and are géyeiot for the protection of
stockholders or creditors. Banking agencies hawadenforcement powers over banks and financigimglcompanies to impose substantial
fines and penalties for violations of laws and tagans.

The following discussion summarizes certain lawks, and regulations that affect our Company. &tsesnmaries are not intended to be
complete and are qualified in their entirety byerehce to the applicable statute or regulationh&nge in laws, rules, and regulations may
have a material effect on our Company.

Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer ProtectiorciA

On July 21, 2010, sweeping financial regulatorpref legislation entitled the Dodd-Frank Wall StrRetform and Consumer Protection Act
(the “Dodd-Frank Act”) was signed into law. The @eHrank Act implements far-reaching changes adtesginancial regulatory landscape,
including the following provisions:

» Centralizes responsibility for consumer financiadtpction by creating a new agency, the Consummsrigial Protection Bureau (the
“CFPE"), responsible for implementing, examining and enfagaiompliance with federal consumer financial la

» Requires financial holding companies, such as tmg@any, to be well capitalized and well managedfakily 21, 2011. Bank holding
companies and banks must also be well capitalinddreell managed to engage in interstate bank aitiguis.

» Imposes comprehensive regulation of the over-theyar derivatives market, which would include certaovisions that would
effectively prohibit insured depository institut®from conducting certain derivatives businesseak@rinstitutions themselve

» Implements corporate governance revisions, inclydixecutive compensation and proxy access by sblders.
* Makes permanent the $250 thousand limit for fedéeglosit insuranct

» Repeals the federal prohibitions on the paymeinitefest on demand deposits, thereby permittin@siéqry institutions to pay interest
on business transaction and other accol

 Amends the Electronic Fund Transfer Act to, amotingithings, give the Board of Governors of thedtallReserve System (the
“Federal Reserve”) the authority to establish rutggarding interchange fees charged for electrdelt transactions by payment card
issuers having assets over $10 billion and enfaraesw statutory requirement that such fees b@nadde and proportional to the act
cost of a transaction to the issL

» Increases the authority of the Federal Reserveammme bank holding companies, such as the Compantlytheir non-bank
subsidiaries

Another section of the Dodd-Frank Act, the Mortg&gform and Anti-Predatory Lending Act (the “MorggaReform Act”), contains new
underwriting and servicing standards for the mag&gmdustry, as well as restrictions on compensdtio mortgage originators. In addition,
the Mortgage Reform Act grants broad discretiomagulatory authority to the CFPB to prohibit or ddion terms, acts, or practices relating
to residential mortgage loans that the CFPB firmssave, unfair, deceptive, or predatory, as wetbatake other actions that the CFPB finds
are necessary or proper to ensure that resporaiblelable mortgage credit remains available toscomers. The Dodd-Frank Act also
contains laws affecting the securitization of magegs, and other assets, with requirements foreigktion by securitizers and requirements
for regulating credit rating agencies. Many aspettsie DoddFrank Act continue to be subject to rulemaking asititake effect over sever
years, making it difficult to anticipate the ovéf@ancial impact on our Company, our customerghe general financial industry. Provisic

in the legislation that affect deposit insurancgeasments, payment of interest on demand depasisnterchange fees could increase costs
associated with deposits, as well as place linoitation certain revenues those deposits may generate
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First Community Bancshares, Inc.

The Company is a financial holding company orgashizersuant to the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1998(tGLB Act”) and a bank holdin
company registered under the Bank Holding CompaectyoA1956, as amended (the “BHC Act”). Accordinglye Company is subject to
supervision, regulation, and examination by theefFaldReserve. The GLB Act, BHC Act, and other fatllaws subject financial and bank
holding companies to particular restrictions onttpes of activities they may engage in and tongeaof supervisory requirements and
activities, including regulatory enforcement actidar violations of laws and regulations. The BHEt generally provides for umbrella
regulation of financial holding companies, suclitesCompany, by the Federal Reserve, as well adifunal regulation of banking activities
by bank regulators, securities activities by sam@giregulators, and insurance activities by inscearegulators.

The Company is also under the jurisdiction of tBCSnd is subject to the disclosure and regulatguirements of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and the Exchange Act as adméudtg the SEC. The Company’s common stock isdistethe NASDAQ Global Select
Market (“NASDAQ”) under the trading symbol “FCBCaind is subject to the rules of NASDAQ for listeangmanies.

Regulatory Restrictions on Dividends; Source oéi&jth

The Federal Reserve’s policy has historically regpibank holding companies to act as a sourcenahiial and managerial strength to their
subsidiary banks. The Dodd-Frank Act codified fhadicy as a statutory requirement. Under this rezqaent, the Company is expected to
commit resources to support the Bank, even wherait not be in a financial position to provide suebources. According to Federal Reserve
policy, bank holding companies may pay cash diwiidesn common stock only from income available dlerpast year and only if
prospective earnings retention is consistent viighdrganization’s expected future needs and fiédueoindition. In addition, bank holding
companies should not maintain dividend levels timatermine their ability to be a source of strertgttheir banking subsidiaries. A bank
holding company may be required to guarantee thigataestoration plan of an undercapitalized baglgubsidiary in certain situations.

In addition, the Company and the Bank are subgeottier regulatory policies and requirements ne¢ato the payment of dividends, includ
requirements to maintain adequate capital abovaaggy minimums. The appropriate federal regubatmrthority is authorized to determine
that the payment of dividends would be an unsafneound practice, under certain circumstancegdegpathe financial condition of a bank
holding company or a bank, and to prohibit payntketeof. The appropriate federal regulatory autlearhave stated that paying dividends
that deplete a bank’s capital base to an inadedenagewould be an unsafe and unsound banking ipeaand that banking organizations
should generally pay dividends only out of currepérating earnings. In the current financial anghemic environment, the Federal Reserve
has discouraged payment ratios that are at maxiallawable levels, unless both asset quality andt&@agre very strong, and has noted that
bank holding companies should carefully reviewrtlgridend policy.

Scope of Permissible Activities

Under the BHC Act, bank holding companies are Buahito banking, managing or controlling banks, fsiitig services to or performing
services for their subsidiaries, or other actigitileat the Federal Reserve has determined to belglcelated to banking or managing and
controlling banks as to be a proper incident tlier€he BHC Act requires every bank holding comptmgbtain the prior approval of the
Federal Reserve before it may acquire all, or suthstlly all, of the assets of any bank or owngrgiticontrol of any voting shares of any
bank, if after such acquisition it would own or trmh, directly or indirectly, more than 5% of theting shares of such bank. When approving
bank acquisitions by bank holding companies, trieFa Reserve is required to consider the finaranal managerial resources and future
prospects of the bank holding company and the td@ek, the convenience and needs of the commaniibe served, and various
competitive factors. The BHC Act also prohibitsamk holding company from acquiring direct or indireontrol of more than 5% of the
outstanding voting stock of any company engagexdrion-banking business unless such business isrieésl by the Federal Reserve to be
so closely related to banking as to be a propedémt thereto.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the GLB Act elimiadithe barriers to affiliations among banks, séiesrfirms, insurance companies, ¢
other financial service providers and permits baokling companies to become financial holding conig@and thereby affiliate with
securities firms and insurance companies and ernigagtder activities that are financial in natufée GLB Act defines “financial in nature”
to include securities underwriting, dealing, andkeamaking; sponsoring mutual funds and investngentpanies; insurance underwriting
and agency; merchant banking activities; and d@i/that the Federal Reserve has determined ¢tobely related to banking. Regulatory
approval is not generally required for a finantialding company to acquire a company, other thhark or savings association, engaged in
activities that are financial in nature, or incitldrto activities that are financial in nature desermined by the Federal Reserve.

Under the GLB Act, a bank holding company may beeeniinancial holding company by filing a declapativith the Federal Reserve if ei
of its subsidiary banks is well capitalized under EDIC Improvement Act prompt corrective actionypsions, is well managed, and has at
least a satisfactory rating under the CommunitynRestment Act. The Company elected financial hgdiompany status in December 2006.
Since July 2011, the Company’s status is deperatentaintaining a well capitalized and well-managedus under applicable Federal
Reserve regulations. If a financial holding compaagses to meet these requirements, the Federm@enay impose corrective capital
and/or managerial requirements on the financialihglcompany and place limitations on its abilitycbnduct the broader financial activities
permissible for financial holding companies. In iidd, the Federal Reserve may require divestitiréne holding company’s depository
institutions if the deficiencies persist.

The Dodd-Frank Act amended the BHC Act to requadefal financial regulatory agencies to adopt rtiies prohibit banks and their
affiliates from engaging in proprietary trading @ndesting in and sponsoring certain unregistenegstment companies (defined as hedge
funds and private equity funds). The statutory giow is commonly called the “Volcker Rule.” Thedesal Reserve adopted final rules
implementing the Volcker Rule on December 10, 201 Volcker Rule became effective on July 21, 284@ the final rules are effective
April 1, 2014, but the Federal Reserve issued derogxtending the period during which institutitras’e to conform their activities and
investments to the requirements of the Volcker Ralguly 21, 2015. On January 14, 2014, the bankgencies approved an interim rule to
permit banking entities to retain interests in @@rcollateralized debt obligations backed prinyaoy trust preferred securities from the
prohibitions under the Volcker Rule. Although wentinue to evaluate the impact of the Volcker Ruld the final rules adopted, we do not
currently anticipate that the Volcker Rule will leaa material effect on the operations of the Com@and subsidiaries, as the Company does
not engage in the businesses prohibited by thekéolRule. The Company may incur costs to adopttindil policies and systems to ensure
compliance with the Volcker Rule, but any such s@st not expected to be material.

Anti-Tying Restrictions

Bank holding companies and their affiliates arehgsibed from tying the provision of certain seng¢such as extensions of credit, to other
services offered by a holding company or its affés.

Stock Repurchases

A bank holding company is required to give the FabbReserve prior notice of any redemption or repase of its own equity securities,
subject to certain exemptions, if the consideratibhe paid, together with the consideration paidahy repurchases or redemptions in the
preceding year, is equal to 10% or more of the @mjs consolidated net worth. The Federal Reseraxe oppose the transaction if it
believes that the transaction would constitute r@sate or unsound practice or would violate any déawegulation.

Capital Adequacy Requirements

The Federal Reserve currently uses two types afatagsequacy guidelines for holding companiesyatiered risk-based capital guideline
and a leverage capital ratio guideline. The tweetlerisk-based capital guideline assigns risk wiingis to all assets and certain off-balance
sheet items of the holding company’s operations and
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then establishes a minimum ratio of the holding pany’s Tier 1 capital to the aggregate dollar ana@fimisk-weighted assets (which amo!

is usually less than the aggregate dollar amousticifi assets without risk weighting) and a mininratio of the holding company’s total
capital (Tier 1 capital plus Tier 2 capital, asustigd) to the aggregate dollar amount of suchwisighted assets. The leverage ratio guideline
establishes a minimum ratio of the holding compariyéer 1 capital to its total tangible assets (tatsets less goodwill and certain identifii
intangibles) without risk-weighting. As discussezldw, the Bank is subject to similar capital requients.

Under both guidelines, Tier 1 capital is definednidude common shareholdeexjuity, including retained earnings; qualifying namulative
perpetual preferred stock and related surplus;ifyiraj cumulative perpetual preferred stock andted surplus; minority interests in the
equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries, whighlimited to a maximum of 25% of Tier 1 capitahd certain trust preferred securities.
The Dodd-Frank Act excludes trust preferred seiesrissued after May 19, 2010, from being incluthedier 1 capital, unless the issuing
company is a bank holding company with less tha03$8illion in total assets. Trust preferred sedesiissued before that date continue to
count as Tier 1 capital for bank holding compamiéh less than $15 billion in total assets, sucthe@sCompany. Goodwill and most
intangible assets are deducted from Tier 1 capital purposes of the total ridlased capital guidelines Tier 2 capital, sometireésrred to a
supplementary capital, is defined to include, scitije limitations: perpetual preferred stock natlided in Tier 1 capital, intermediate-term
preferred stock and any related surplus, certalmitiycapital instruments, perpetual debt and mamgatonvertible debt securities, allowan
for loan and lease losses, and intermediate-tebordinated debt instruments. The maximum amounuefifying Tier 2 capital is 100% of
qualifying Tier 1 capital. For purposes of the ta@pital guideline, total capital equals Tier pital, plus qualifying Tier 2 capital, minus
investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries, recgdrboldings of bank holding company capital se¢@sj and deferred tax assets and other
deductions. The Federal Reserve’s current capid@acy guidelines require that a bank holding @pnaintain a Tier 1 riskased capiti
ratio of at least 4.0% and a total risk-based ehpdtio of at least 8.0%. As of December 31, 2Q48,Company’s ratio of Tier 1 capital to
total risk-weighted assets was 15.19% and ratiotaf capital to risk-weighted assets was 16.44%.

In addition, the Federal Reserve uses a leverageaman added tool to evaluate the capital adggofbank holding companies. The
leverage ratio is a company’s Tier 1 capital dididy its average total consolidated assets. Cehnighily rated bank holding companies may
maintain a minimum leverage ratio of 3.0%, but othenk holding companies are required to maintd@varage ratio of 4.0% or more,
depending on their overall condition. As of Decembg, 2013, the Company’s leverage ratio was 9.95%.

The federal banking agencies’ ribksed and leverage ratios are minimum supervistigsrgenerally applicable to banking organizatitbrad
meet certain specified criteria, assuming that theaye the highest regulatory rating. Banking orgaiidns not meeting these criteria are
expected to operate with capital positions welhabiihe minimum ratios. Federal Reserve guidelimesige that regulatory agencies may set
capital requirements for a particular banking oigation that are higher than the minimum when citstances warrant. These guidelines
provide that banking organizations experiencingrimal growth or making acquisitions will be expelcte maintain strong capital positions
substantially above the minimum supervisory levatiout significant reliance on intangible assets.

The current risk-based capital guidelines thatywappthe Company and the Bank are based on the d&d@8&l accord of the International
Basel Committee on Banking Supervision, a commifegentral banks and bank supervisors, implemelyettie Federal Reserve. In July
2013, the Federal Reserve published the Basekhlpit&@l Rules establishing a new comprehensive @idipitmework for U.S. banking
organizations. The rules implement the Basel Coterit December 2010 framework known as “Baselftt’strengthening international
capital standards as well as certain provisiorth®Dodd-Frank Act. The Basel Il Capital Rules stabtially revise the risk-based capital
requirements applicable to bank holding companiesdepository institutions, including the Company éhe Bank, compared to the current
U.S. risk-based capital rules. The Basel 11l Cdptales define the components of capital and addoéser issues affecting the numerator in
banking institutions’ regulatory capital ratios.eTBasel Il Capital Rules also address risk weigimis other
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issues affecting the denominator in banking ingtihs’ regulatory capital ratios and replace thistig risk-weighting approach, which was
derived from the Basel | capital accords of thedB&ommittee, with a more risk-sensitive approaabdal, in part, on the standardized
approach in the Basel Committee’s 2004 “Basel dipital accords. The Basel Il Capital Rules alsplament the requirements of

Section 939A of the Dodd-Frank Act to remove refiess to credit ratings from the federal bankingnages’ rules. The Basel Il Capital
Rules are effective for the Company and the Banlijext to a phase-in period, on January 1, 2015.

The Basel Il Capital Rules, among other thingsinfroduce a new capital measure called “Commouityier 1" (“CET1"), (ii) specify

that Tier 1 capital consists of CET1 and “Additibfar 1 capital” instruments meeting specifieduggments, (iii) define CET1 narrowly by
requiring that most deductions/adjustments to re#guy capital measures be made to CET1 and nbetother components of capital and
(iv) expand the scope of the deductions/adjustmentsompared to existing regulations.

When fully phased in on January 1, 2019, the Biis€lapital Rules will require the Company and &&nk to maintain (i) a minimum ratio
CET1 to risk-weighted assets of at least 4.5%, plAH% “capital conservation buffer” (which is addo the 4.5% CET1 ratio as that buffer
is phased in, effectively resulting in a minimuntiogaf CET1 to risk-weighted assets of at leastuj#én full implementation), (ii) a minimum
ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets@bfeast 6.0%, plus the capital conservation buffdrich is added to the 6.0% Tier 1 capital
ratio as that buffer is phased in, effectively Hsg in a minimum Tier 1 capital ratio of 8.5% upull implementation), (iii) a minimum rat
of Total capital (that is, Tier 1 plus Tier 2) isk-weighted assets of at least 8.0%, plus thet@lagpnservation buffer (which is added to the
8.0% total capital ratio as that buffer is phasecdffectively resulting in a minimum total capitatio of 10.5% upon full implementation),
and (iv) a minimum leverage ratio of 4%, calculatsdhe ratio of Tier 1 capital to average assst€¢mpared to a current minimum lever
ratio of 3% for banking organizations that eithavé the highest supervisory rating or have implaswthe appropriate federal regulatory
authority’s risk-adjusted measure for market risk).

The Basel Il Capital Rules also provides for auntercyclical capital buffer” that is applicabledoly certain covered institutions and is not
expected to have any current applicability to tleenPpany or the Bank. The capital conservation buffelesigned to absorb losses during
periods of economic stress. Banking institutionthwai ratio of CET1 to risk-weighted assets aboeentinimum but below the conservation
buffer (or below the combined capital conservatiaffer and countercyclical capital buffer, when thiger is applied) will face constraints on
dividends, equity repurchases and compensatiordlmaséhe amount of the shortfall.

Under the Basel Il Capital Rules, the initial rmmim capital ratios as of January 1, 2015, will béctiows:
* 4.5% CETL1 to ris-weighted asset
* 6.0% Tier 1 capital to risweighted asset:
» 8.0% Total capital to ri-weighted asset

The Basel Il Capital Rules provide for a numbedetiuctions from and adjustments to CET1. Thedadeg for example, the requirement
that mortgage servicing rights, deferred tax asmesing from temporary differences that could lbetrealized through net operating loss
carrybacks and significant investments in non-cbdated financial entities be deducted from CET th® extent that any one such category
exceeds 10% of CET1 or all such categories in tfogemate exceed 15% of CET1. Under current cagtidaldards, the effects of accumulated
other comprehensive income items included in chai@excluded for the purposes of determining llegguy capital ratios. Under the Basel
[l Capital Rules, the effects of certain accumethbther comprehensive items are not excluded; Wnvaon-advanced approaches banking
organizations, including the Company and the Bamky make a one-time permanent election to contio@xclude these items. The
Company and the Bank expect to make this electiarder to avoid significant variations in the IegEcapital depending upon the impact of
interest rate fluctuations on the fair value of @@mpany’s available-for-sale securities portfolibe Basel 11l Capital Rules also preclude
certain hybrid securities, such as trust prefesexlrities, as Tier 1 capital of bank holding conigs, subject to phase-out. The rules do not
require a phase-out of trust preferred securiissad prior to May 19, 2010, for holding compamiedepository institutions with
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less than $15 billion in consolidated total asse$spf December 1, 2009, which includes the Compahgrefore, the Company’s trust
preferred securities that were issued prior to M@y2010, are permanently grandfathered in asITarTier 2 capital instruments,

Implementation of the deductions and other adjustsn® CET1 will begin on January 1, 2015 and bélphased in over a four-year period
(beginning at 40% on January 1, 2015 and an addit®0% per year thereafter). The implementatiotihefcapital conservation buffer will
begin on January 1, 2016 at the 0.625% level arghbsed in over a foyrear period (increasing by that amount on eachesptent January
st, until it reaches 2.5% on January 1, 2019).

With respect to the Bank, the Basel Il Capital @udlso revise the “prompt corrective action” ragjohs pursuant to Section 38 of the
Federal Deposit Insurance Act, as discussed betmenPrompt Corrective Action.”

The Basel 1l Capital Rules prescribe a standaagproach for risk weightings that expand the-viglghting categories from the current
four Basel I-derived categories (0%, 20%, 50% aB@P4) to a much larger and more risk-sensitive nurbeategories, depending on the
nature of the assets, generally ranging from 0%Jt&. government and agency securities, to 600%eddrin equity exposures, and resulting
in higher risk weights for a variety of asset catégs. Specifics changes to current rules impadtiegCompany’s determination of risk-
weighted assets include, among other things:

* Applying a 150% risk weight instead of a 100% nigkight for certain high volatility commercial readtate acquisition, development
and construction loan

* Assigning a 150% risk weight to exposures (othantresidential mortgage exposures) that are 90 plstsdue

» Providing for a 20% credit conversion factor foe timused portion of a commitment with an originakumity of one year or less that is
not unconditionally cancellable (currently set )0

» Providing for a risk weight, generally not lessrt20% with certain exceptions, for securities legdiransactions based on the risk
weight category of the underlying collateral seegrihe transactiot

» Providing for a 100% risk weight for claims on seties firms. Eliminating the current 50% cap oe tiisk weight for OTC derivative

In addition, the Basel Il Capital Rules provide mm@advantageous risk weights for derivatives apdneghase-style transactions cleared
through a qualifying central counterparty and iasethe scope of eligible guarantors and eligibleteral for purposes of credit risk
mitigation. Management believes that, as of DecerBlhe2013, the Company and the Bank would meaagiital adequacy requirements
under the Basel Ill Capital Rules on a fully phagedasis as if such requirements were currentlfiact.

Liquidity Requirement

Historically, the regulation and monitoring of baakd bank holding company liquidity has been ad@r@ss a supervisory matter, without
required formulaic measures. The Basel Il liqyidiamework requires banks and bank holding comgsati measure their liquidity against
specific liquidity tests that, although similarsome respects to liquidity measures historicallylied by banks and regulators for manager
and supervisory purposes, going forward would logired by regulation. One test, referred to adithadity coverage ratio (“LCR"), is
designed to ensure that the banking entity maiatamadequate level of unencumbered high-quatjtidiassets equal to the entity¥xpecte
net cash outflow for a 30-day time horizon (ogriéater, 25% of its expected total cash outflongarran acute liquidity stress scenario. The
other test, referred to as the net stable funditig (“NSFR"), is designed to promote more mediame long-term funding of the assets and
activities of banking entities over a one-year tinogizon. These requirements will incent bankinttiess to increase their holdings of U.S.
Treasury securities and other sovereign debt asngpanent of assets and increase the use of
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long-term debt as a funding source. In October 2@48federal banking agencies proposed rules imgi¢ing the LCR for advanced
approaches banking organizations and a modifiesiaseof the LCR for bank holding companies witheast $50 billion in total consolidated
assets that are not advanced approaches bankiagizations, neither of which would apply to the Qamy or the Bank. The federal banking
agencies have not yet proposed rules to implerhenNSFR.

Incentive Compensatic

In June 2010, the Federal Reserve, the Officemfbmptroller of the Currency (“OCC’and the FDIC issued their final guidance on po$
intended to ensure that the incentive compensatidinies of banking organizations do not undernthmesafety and soundness of such
organizations by encouraging excessive risk takiing final guidance, which covers all employees Wwhwee the ability to materially affect
the risk profile of an organization, is based ugmnkey principles that a banking organizationteimtive compensation arrangements should
(i) provide incentives that do not encourage régkrig beyond the organization’s ability to effeelividentify and manage risks, (ii) be
compatible with effective internal controls andkrimanagement, and (iii) be supported by strongamaite governance, including active and
effective oversight by the organization’s boardlwéctors. The Federal Reserve indicated thataalking organizations are to evaluate their
incentive compensation arrangements and relatka@magement, controls, and corporate governammegses and immediately address
deficiencies in these arrangements or processearinconsistent with safety and soundness.

The Federal Reserve reviews, as part of their eggtisk-focused examination process, the incerorapensation arrangements of banking
organizations, such as ours, that are not largaptax banking organizations. These reviews wiltdilred to each organization based on the
scope and complexity of the organization’s aceatand the prevalence of incentive compensati@mgements. The findings of the
supervisory initiatives will be included in repodsexamination. Deficiencies will be incorporaietb the organization’s supervisory ratings,
which can affect the organization’s ability to malaguisitions and take other actions. Enforcemetib@s may be taken against a banking
organization if its incentive compensation arrangets, or related risk management control or govera@rocesses, pose a risk to the
organization’s safety and soundness and the orgtimizis not taking prompt and effective measuoesorrect the deficiencies.

In February 2011, the Federal Reserve, the OCCthenBDIC approved a joint proposed rulemakingrplement Section 956 of the Dodd-
Frank Act, which prohibits incentive-based compdinsaarrangements that encourage inappropriatetalgkg by covered financial
institutions and are deemed to be excessive, bnihy lead to material losses.

The scope and content of the U.S. banking regdapmiicies on executive compensation are contigiindevelop and are likely to continue
evolving in the near future. It cannot be determdiagthis time whether compliance with such poticiéll adversely affect our ability to
attract, hire, retain, and motivate key employees.

First Community Bank

The Bank is a Virginia state-chartered bank sugen/and regulated by the Virginia Bureau of Finalncistitutions (“Virginia Bureau”)As a
member of the Federal Reserve, the Bank’s primedgral regulator is the Federal Reserve Bank (“BRBRichmond. The Virginia Bureau
and FRB of Richmond are based in the Company’s heiate of Virginia. The regulations of these agesgjovern most aspects of the Bank’
business, including required reserves against dsptmans, investments, mergers and acquisitioogpwing, dividends, and location and
number of branch offices.

Restrictions on Transactions with Affiliates anditlers

Transactions between the Bank and its non-bankibgidiaries or affiliates, including the Companie aubject to Section 23A of the Federal
Reserve Act the (“FRA"). In general, Section 23Apimses limits on the amount of
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such transactions, and also requires certain l@fedsllateral for loans to affiliated partiesalso limits the amount of advances to third
parties that are collateralized by the securitreshdigations of the Company.

Affiliate transactions are also subject to Sec@i8B of the FRA which generally requires that certaansactions between the Bank and its
affiliates be on terms substantially the samet teast as favorable to the Bank, as those preggdt the time for comparable transactions
with or involving other non-affiliated persons. TRederal Reserve has issued Regulation W whicHiesdirior regulations under Sections
23A and 23B of the FRA and interpretive guidancthwéspect to affiliate transactions.

The Dodd-Frank Act generally enhances the regtriston transactions with affiliates under Sect@®& and 23B of the FRA, including an
expanded definition of covered transactions anteamed amount of time for which collateral requieats regarding covered credit
transactions must be satisfied. Insider transadioitations are expanded through the strengthenfrigan restrictions to insiders and the
expansion of the types of transactions subjedtd¢ovarious limits, including derivatives transaniprepurchase agreements, reverse
repurchase agreements, and securities lendingrmiiag transactions. Restrictions are also plamredertain asset sales to and from an
insider to an institution, including that such sab& on market terms and, in certain circumstaraggsoved by the institution’s board of
directors.

The restrictions on loans to directors, execultiffie@rs, principal shareholders, and their reldtedrests contained in the FRA and Regula
O apply to all insured institutions, their subsitia, and holding companies. These restrictionsideclimits on loans to one borrower and

conditions that must be met before such a loarbeamade. There is also an aggregate limitatiorlldaaas to such persons. These loans

cannot exceed the institution’s total unimpaireplitzd and surplus, and the FDIC may determine éHasser amount is appropriate.

Restrictions on Distribution of Subsidiary Bank idends and Asse

Dividends paid by the Bank to the Company provide are anticipated to remain the primary sourdgh®fCompany’s operating funds.
Capital adequacy requirements applicable to insdegubsitory institutions serve to limit the amoohtividends that may be paid by the
Bank. Under federal law, the Bank cannot pay adéind if, after paying the dividend, it will be ctified as undercapitalized. Further, prior
approval of the FRB is required if cash dividendsldred in any given year exceed the total of thek3 net profits for such year, plus its
retained profits for the preceding two years. \fitgilaw also imposes restrictions on the abilityohinia-chartered banks to pay dividend
such dividends would impair a bank’s paid-in cdpithe payment of dividends by the Bank may alsdirbged by other factors, such as
requirements to maintain capital above regulataigejines. The Virginia Bureau and the FRB of Ricimal have the general authority to
limit dividends paid by the Bank if such payments deemed to constitute an unsafe and unsoundgaact

Because the Company is a legal entity separateliatidct from its subsidiaries, its right to paipiate in the distribution of assets of any
subsidiary upon the subsidiary’s liquidation orrgamization will be subject to the prior claimstioé subsidiary’s creditors. In the event of
liquidation or other resolution of an insured defmoy institution, such as the Bank, the claimslepositors and other general or subordinated
creditors are entitled to a priority of payment othe claims of holders of any obligation of thetitution to its shareholders, including any
depository institution holding company or any shatder or creditor thereof.

Examinations

Under the FDIC Improvement Act, all insured ingiiitns must undergo regular on-site examinationhigjrtappropriate banking agency and
such agency may assess the institution for itsaafstonducting the examination. As a state-chadt€ederal Reserve member bank, the
Bank is subject to examination by the Virginia Baweand FRB of Richmond. These examinations revieasasuch as capital adequacy,
reserves, loan portfolio quality, investments, infation systems, disaster recovery, contingencyrfey, management practices, and other
compliance issues.
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Capital Adequacy Requirements

The various federal bank regulatory agencies hdweptad risk-based capital requirements for assgskecapital adequacy of banks and
bank holding companies. The federal capital stadsldefine capital and establish minimum capitaliregments in relation to assets and off-
balance sheet exposure, as adjusted for creditTrisk risk-based capital standards currently inctfére designed to make regulatory capital
requirements more sensitive to differences in pigkile among bank holding companies and bankactmunt for off-balance sheet exposure
and to minimize disincentives for holding liquidsats. Assets and off-balance sheet items are asstgrbroad risk categories, each with
appropriate risk weights. The resulting capitalostepresent capital as a percentage of totalwiskghted assets and off-balance sheet items.

Pursuant to the Federal Reserve’s tisised capital requirements, state member bankeguéeed to meet a minimum ratio of Tier 1 capite
total risk-weighted assets of 4.0% and a ratiomtdltcapital to total risk-weighted assets of 8.0%e capital categories for the Bank are the
same as those for the Company. In addition toittkebased capital requirements, the Federal Reservadugded regulations that supplem
the risk-based guidelines to include a minimum fage ratio of Tier 1 capital to quarterly averagseds of 3.0%. The Federal Reserve has
emphasized that the foregoing standards are sgpeywninimums and that a banking organization beéllpermitted to maintain such
minimum levels of capital only if it receives thighest rating under the regulatory rating systechthie banking organization is not
experiencing or anticipating significant growth! Ather banking organizations are required to nzéin& leverage ratio of at least 4.0% to
5.0% of Tier 1 capital. See “Capital Adequacy Regmients” in the “First Community Bancshares, Irsettion above.

Corrective Measures for Capital Deficiencies

The federal banking regulators are required to pakenpt corrective action with respect to capiteficlent institutions. Agency regulations
define, for each capital category, the levels attinstitutions are well capitalized, adequatapitalized, undercapitalized, significantly
undercapitalized, and critically undercapitalizAdvell capitalized institution has a total risk-kedscapital ratio of 10.0% or higher, a Tier 1
risk-based capital ratio of 6.0% or higher, a lagerratio of 5.0% or higher, and is not subjecrtp written agreement, order, or directive
requiring it to maintain a specific capital level fany capital measure. An adequately capitalimstitution has a total risk-based capital ratio
of 8.0% or higher, a Tier 1 risk-based capitalaati 4.0% or higher, a leverage ratio of 4.0% ghleir (3.0% or higher if the bank was rated a
composite 1 in its most recent examination repodtia not experiencing significant growth), and sloet meet the criteria for a well
capitalized bank. An undercapitalized institutiasfa total risk-based capital ratio that is leas 8.0%, a Tier 1 riskased capital ratio of le
than 4.0%, or a leverage ratio of less than 4.0%igAificantly undercapitalized institution hasotal risk-based capital ratio of less than
6.0%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of less1tBd%, or a leverage ratio of less than 3.0%.i#caily undercapitalized institutios’tangible
equity is equal to or less than 2.0% of averagetgup tangible assets. An institution may be dovenigd to, or deemed to be in, a capital
category that is lower than indicated by its cdp#éos if it is determined to be in an unsafaunsound condition or if it receives an
unsatisfactory examination rating with respectdadan matters. A bank’s capital category is deteeth solely for the purpose of applying
prompt corrective action regulations, and the edjgiitegory may not constitute an accurate reptasen of the bank’s overall financial
condition or prospects for other purposes. The Baa classified as well capitalized for purposethefFDIC’s prompt corrective action
regulation as of December 31, 2013.

The Basel Il Capital Rules revise the current ppboorrective action requirements effective Jandarg015 by (i) introducing a CET1 ratio
requirement at each level (other than criticallgentapitalized), with the required CET1 ratio betn§% for well-capitalized status;

(i) increasing the minimum Tier 1 capital rati@uérement for each category (other than criticaltglercapitalized), with the minimum Tier 1
capital ratio for welleapitalized status being 8% (as compared to theeu6%); and (i) eliminating the current prowsithat provides that
bank with a composite supervisory rating of 1 mayeha 3% leverage ratio and still be adequatelitalied. The Basel Il Capital Rules do
not change the total risk-based capital requirerf@rany prompt corrective action category.
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In addition to requiring undercapitalized instituts to submit a capital restoration plan, agengylegions contain broad restrictions on
certain activities of undercapitalized institutipimcluding asset growth, acquisitions, branchldishment, and expansion into new lines of
business. With certain exceptions, an insured degsnstitution is prohibited from making capitdistributions, including dividends, and is
prohibited from paying management fees to conteospns if the institution would be undercapitalizéer any such distribution or payment.

As an institution’s capital decreases, the fedeglilators’ enforcement powers become more seResgnificantly undercapitalized
institution is subject to mandated capital raisiegvities, restrictions on interest rates paid aadsactions with affiliates, removal of
management, and other restrictions. The FDIC Inaigeldl discretion in dealing with a critically undepitalized institution and is generally
required to appoint a receiver or conservator. Bamith riskbased capital and leverage ratios below the redjuiri@imums may be subject
certain administrative actions, including terminatbf deposit insurance upon notice and hearirtgraporary suspension of insurance
without a hearing if the institution has no tangibhpital.

Deposit Insurance Assessme

The Banks deposits are insured up to applicable limitshey@IF of the FDIC and are subject to deposit iasoe assessments to maintair
DIF. Currently the FDIC utilizes a ridfased assessment system to evaluate the risklofieancial institution based on three primary sex
of information: its supervisory rating, its finaatratios, and its long-term debt issuer ratinghé institution has one. The FDIC'’s initial base
assessment schedule can be adjusted up or dowpreméums in effect from January 1, 2010, througdrdh 31, 2011, ranged from 12 basis
points in the lowest risk category to 45 basis fgofar banks in the highest risk category. Effexthpril 1, 2011, the FDIC set initial base
assessment rates from 5 basis points in the laweistategory to 35 basis points for banks in tighdst risk category.

The Dodd-Frank Act requires the FDIC to increageDIF’'s reserves against future losses, which néttessitate increased deposit insurance
premiums that are to be borne primarily by insidtas with assets of greater than $10 billion. Iridber 2010, the FDIC addressed plans to
bolster the DIF by increasing the required reseatie for the industry to 1.35 percent (ratio odeeves to insured deposits) by September 30,
2020, as required by the Dodd-Frank Act. The FOED aroposed to raise its industry target ratioeserves to insured deposits to 2 percent,
65 basis points above the statutory minimum.

In February 2011, the FDIC adopted new rules thadral its current deposit insurance assessmengtemd. The new rules implement a
provision in the Dodd-Frank Act that changed theeasment base for deposit insurance premiums frenbbased on domestic deposits to one
based on average consolidated total assets mimunage/tangible equity. The rules also changedgsbesament rate schedules for insured
depository institutions so that approximately taems amount of revenue would be collected usingnéve assessment base as would be
collected using the current rate schedule anddhedsiles previously proposed by the FDIC in Oct@®di0. In addition, the new rules revi
the risk-based assessment system for large insie@ukitory institutions, which generally includstitutions with at least $10 billion in total
assets and highly complex institutions, by reqggitime FDIC to use a scorecard method to calcukgessment rates for all such institutions.
The Bank is not considered a highly complex institufor these purposes.

Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, as ameftdedFDIA”), the FDIC may terminate deposit inance upon a finding that the
institution has engaged in unsafe and unsoundipeacts in an unsafe or unsound condition to omgtioperations, or has violated any
applicable law, regulation, rule, order or conditimposed by the FDIC.

In addition to deposit insurance assessments bptRgeall FDIC-insured depository institutions mysty an annual assessment to provide
funds for the repayment of debt obligations of Eireancing Corporation (“FICQ”). The FICO is a gonerent-sponsored entity that was
formed to borrow the money necessary to carrylweittosing and ultimate disposition of failed thiifstitutions by the Resolution Trust
Corporation. The FICO
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assessments are set quarterly. The Bank’'s FIC@samsats totaled $154 thousand in 2013 and $14Gandun 2012. The Bank’s FDIC
deposit insurance assessments and premiums t&hlea million in 2013 and $1.57 million in 2012.

Safety and Soundness Standards

The FDIA requires that the federal bank regulatmygncies prescribe standards, by regulations detinés, relating to internal controls,
information and internal audit systems, loan docotaon, credit underwriting, interest rate rislpesure, asset growth, asset quality,
earnings, stock valuation and compensation, feddanefits, and other operational and managedalsirds the agencies deem appropriate.
Guidelines adopted by the federal bank regulatggnaies establish general standards relating @éoniak controls and information systems,
internal audit systems, loan documentation, craatiterwriting, interest rate exposure, asset gramthcompensation, fees and benefits. In
general, the guidelines require, among other thiaggropriate systems and practices to identifyraadage the risk and exposures specified
in the guidelines. The guidelines prohibit excessismpensation as an unsafe and unsound practicgesnribe compensation as excessive
when the amounts paid are unreasonable or disiiopate to the services performed by an executifiesn, employee, director, or principal
stockholder. The agencies adopted regulationsathtabrize them to order an institution that haslbgieen notice by an agency not satisfying
any of such safety and soundness standards to satmminpliance plan. If after being so notifiediastitution fails to submit an acceptable
compliance plan or fails in any material respedtrtplement an acceptable compliance plan, the ggenst issue an order directing action to
correct the deficiency and may issue an order tiimgother actions of the types to which an undeitefized institution is subject under the
prompt corrective action provisions of the FDIAaH institution fails to comply with such an ordére agency may seek to enforce such ¢

in judicial proceedings and to impose civil mon@nalties. See “Corrective Measures for Capital @eficies” in the “Bank” section above.

Enforcement Powel

The FDIC and the other federal banking agencies havad enforcement powers, including the poweernminate deposit insurance, impose
substantial fines and other civil and criminal gaéas, and appoint a conservator or receiver. Faita comply with applicable laws,
regulations, and supervisory agreements could subsg including officers, directors, and othetitugion-affiliated parties, to administrative
sanctions and potentially substantial civil monepdglties. The appropriate federal banking agengyapaoint the FDIC as conservator or
receiver for a banking institution (or the FDIC megypoint itself, under certain circumstances) if ane or more of a number of
circumstances exist, including, without limitatidhe banking institution is undercapitalized and ha reasonable prospect of becoming
adequately capitalized; fails to become adequatgpjtalized when required to do so; fails to sulartitnely and acceptable capital restora
plan; or materially fails to implement an acceptagital restoration plan.

Consumer Laws and Regulations

In addition to the laws and regulations discussetthis report, the Bank is also subject to certansumer laws and regulations that are
designed to protect consumers in transactions lveittks. While the list set forth is not exhaustihese laws and regulations include the T

in Lending Act, the Truth in Savings Act, the Ekectic Funds Transfer Act, the Expedited Funds Aalality Act, the Equal Credit
Opportunity Act, the Fair Housing Act, and variaiate counterparts. These laws and regulations ataieértain disclosure requirements and
regulate the manner in which financial institutiongst deal with customers when taking depositsaking loans to such customers. The
Bank must comply with the applicable provisiongtefse consumer protection laws and regulationsd@optheir ongoing customer relatio

In addition, federal law currently contains ext@estustomer privacy protection provisions. Und@sthprovisions, a financial institution rr
provide to its customers, at the inception of thstemer relationship and annually thereafter, tisétution’s policies and procedures
regarding the handling of customers’ nonpublic peas financial information. These provisions alsovide that, except for certain limited
exceptions, a
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financial institution may provide such personabimhation to unaffiliated third parties only if tiestitution discloses to the customer that ¢
information may be so provided and the customgivisn the opportunity to opt out of such disclosure

The Dodd-Frank Act centralized responsibility fonsumer financial protection by creating the CFRBIch is responsible for implementing,
examining and enforcing compliance with federalstoner protection laws. The CFPB has broad rulengakimpervisory and enforcement
authority over consumer financial products and ises; including deposit products, residential magees, homequity loans, and credit car
The CFPB'’s functions include investigating consug@nplaints, rulemaking, supervising and examitiagks’ consumer transactions, and
enforcing rules related to consumer financial paisiand services. Banks with less than $10 billioassets, such as the Bank, will be subject
to these federal consumer financial laws and wilit;mue to be examined for compliance with theseslay their primary federal banking
agency.

Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Aqgniate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruatrdigsm Act

The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providiapropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obdtiierrorism Act of 2001 (“USA
Patriot Act”) was enacted in October 2001. The UBriot Act has broadened existing amtiney laundering legislation while imposing n
compliance and due diligence obligations on bamkisather financial institutions, with a particufacus on detecting and reporting money
laundering transactions involving domestic or intgional customers. The U.S. Department of thestma(the “Treasury”) has issued and
will continue to issue regulations clarifying th&M Patriot Act’s requirements. The USA Patriot Aefuires all financial institutions, as
defined, to establish certain anti-money laundecognpliance and due diligence programs. Recemtéyrégulatory agencies have intensified
their examination procedures of the USA Patriot#\ahti-noney laundering and Bank Secrecy Act requirem&iesbelieve our controls a
procedures were in compliance with the USA Patkitttas of December 31, 2013.

Interstate Banking and Branchir

Federal banking agencies are authorized to appnéeestate bank merger transactions without reg@mmhether the transaction is prohibited
by the law of any state, unless the home stat@mefod the banks has opted out of the interstatk besrger provisions of the Riegle-Neal
Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Actl804, as amended, (the “Riegle-Neal Adi)by adopting a law after the date of enactr

of the Riegle-Neal Act and before June 1, 199%,dpalies equally to all out-of-state banks andreggly prohibits merger transactions
involving out-of-state banks. Interstate acquisii@f branches are permitted only if the law ofgtege in which the branch is located permits
such acquisitions. Such interstate bank mergerdeartth acquisitions are also subject to the nafithe and statewide insured deposit
concentration limitations described in the RiegkeaNAct.

Before the enactment of the Dodd-Frank Act, natiana state-chartered banks were generally pemrittdranch across state lines by
merging with banks in other states if allowed by épplicable statetaws. However, interstate branching is now permifte all national ani
state-chartered banks as a result of the Dodd-FAahkprovided that a state bank chartered by tht $n which the branch is to be located
would also be permitted to establish a branch, dffestively giving out-of-state banks parity withrstate banks with respect to de novo
branching.

Troubled Asset Relief Program Capital Purchase Paoy

On November 21, 2008, we issued and sold to thastig 41,500 shares of our Fixed Rate Cumulativpd®eaal Preferred Stock, Series A,
and a warrant to purchase 176,546 shares of oumoonstock, par value $1.00 per share, for an agégempsh purchase price of $41.50
million. The warrant was immediately exercisabl®emijits issuance, had an initial exercise pricespare of $35.26, and a 10 year term. On
June 5, 2009, we completed a public offering of@mammon stock to reduce the amount of shares undgrthe
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warrant to 88,273. On July 8, 2009, we repurchadlgoreferred stock from the Treasury that had jomesly been issued. On November 23,
2011, we repurchased the warrant from the Tredsurgpproximately $31 thousand through our bid pullic auction that took place on
November 17, 201:

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

The risk factors described below discuss poteptiahts, trends, or other circumstances that caludraely affect our business, financial
condition, results of operations, cash flows, litityi, access to capital resources, and, consegueatlise the market value of our common
stock to decline. These risks could cause our éutesults to differ materially from historical rétsuand expectations of future financial
performance. If any of the following risks occudahe market price of our common stock declinesiiantly, individuals may lose all, or
part, of their investment in our Company. Indivitushould carefully consider our risk factors anel &dditional information included in, or
incorporated by reference to, this report befor&ingaan investment decision. There may be risksiamrtainties that we have not identif
or that we have deemed immaterial that could aéWeeffect our business; therefore, the followirgk factors are not intended to be an
exhaustive list of all risks we face. All forwardeking statements are qualified by the risks dbscribelow.

Risks Related to Our Business
The current economic environment poses significanfitallenges.

The U.S. economy has faced a severe economic urigsent years, including a major recession fraimich it is slowly recovering. Business
activity across a wide range of industries andaegiin the U.S. continues to remain reduced aral p@vernments and many businesses
continue to experience financial difficulty. Whileflecting some improvement, unemployment levelsaia elevated. There can be no
assurance that these conditions will continue forowe or that these conditions could worsen.

Our financial performance is generally highly degemt upon the business environment in the marketesperate, specifically Virginia and
the U.S. as a whole, which includes the abilitypofrowers to pay interest, repay principal on @utding loans, the value of collateral
securing those loans, and demand for loans and ptbducts and services we offer. A favorable bessnenvironment is generally
characterized by, among other factors, economiwtrcefficient capital markets, low inflation, lomnemployment, high business and
investor confidence, and strong business earniigiavorable or uncertain economic and market caotitcan be caused by declines in
economic growth, business activity or investor wsibess confidence; limitations on the availahjldyincreases, in the cost of credit and
capital; increases in inflation or interest ratégh unemployment; natural disasters; or a comlinaif these or other factors.

Overall, during recent years, the business envimrirhas been adverse for many households and bassa the U.S. and worldwide.
Although economic conditions in Virginia, the U.8nd worldwide have improved since the recesslmretcan be no assurance that this
improvement will continue. Economic pressure onstoners and uncertainty regarding continuing ecoa@mprovement may result in
changes in consumer and business spending, bogpaimd savings habits. Such conditions could aéleedfect the credit quality of the
Bank’s loans and the Company’s business, finaroiadition, and results of operations.

We are subject to interest rate risk.

Our earnings and cash flows are largely depend®on net interest income. Net interest income igdifference between interest income

earned on interest-earning assets, such as lodreeanrities, and interest expense paid on intbesating liabilities, such as deposits and
borrowed funds. Interest rates are highly sensttivmany factors that are beyond our control, idiclg general economic conditions and

policies of various governmental and regulatoryraggs, particularly, the Federal Reserve. Changesonetary policy and interest rates

could influence the interest we receive on loarsseturities and the amount of interest we payaposits and borrowings. Further, such
changes could also affect our ability to originai@ns and obtain deposits and the fair
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value of our financial assets and liabilities.Hétinterest rates paid on deposits and other bargsaincrease at a faster rate than the interest
rates received on loans and other investmentqetunterest income and earnings could be adveestdgted. Conversely, if interest rates
received on loans and other investments fall maiekty than interest rates paid on deposits anérdtlerrowings, our net interest income i
earnings could also be adversely affected.

Our estimated allowance for loan losses may notgequate to cover actual losses.

Like all financial institutions, we maintain an@Nance for loan losses to provide for probable loases. Our allowance may not be adeq
to cover actual loan losses, and future provisfonfoan losses could materially and adverselycfteir operating results. The appropriate
level of the allowance is determined by manageraadtinherently involves a high degree of subjegtiand significant estimates of current
credit risks and future trends, all of which maylergo material changes. Our allowance is deterniiiyemhalyzing historical loan losses,
current trends in delinquencies and charge-ofemgfor problem loan resolution, changes in the aim composition of the loan portfolio,
and industry information. Management's estimatee @iclude considerations concerning the impaetcohomic events, which are uncertain.
Future losses are susceptible to changes in econopegrating, and other conditions, including ctenig interest rates, which may be bey
our control; these losses may exceed our curréimates. Federal regulatory agencies regularlyen@aur loans and allowance for loan
losses as an integral part of the examination pd&/e believe our allowance for loan losses igjaae to provide for probable losses. Tt
is no assurance that we will not, or that regukateitl not require us to, increase our allowancéutnire periods, which could materially and
adversely affect our earnings and profitability.

Non-covered nonperforming assets were $27.79 millmofaDecember 31, 2013, $35.69 million as of Decendd, 2012, and $31.0 million
as of December 31, 2011. We incurred net chargeedf$10.35 million in 2013, $6.11 million in 201&3d $9.32 million in 2011. Our
provision for loan losses charged to operations $&21 million in 2013, $5.68 million in 2012, a##.05 million in 2011. The provision
attributed to purchased credit impaired (“PCl")dsavas $747 thousand in 2013, of which $296 thalisas included in the provision
charged to operations and $451 thousand was rettndsugh the FDIC indemnification asset. As of Bmber 31, 2013, our ratio of the
allowance attributed to non-PClI loans to non-coderenperforming loans was 113.92% and ratio ofdlevance attributed to noRCI loans

to total non-covered loans was 1.50%. If nonperfoghassets or net charge-offs increase in futuregg we may be required to increase our
allowance for loan losses, which could have an emveffect on our future results of operations.

Our level of credit risk may increase due to ourcfes on commercial, small business, and middle markastomers who may have
significant vulnerability to economic condition:

Commercial business and real estate loans areajgnewnsidered riskier than single family residahibans because larger balances are
extended to single borrowers or groups of relataddwers. Commercial business and real estate ioansse risks because the borrowers’
ability to repay the loans typically depends onghecess of the business’ operations or the piiepes¢curing the loans. The majority of our
commercial business loans are made to small bissorasiddle market customers. A portion of our caemetal business and real estate loans
made or acquired in recent years has not expedescemplete business or economic cycle. As of Bes 31, 2013, our largest outstanc
commercial business loan was $6.09 million anddsrgutstanding commercial real estate loan wa3%8illion. As of the same date, our
commercial business loans totaled $101.27 milliwrg.92% of our total loan portfolio, and our commial real estate loans totaled $759.18
million, or 44.38% of our total loan portfolio.

In addition, we hold a portfolio of commercial ctnugtion loans. Construction loans generally hatégher risk of loss primarily due to the
critical nature of certain assumptions and estisated to value the initial property value upon plation of construction compared to the
estimated costs, including interest. If estimates@ inaccurate, final property values may falldverelated loan amounts. While we are not
currently aware of any specific, material impeditsempacting any of our builder or developer boreosy there continues to be
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nationwide reports of problems that adversely affieany property developers, builders, and instingithat provide those loans. If a
significant number of our construction loans expece these types of difficulties, we could haveeasly consequences on our future financial
condition and results of operations. As of Decen#igr2013, our largest outstanding commercial ¢anton loan was $2.59 million. As of
the same date, our commercial construction loataeid $51.12 million, or 2.99% of our total loarrtfolio.

We may suffer losses in our loan portfolio despiter underwriting practices.

We seek to mitigate the risks inherent in our Ipartfolio by adhering to specific underwriting ptiges. These practices include the analysis
of borrowers’ prior credit histories, financial &ments, tax returns, and cash flow projectionkjatéon of collateral based on independent
appraisers’ reports; and verification of liquid etss We believe our underwriting criteria are appiade for the various loan types we offer;
however, losses may occur on these loans that éxhegeserves established in our allowance for losses.

Changes in the fair value of our investment secig& may reduce stockholders’ equity and net income.

As of December 31, 2013, securities available &be svere $519.82 million and the aggregate unredliasses on those securities were
$26.29 million. Stockholders’ equity is increasediecreased by the change in unrealized gain erdnshese securities, net of the related tax
effect, through accumulated other comprehensiventec(“AOCI”"). The unrealized gain or loss represehe difference between the
estimated fair value and the amortized cost oktmuirities. A decline in the estimated fair valfithe portfolio results in a decline in
stockholders’ equity, book value per common shaine, tangible book value per common share. The dsers recorded even though the
securities are not sold or held for sale. If a daiurity is never sold and no credit impairmernsgtexthe decrease is recovered at the secsirity’
maturity. Equity securities have no stated matuthgrefore, declines in fair value may or may Imetecovered over time.

We conduct quarterly reviews of our securities fodict to determine if the declines are other-thamporary. Factors we consider in our
analysis of debt securities include: our intergét the securities, the evidence available tordste if it is more likely than not that we will
have to sell the securities before recovery ofatimertized cost, and the probable credit losseddPle credit losses are evaluated on the
present value of future cash flows; the severiy dnration of the decline in fair value of the sgtyubelow its amortized cost; the financial
condition and near-term prospects of the issueethdr the decline appears to be related to isqmtitions; general market, or industry
conditions; the payment structure of the secuféijure of the security to make scheduled intecegirincipal payments; and changes to the
rating of the security by rating agencies. Decreasé¢he fair value of debt securities caused kangles in interest rates are generally
considered temporary, which is consistent witheyrerience. If we determine that fair value deasase other-than-temporary, the security
is written down to a new cost basis and the resylss is charged to earnings as a componentriftesest income. We recognized other-
than-temporary impairment (“OTTI") charges of $3B0usand in our debt securities portfolio in 2013.

Factors we consider in our analysis of equity séearinclude: our intent to sell the security refoecovery of the cost; the severity and
duration of the decline in fair value below cokg financial condition and netarm prospects of the issuer; and whether the mealppears
be related to issuer conditions, general markendurstry conditions. We recognized no OTTI charigesur equity securities portfolio in
2013.

We continue to monitor the fair value of our setteisi portfolio as part of our ongoing OTTI evaloatiprocess. No assurance can be given
that we will not need to recognize OTTI chargethim future. Additional OTTI charges may materiaffect our financial condition and
earnings.

We are subject to extensive regulation, possibléoertement, and other legal action.

We operate in a highly regulated industry subje@xamination, supervision, and comprehensive atigul by various federal and state
governmental authorities, laws, and judicial anthiistrative decisions that impose requirementsrasttictions on our operations. Banking
regulations are primarily intended to protect dépos
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funds, federal deposit insurance funds, and th&ibgrsystem as a whole, not stockholders. Congredsederal regulatory agencies
continually review banking laws, regulations, amdigies for possible changes. Changes to stattggsjations, and regulatory policies,
including changes in interpretation or implemewtatimay cause substantial and unpredictable effestisire additional costs, limit the types
of financial services and products offered, onallmn-banks to offer competing financial serviced products. The DodBErank Act, enacte
in July 2010, instituted major changes to banking financial institutions regulatory regimes. Feglto comply with laws, regulations, and
policies may result in sanctions by regulatory ajgesmand civil money penalties, which could haveemal adverse effects on our reputation,
business, financial condition, and results of ofi@na. We have policies and procedures designedeteent violations; however, there is no
assurance that violations will not occur. Existanyl future laws, regulations, and policies yete@mtopted may make compliance more
difficult or expensive; restrict our ability to ginate, broker, or sell loans; further limit ortr&t commissions, interest, and other charges
earned on loans we originate or sell; and advewrs#bgt our overall business, financial conditiand results of operations.

The Bank’s ability to pay dividends is subject egulatory limitations, to the extent such dividendee required, that may affect the
Company'’s ability to pay expenses and dividendstiareholders.

The Company is a separate legal entity from thekB&ihe Company currently depends on tits otherididr$es’ and the Bank’s cash,
liquidity, and payment of dividends to the Compaémyay operating expenses and dividends to stodkhal There is no assurance that the
Bank will have the capacity to pay dividends to @@mmpany in the future or that the Company will rejuire dividends from the Bank to
satisfy obligations. The Bank’s dividend paymengaserned by various statutes and regulations. Bdipg on factors such as the Bank’s
financial condition, the FRB of Richmond or the §itia Bureau, the Bank’s primary regulators, magrdelividends or other payments an
unsafe or unsound practice. If the Bank is unableaty dividends sufficient to satisfy the Compargtdigations, the Company may not be
able to service obligations as they become dusgtbeligations include required payments to thesflou dividends on our Series A
Noncumulative Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series A Preferred Stock”) or our common stockn&muently, the inability to receive
dividends from the Bank could adversely affect@mnpany’s financial condition, results of operaipoash flows, and prospects.

We face strong competition from other financial itigitions, financial service companies, and orgaations that offer services similar to
our offerings.

We primarily conduct our operations in Virginia, $¢&/irginia, North Carolina, South Carolina, anchiessee. We may be unsuccessful
against current and future competitors in regitwas offer products and services similar to thoseoffer; therefore, increased competition
may result in reduced loan originations and depo€iur competitors include savings associatiorntsomal banks, regional banks, and
community banks. We also face competition fromdicecompanies, brokerage firms, insurance compasriedit unions, mortgage banks,
and other financial intermediaries. In particutaur competitors include state and national banklsnaajor financial companies with resources
that may provide a marketplace advantage by expgratid maintaining numerous banking locations aadnting extensive promotional a
advertising campaigns.

Financial institutions with larger capitalizationdafinancial intermediaries not subject to bankutatpry restrictions have higher lending
limits that enable them to serve the credit neddarger clients and, to the extent they are maverdified than us, may be able to offer the
same products and services at more competitive eatte prices. If we are unable to attract andmdtanking clients, our loan and deposit
growth, general business, financial condition, prabpects may be negatively affected.
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Potential acquisitions may disrupt our business adillite stockholder value

We may seek merger or acquisition partners thatatarally similar, have experienced managemend, ossess either significant market
presence or the potential for improved profitapitiirough financial management, economies of scalexpanded services. Risks inherent in
acquiring other banks, businesses, and bankingbezmmay include the following:

* Potential exposure to unknown or contingent lisibti of the target compan

» Exposure to potential asset quality issues ofahget company

« Difficulty, expense, and delays of integrating theerations and personnel of the target comp

» Potential disruption to our busine:

» Potential diversion of managem’s time and attentiol

» Loss of key employees and customers of the taaapany,

» Difficulty in estimating the value of the targetrapany,

» Potential changes in banking or tax laws or regpdatthat may affect the target compa

» Unexpected costs and dela

* The target compar's performance does not meet our growth and prdaftiabxpectations

» Limited experience in new markets or product ar

* Increased time, expenses, and personnel as aoéstiain on our infrastructure, staff, internahtrols, and management, ¢

» Potential sho-term decreases in profitabilit
We regularly evaluate merger and acquisition opputies and conduct due diligence activities raldtepossible transactions with other
financial institutions and financial services comiga. As a result, merger or acquisition discusseimd, in some cases, negotiations may take
place and future mergers or acquisitions involitimg payment of cash or the issuance of debt otyegecurities may occur at any time.
Acquisitions typically involve goodwill, a purchapeemium over the acquired company’s book and maskiees; therefore, dilution of our
tangible book value and net income per common shaseoccur. If we are unable to realize revenuesizges, cost savings, geographic or

product presence growth, or other projected benffim acquisitions, our financial condition andulés of operations may be adversely
affected.

We may engage in FDIC-assisted transactions.

We may acquire assets and liabilities of failedificial institutions that are in FDIC receiversipIC-assisted acquisitions include risks
inherent in acquiring other banks, businessespanéting branches, as well as risks specific to ¢é@tsaction. FDIC-assisted acquisitions
generally provide limited diligence and term negtitin and may require additional resources, expers®l time to service acquired loans,
including PCI loans, integrate personnel and opegatystems, and establish processes to serviegradgqssets. Acquisitions may also
require us to raise additional capital that coldgiéna dilutive effect on existing stockholderswé are unable to manage these risks, FDIC-
assisted acquisitions could have a material adwedfset on our business, financial condition, agsuits of operations.

Our ability to receive benefits under FDIC loss steaagreements is subject to compliance with certeggquirements, oversight and
interpretation, and contractual term limitations.

We receive benefits under loss share agreemertighetFDIC in connection with the FDIC-assisteduasition of Waccamaw Bank
(“Waccamaw”)in June 2012. Under these loss share agreemeatsSPHC agreed to cover 80% of most loans and fosed real estate loss
Loans covered under the agreements representetPa 2P
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our total loans held for investment as of June2BQ2. We are subject to certain obligations undese¢ agreements that prescribe and specify
how to manage, service, report, and request reiseluent for losses incurred on covered assets. liligatons under the loss share
agreements are extensive, and failure to comply arnty obligations could result in a specific assegroup of assets, losing loss share
coverage. Requests for reimbursement are subj&d@Hto review and may be delayed or disallowed ifase not in compliance with our
obligations. Losses projected to occur during tss lshare term may not be realized until afteegpération of the applicable agreement;
consequently, those losses may have a materiatsalirapact on our results of operations. Our cif@ss estimates only include those
projected to occur during the loss share perio@gxpect reimbursement from the FDIC at the appleabimbursement rate. In addition, we
are subject to FDIC audits to ensure complianch thi¢ loss share agreements. The loss share agreseane subject to interpretation by us
and the FDIC; therefore, disagreements may arggrdéng the coverage of losses, expenses, anchgenties.

Our accounting estimates and risk management praessrely on analytical and forecasting models.

The processes we use to estimate probable loagslassl to measure the fair value of financial um#nts, as well as the processes used to
estimate the effects of changing interest ratesodimel market measures on our financial conditimeh r@sults of operations, depends upon the
use of analytical and forecasting models. Theseafisaéflect assumptions that may not be accuratgicplarly in times of market stress or
other unforeseen circumstances. Even if these gamms are adequate, the models may prove to loedueate or inaccurate because of other
flaws in their design or their implementation.hetmodels we use for interest rate risk and agdatily management are inadequate, we may
incur increased or unexpected losses upon changearket interest rates or other market measurédse imodels used for determining
probable loan losses are inadequate, the allowfandean losses may not be sufficient to suppaitifel charge-offs. If the models we use to
measure the fair value of financial instrumentsiaaglequate, the fair value of such financial instents may fluctuate unexpectedly or may
not accurately reflect what we could realize ugmngale or settlement of such financial instrumefty such failure in our analytical or
forecasting models could have a material adverfeetadn our business, financial condition, and itesaf operations.

The repeal of the federal prohibitions on paymeritinterest on demand deposits could increase ouenest expense.

All federal prohibitions on the ability of finandiestitutions to pay interest on demand deposibaats were repealed as part of the Dodd-
Frank Act beginning on July 21, 2011. As a resdine financial institutions have commenced offeirigrest on demand deposits to
compete for customers. We do not yet know whatasterates other institutions may offer as manktgrest rates begin to increase. Our
interest expense will increase and net interesgimavill decrease if we begin offering interestd@mand deposits to attract additional
customers or maintain current customers, whichacbalve a material adverse effect on our busingsmdial condition, and results of
operations.

Attractive acquisition opportunities may not be aladble in the future.

We expect banking and financial companies, mank significantly greater resources, to competetieracquisition of financial services
businesses. This competition could increase thee i potential acquisitions that we believe ateative. Acquisitions are subject to various
regulatory approvals, and if we fail to receive raypiate regulatory approvals we will not be aldednsummate an acquisition. Our
regulators consider our capital, liquidity, profiility, regulatory compliance, level of goodwill dintangible assets, and other factors when
considering acquisition and expansion proposalarEwacquisitions may be dilutive to our earningd equity per share of our common stock
and Series A Preferred Stock.

Our goodwill may be determined to be impaired.

As of December 31, 2013, our carrying balance aidgall was $105.46 million. We test goodwill for pairment on an annual basis, or more
frequently if necessary, using quantitative anditateve factors. When
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available, quoted market prices in active markegglae best evidence of fair value and are usékealsasis for measuring impairment. Other
acceptable valuation methods include present vakgsurements based on multiples of earnings, regeou similar performance measures.
If the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its ifeglfair value, goodwill is determined to be imjgair Impairment charges may cause an
adverse affect on our earnings and financial pwsitiWe recognized no goodwill impairment in 2013.

We may lose members of our management team and liiffieulty attracting skilled personnel.

Our success depends, in large part, on our abdligttract and retain key people. Competition ffar best people can be intense. The
unexpected loss of key personnel could have a rabégtverse impact on our business due to thedbessertain skills, market knowledge, and
industry experience and the difficulty of promplityding qualified replacement personnel. Certaiisixg and proposed regulatory guidance
on compensation may also negatively impact ouitghd retain and attract skilled personnel.

We may be required to pay higher FDIC insurance preims or special assessments.

Our deposits are insured up to applicable limitsHgyFDIC'’s DIF and we are subject to deposit inaae premiums and assessments to
maintain deposit insurance. We are unable to préatigre insurance assessment rates; however jaletizon in our risk-based capital ratios
or adjustments to base assessment rates mayirebigher insurance premiums or special assessmarasldition, deterioration in banking
and economic conditions and financial institutiaitures deplete the FDIC’s DIF and reduced theratireserves to insured deposits. If the
DIF is unable to meet funding requirements, inogeas deposit insurance premium rates or specsaisaments may also be required. Future
assessments, increases, or required prepaymeatsdréd FDIC insurance premiums may negativelycaifer financial condition and results
of operations.

We may require additional capital in the future thanay not be available when needed.

We may need to raise additional capital in theriito strengthen our capital position, increaseliquidity, satisfy obligations, or pursue
growth objectives. Our ability to raise additiogapital depends on current conditions in capitalkets, which are outside our control, and
our financial performance. Certain economic condsiand declining market confidence may increaseast of funds and limit our access
customary sources of capital, such as borrowings @ther financial institutions, repurchase agresiieand availability under the FRB’s
discount window. Events that limit access to camitarkets and the inability to obtain capital mawé a materially adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operatjeand market value of common stock. We cannotigecany assurance that additional ca|
will be available, on acceptable terms or at alkhie future.

Liquidity risk could impair our ability to fund opeations.

Liquidity is essential to our business and the ilitsio raise funds through deposits, borrowingguity and debt offerings, or other sources
could have a materially negative effect on ouritiigy. Access to funding, with acceptable terms@ghate to finance our activities could be
impaired by factors specific to our company, susla aecline in our credit rating; an increase éabst of capital from financial capital
markets; a decrease in business activity due teradwegulatory action or other company specifeanévor a decrease in depositor or investor
confidence. Our access to liquidity could alsorhpaired by factors that affect the general findrsgavices industry such as a severe
disruption of financial markets, negative views axgectations concerning the industry, or decreimskessiness activity as a result of polit

or environmental events.

We are subject to credit risk associated with tireahcial condition of other financial institutions.

Financial institutions are interrelated as a restittading, clearing, counterparty, and othertieteships. We have exposure to different
industries and counterparties, and we routinelyebetransactions with counterparties in the fimarservices industry, including brokers ¢
dealers, commercial banks, investment
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banks, investment companies, and other institutidients. Our ability to engage in routine fundimgnsactions could be adversely affected
by the failure, actions, and commercial soundnéssher financial institutions. These transactiomsy expose us to credit risk if our
counterparty or client defaults on their contrattldigation. Our credit risk may increase if thalateral we hold cannot be realized or
liquidated at prices sufficient to recover the futhount of the loan or derivative exposure duestdruthe event of default, we may be requ
to provide collateral to secure the obligationhte tounterparties. In the event of a bankruptapswlvency proceeding involving one of such
counterparties, we may experience delays in reaoyéhne assets posted as collateral or may intossato the extent that the counterparty
holding collateral in excess of the obligation tels counterparty. Any losses resulting from outtirmufunding transactions may materially
and adversely affect our financial condition ansuits of operations.

We are subject to environmental liability risk assated with lending activities.

A significant portion of our loan portfolio is seeul by real property. In the ordinary course ofibess, we foreclose on and take title to
properties that secure certain loans. Hazardotsxar substances could be found on properties we ¢ivsubstances are present, we may be
liable for remediation costs, personal injury clajrand property damage and our ability to use lbttse=property would be limited. We have
policies and procedures in place that require envirental reviews before initiating foreclosure @cton real property; however, these
reviews may not detect all potential environmehtards. Environmental laws that require us torisabstantial remediation costs, which
could materially reduce the affected property’suealand other liabilities associated with environtakhazards could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and results oémgtions.

Our controls and procedures may fail or be circunmted.

We review our internal controls over financial repwy quarterly and enhance controls in respondkdse assessments, internal and external
audit, and regulatory recommendations. A contretesy, no matter how well conceived and operatelijde certain assumptions and can
only provide reasonable assurance that the obgsctf the control system are met. These controjsbeaircumvented by individual acts,
collusion, or management override. Any failure mcumvention related to our controls and procedoaremilure to comply with regulations
related to controls and procedures could have anmbtdverse effect on our business, reputat@sylts of operations, and financial
condition.

We continue to encounter technological change.

The financial services industry continues to exgrere rapid technological change with the introdurctf new, and increasingly complex,
technology-driven products and services. In addjtibhe effective use of technology increases ofmeralt efficiency that enables financial
service institutions to reduce costs. Our futurecess depends, in part, on our ability to providelpcts and services that satisfactorily meet
the financial needs of our customers, as well asdbze additional efficiencies in our operatiode may fail to effectively use technology-
driven products and services to better serve ostiooters and increase operational efficiency on@afftly invest in technology solutions and
upgrades to ensure systems are operating propentther, many of our competitors have substant@ater resources to invest in
technology, which may adversely affect our abildycompete.

We are subject to information security risks assateid with the use of technology.

We rely on communication and information systemsluding those provided by third-party vendorsgéoduct our business operations. Our
security risks increase as our reliance on teclyyollocreases; consequently, the expectation t@eafe information by monitoring systems
for potential failures, disruptions, and breakdowas also increased. Risks associated with thefusehnology include security breaches,
operational failures and service interruptions, eeqplitational damages. These risks also apply téhing-party service providers. Our third-
party vendors include large entities with signifitenarket presence in their respective fields;eafae, their services could be difficult to
quickly replace in the event of operational faikige service interruption.
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We rely on our technology-driven systems to condiady business and accounting operations thatidecthe collection, processing, and
retention of confidential financial and client infioation. We may be vulnerable to security breachesh as employee error, cyber attacks,
and viruses, beyond our control. In addition tausiég breaches, programming errors, vandalism, naatlisasters, terrorist attacks, and third-
party vendor disruptions may cause operationalfed and service interruptions to our communicadioth information systems. Further, our
systems may be temporarily disrupted during théogdesf implementation or upgrade. Security breadras service interruptions related to
our information systems could damage our reputatidrich may cause us to lose customers, subjeict iegulatory scrutiny, or expose us to
civil litigation and financial liability.

We periodically review our information security i¢s, procedures, disaster recovery plans, amahfial condition of third-party vendors;
however, there is no assurance that security vidksiot occur, or if they do occur that our proses and procedures are implemented pro
to accurately address such risks. Security riskduding those of third-party vendors, could affeat ability to deliver products and services
to our customers, cause us to incur significaneasp, or damage our reputation, which may haveteriabadverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations.

We may be subject to claims and litigation pertaigito intellectual property.

Banking and other financial services companiesh siscthe Company, rely on technology companiesaeige information technology
products and services necessary to support the @woytgpday-to-day operations. Technology companieguently enter into litigation based
on allegations of patent infringement or other afmns of intellectual property rights. In additigratent holding companies seek to monetize
patents they have purchased or otherwise obta@@upetitors of the Company’s vendors, or otheniidials or companies, have from time
to time claimed to hold intellectual property stdthe Company by its vendors. Such claims mayem®e in the future as the financial
services sector becomes more reliant on informaéohnology vendors. The plaintiffs in these adifrequently seek injunctions and
substantial damages.

Regardless of the scope or validity of such patentsther intellectual property rights, or the neaf any claims by potential or actual
litigants, the Company may have to engage in petgdhlitigation. Such litigation is often expensitiene consuming, disruptive to the
Company’s operations, and distracting to managentfethie Company is found to infringe upon one armpatents or other intellectual
property rights, it may be required to pay subs&hdiamages or royalties to a third party. In dertases, the Company may consider entering
into licensing agreements for disputed intellecpraperty, although no assurance can be giverstidt licenses can be obtained on
acceptable terms or that litigation will not occlihese licenses may also significantly increaseCii@pany’s operating expenses. If legal
matters related to intellectual property claimsevasolved against the Company or settled, the @ognpould be required to make payments
in amounts that could have a material adversetaffeds business, financial condition, and resofteperations.

Severe weather, natural disasters, acts of warerdrism, and other external events could signifitidy impact our business

Severe weather, natural disasters, acts of warmrism, and other adverse external events caald A significant impact on our ability to
conduct business. In addition, such events codétthe stability of our deposit base, impair &hdity of borrowers to repay outstanding
loans, impair the value of collateral securing larause significant property damage, result wsa bf revenue, and/or cause us to incur
additional expenses. Any such events could havaterial adverse effect on our business, whichyiin,tcould have a material adverse effect
on our financial condition and results of operagion
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Risks Associated with Our Common Stock
Our common stock price can be volatile.

Stock price volatility may make it more difficuldf holders of tour common stock to resell whenmesiOur common stock price can
fluctuate significantly in response to a varietyfadtors, including, among other things:

» Actual or anticipated variations in quarterly résuf operations

« Recommendations by securities analy

e Operating and stock price performance of other @nigs that investors deem us comparabl
» News reports relating to trends, concerns, andraglkaes in the financial services indus

» Perceptions in the marketplace regarding our Compad/or competitors

* New technology used, or services offered, by coitgrst

» Significant acquisitions or business combinatiasitegic partnerships, joint ventures, or cagibmhmitments by, or involving, our
Company or competitor

» Failure to integrate acquisitions or realize apatéd benefits from acquisitior
» Changes in government regulatio
» Geopolitical conditions such as acts or threatewbrism or military conflicts

General market fluctuations, industry factors, ficdi conditions, and general economic conditioms events, such as economic slowdowns,
recessions, interest rate changes, or creditiersdd, could also cause our common stock pricedoedse regardless of operating results.

The trading volume in our common stock is less thdmat of other larger financial services companies.

Although our common stock is listed for tradingtbe NASDAQ, the trading volume in our common sticless than that of other, larger
financial services companies. A public trading neatkaving the desired characteristics of depthjdidy, and orderliness depends on the
presence in the marketplace of willing buyers aglbss of our common stock at any given time. Tgrssence depends on the individual
decisions of investors and general economic an#ehaonditions, over which we have no control. Gitlee lower trading volume of our

common stock, significant sales of our common stockhe expectation of these sales, could cawseuhstock price to fall.

We may not continue to pay dividends on our comnsbock in the future.

Our common stockholders are only entitled to rezeiividends when declared by our Board of Directarsof funds legally available for
such payments. Although we have historically dedarash dividends on our common stock, we areauptired to do so, and may reduce or
eliminate our common stock dividend in the futdrkis could adversely affect the market price of common stock. Also, the Company is a
financial holding company and our ability to deeland pay dividends is dependent on certain fedegalatory considerations, including the
guidelines of the Federal Reserve regarding capitatjuacy and dividends.

An investment in our common stock is not an insurddposit.

Our common stock is not a bank deposit and, thezefe not insured against loss by the FDIC, amgiotieposit insurance fund, or by any
other public or private entity. Investment in oonamon stock is inherently risky for the reasonsdbed in this “Risk Factors” section and
elsewhere in this report and is subject to the saadet forces that affect the price of commonlsioany company. As a result, holders of
our common stock could lose some, or all, of tireiestment.
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Certain banking laws may have an anti-takeover effe

Provisions of federal banking laws, including regaty approval requirements, could make it mor@atilt to be acquired by a third party,
even if perceived to be beneficial to our sharetiddThese provisions effectively inhibit a non-otgted merger or other business
combination, which could adversely affect the magké&e of our common stock.

Our Series A Preferred Stock ranks senior to oumemon stock.

On May 20, 2011, we completed the private placeraehB,921 shares of our Series A Preferred Stablich carries a 6% dividend rate.
Each share of Series A Preferred Stock is conVerititto 69 shares of our common stock at any timeraandatorily converts after five yee
We may redeem the Series A Preferred Stock atvalce after May 20, 2014, the third anniversarye Beries A Preferred Stock ranks se
to shares of our common stock. As a result, we ndakdend payments on our Series A Preferred Shafkre our common stock, and in the
event of bankruptcy, dissolution, or liquidationetholders of Series A Preferred Stock will bes§@til before distributions are made to
holders of our common stock. If we do not remairrexnt in the payment of dividends on the Seriegé@d?red Stock, dividends may not be
paid on our common stock. In addition, dividendslaieed on the Series A Preferred Stock reduce ahinnome available to our common
stockholders and earnings per common share. A®oémber 31, 2013, 15,251 shares of Series A Peef&tock were outstanding.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2.  Properties.

Our corporate headquarters is located at One Coiityrielace, Bluefield, Virginia. Including our cor@e headquarters, we operated 71
banking centers, loan production, administrativie| ather financial services offices through our ommity bank subsidiary, the Bank. The
Bank operated 70 banking centers throughout ViegitWest Virginia, North Carolina, Tennessee, anatis€arolina as of December 31,
2013, of which 49 properties were owned and 21 entigs were leased or located on leased land. Goagt’s headquarters is located at 711
Gallimore Dairy Road, High Point, North Carolinacluding the headquarters, our insurance subsidipeyated 9 offices throughout
Virginia, West Virginia, and North Carolina as oé€ember 31, 2013, of which 1 was owned, 4 weretbamnd 4 were located within our
banking centers. There were no mortgages or ligamsat any properties. A list of all branch and ATddations can be found on our website
at www.fcbinc.com. Information contained on our i is not part of this report. See Note 8, “Ps®nj Equipment, and Leases,” to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in Part Il, 1&0of this report.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are currently a defendant in various legal astiand asserted claims in the normal course ohbssi Although we are unable to asses
ultimate outcome of each of these matters withagett, we are of the belief that the resolutioritefse actions should not have a material
adverse effect on our financial position, resufteerations, or cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
None.
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PART Il

ltem 5.  Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Market Information, Holders and Dividends

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Globaé&eMarket under the symbol, “FCBC”. As of Februa8; 2014, there were 2,847
record holders and 18,384,279 outstanding sharesrafommon stock. The following table presentsgharterly high and low stock prices
and cash dividends paid per share on our commaR siaring the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012
Market Price Cash Dividends pe Market Price Cash Dividends pe
High Low Common Share High Low Common Share
First quarter $16.27 $15.2( $ 0.12 $13.8¢ $11.8¢ $ 0.1C
Second quarte 15.7¢ 14.8 0.12 14.4: 11.8¢ 0.11
Third quartel 17.8¢ 15.0¢ 0.12 15.8¢ 13.91 0.11
Fourth quarte 17.6¢4 15.57 0.1z 16.22 14.2¢ 0.11

The Company'’s ability to pay dividends on its cormnstock is dependent on the Bank’s ability to paydénds to the holding company,
which is subject to various regulatory restricti@msl limitations. See “Regulatory Restrictions duidlends; Source of Strength” in the
“Regulation and Supervision — First Community Bdrarss, Inc.” section and “Restrictions on Distribntof Subsidiary Bank Dividends and
Assets” in the “Regulation and Supervision — FEstmmunity Bank’section in Part I, Item 1 of this report. We payidénds on our commc
stock only if all accrued and unpaid dividendsfaily paid on our outstanding Series A Preferredc&t There were 15,251 shares of Serie
Preferred Stock outstanding as of December 31,,281817,421 shares outstanding as of Decemb@032, Cash dividends paid on Series
A Preferred Stock totaled $992 thousand in 2013, Zfnillion in 2012, and $558 thousand in 2011.H0disidends paid on common stock
totaled $9.48 million in 2013, $8.16 million in 2BJand $7.16 million in 2011. Cash dividends paid ghare on common stock totaled $0.48
in 2013, $0.43 in 2012, and $0.40 in 2011.

Purchases of Equity Securities

On October 22, 2013, our Board of Directors appdosiganges to our stock repurchase plan to authttrizeepurchase and retention of up to
3,000,000 shares of our outstanding common steclyaease of 1,900,000 shares. Share repurchasebermade from time to time on the
open market or in privately negotiated transactid¥e repurchased 1,739,601 shares in 2013 and®&gE[#8es in 2012 under the plan. As of
February 28, 2014, 131,500 shares had been repadtim2014.

The following table provides information regardipgrchases of our common stock made by us or obehalf by any affiliated purchaser, as
defined in Rule 10b-18(a)(3) under the Exchange dating the dates indicated:

Average Total Number of Maximum Number of
Total Price Paic Shares Purchased ¢
Number of Shares that May
Shares per Part of a Publicly Yet be Purchased
Purchased Share Announced Plan Under the Plan ()
October -31, 2013 108,50 $ 16.71 108,50 2,301,74!
November -30, 2013 1,107,90! 16.43 1,107,90! 1,196,45!
December -31, 2013 188,00( 16.52 188,00( 1,021,52.
Total 1,404,40' $ 16.5( 1,404,400
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(1) Our stock repurchase plan, as amended, audisattie purchase and retention of up to 3,000,08@&shThe plan has no expiration date
and is currently in effect. No determination hasrbenade to terminate the plan or to cease makinghpses. We held 1,978,478 shares
in treasury as of December 31, 20

Stock Performance Graph

The following graph, compiled by SNL Financial LGNL"), compares our cumulative total shareholdsurn on our common stock for the
five-year period ended December 31, 2013, withctiraulative total return of the S&P 500 Index, theNDAQ Composite Index, and SNL’s
Asset Size & Regional Peer Group. The Asset Sifeg§ional Peer Group consists of 47 bank holdingpzaoties with total assets between
billion and $5 billion that are located in the Smedst Region of the United States and traded onDM&g the OTC Bulletin Board, and pink
sheets. The cumulative returns assume reinvesmieitidends.

Total Return Performance

N

== First Community Bancshares, Inc.

) —=— S&P 500
250

—i— NASDAQ Composite

—e— Asset & Regional Peer Group™ /.

. /,/_ -

Index Yalue
A

U : :
12/31/08 12/31/089 12/31/10 12/31411 1231412 12/31/13

Year Ended December 3

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
First Community Bancshares, Inc. 100.0¢ 35.4C 45.1¢ 3897 51.4¢ 554t
S&P 500 Indey 100.0C 126.4¢ 145.5. 148.5¢ 172.37 228.1¢
NASDAQ Composite Inde 100.0C 145.3¢ 171.7¢ 170.3¢ 200.6: 281.2:
SNL Asset & Regional Peer Grol® 100.0¢ 79.57 84.3( 747 83.8( 122.5:

(1) Includes the following institutions: 1st Unit8ancorp, Inc.; American National Bankshares IAoieris Bancorp; Bank of the Ozarks,
Inc.; BNC Bancorp; Burke & Herbert Bank & Trust Cpamy; Capital City Bank Group, Inc.; Cardinal Fineh Corporation; Carter
Bank & Trust; CenterState Banks, Inc.; City Holdidagmpany; CNLBancshares, Inc.; Colony Bankcorp,; IBommunity Bankers
Trust Corporation; CommunityOne Bancorp; Eastemyivia Bankshares, Inc.; Fidelity Southern CorpioratFirst Bancorp
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First Citizens Bancshares, Inc.; First Security @rdnc.; First Southern Bancorp, Inc.; Great FlarBank; Hamilton State Bancshares,
Inc.; Hampton Roads Bankshares, Inc.; Home BaneShénc.; Middleburg Financial Corporation; Monafihancial Holdings, Inc.;
National Bankshares, Inc.; NewBridge Bancorp; P@ionBancshares, Inc.; Park Sterling Corporatiomgfhes Bancorp of Nort
Carolina, Inc.; Premier Financial Bancorp, Inc.a&mast Banking Corporation of Florida; SimmonstRWational Corporation;
Southeastern Bank Financial Corporation; SouthemcBhares (N.C.), Inc.; State Bank Financial Cafian; Stonegate Bank; Summit
Financial Group, Inc.; TowneBank; Union First MarBankshares Corporation; USAmeriBancorp, Inc.gWia Commerce Bancorp,
Inc.; WashingtonFirst Bankshares, Inc.; Wilson Batttding Company; and Yadkin Financial Corporatidhe returns of each of the
foregoing institutions have been weighted accordintipeir respective stock market capitalizatiothatbeginning of each period for

which a return is indicate!
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents our consolidated setbéinancial data, derived from audited finansi@tements, as of and for the five years
ended December 31, 2013. The table should be nez@hjunction with Item 7, “Management’s Discussand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations,” and IltemRnancial Statements and Supplementary Data,"isfréport.

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per shate
Selected Balance Sheet Da:
Investment securitie

Loans held for sal

Loans held for investment, net of unearned inc
Allowance for loan losse

Total asset

Average asse!

Deposits

Borrowings

Total liabilities

Preferred stoc

Total stockholder equity

Average stockholde’ equity

Summary of Operations

Interest incom

Interest expens

Net interest incom

Provision for loan losses charged to operat
Noninterest incom

Noninterest expens

Income tax expense (bene!

Net income (loss

Dividends on preferred stox

Net income (loss) available to common shareho

Selected Share and Per Share Da

Basic earnings (loss) per common st
Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh
Book value per common share at \-end®
Cash dividends per common sh

Weighted average basic shares outstan
Weighted average diluted shares outstan

Selected Ratios

Return on average ass

Return on average common eqt
Average equity to average ass
Dividend payou

Total risk-based capital rati

Tier 1 risk-based capital rati
Leverage ratic

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011 2010
$ 520,38t $ 535,17 $ 485,92 $ 484,70:
888 6,67z 5,82( 4,694
1,710,72. 1,724,65: 1,396,06 1,386,201
24,071 25,77( 26,20¢ 26,48:
2,602,51. 2,728,86 2,164,78 2,244,23
2,661,60: 2,510,93: 2,195,63! 2,263,05!
1,950,74. 2,030,17! 1,543,46 1,620,95
300,39¢ 313,55¢ 295,14: 332,08
2,273,90! 2,372,54 1,859,06 1,974,36
15,25 17,42: 18,92: —
328,60t 356,32 305,72 269,87t
355,61: 334,90: 295,15( 269,44t
$ 109,47¢ $ 109,65¢ $  94,17¢ $ 103,58:
17,83¢ 19,60( 22,14, 29,72t
91,64: 90,05¢ 72,02¢ 73,85}
8,20¢ 5,67¢ 9,047 14,751
29,77 36,71( 35,53« 40,50¢
78,98¢ 78,38: 68,91¢ 69,94:
10,90¢ 14,12¢ 9,57: 7,81¢
23,31 28,571 20,02¢ 21,84
1,02¢ 1,05¢ 708 —
22,28¢ 27,51¢ 19,32¢ 21,84,
$ 1.1¢ $ 1.44 $ 1.0¢ $ 1.2t
1.11 1.4C 1.07 1.2t
16.7¢ 16.7¢ 15.9¢ 15.11
0.4¢ 0.45 0.4C 0.4C
19,792,09 19,127,06 17,877,42 17,802,00
20,961,80 20,419,56 18,687,52 17,815,10
0.84% 1.1(% 0.88% 0.97%
6.57% 8.7(% 6.81% 8.11%
13.3% 13.3%% 13.4%% 11.9%
42.62% 29.8% 37.0(% 32.52%
16.44% 16.7(% 18.1%% 15.3%
15.1%% 15.44% 16.8% 14.01%
9.95% 9.9¢% 11.5(% 9.44%

(1) Book value per common share is defined as stockdnt’ equity divided by e-converted common shares outstand

(2) NM — Not meaningfu
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$ 493,51
11,57¢
1,393,93.
24,27,
2,273,28:
2,228,911
1,645,96!
352,55¢
2,021,011

252,26
24413

$ 107,93
38,68:
69,25:
15,80:

(53,67
66,62
(28,15
(38,696

2,16(
(40,856

$ (279
(2.79)

14.2(

0.3

14,868,54
14,868,54

-1.82%
-16.7%
10.9%%
NM@)
13.81%
12.5€6%
8.51%
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ltem 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

Unless the context suggests otherwise, the teriinst €ommunity,” “Company,” “we,” “our,” and “us”afer to First Community Bancshares,
Inc. and its subsidiaries as a consolidated erfhy. following Management’s Discussion and Analydiginancial Condition and Results of
Operations (“MD&A”") is intended to help the readerderstand our financial condition, changes inrfaial condition, and results of
operations. This MD&A contains forward-looking statents and should be read in conjunction with oasolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes, as well as other financialrimédion included in this report.

Executive Overview

First Community Bancshares, Inc. (“the Company'a financial holding company, headquartered in Bl Virginia, that provides
commercial banking services through its wholly-odsebsidiary First Community Bank (the “Bank”). TBank operates under the trade
names First Community Bank in West Virginia, Viriginand North Carolina and Peoples Community BariRijvision of First Community
Bank, in Tennessee and South Carolina. The Bankdsitioned itself as a regional community bank giravides an alternative to larger
banks, which often place less emphasis on perselaionships, and smaller community banks, whéak Ithe capital and resources to
efficiently serve customer needs. The Company pes/insurance services through its wholly-ownedisiifry Greenpoint Insurance Group,
Inc. (“Greenpoint”), which operates under the Gpent name and under the trade names First Comynlnstirance Services (“FCIS”) and
Carolina Insurers Associates in North Carolina,r@aiyde Insurance and FCIS in Virginia, and FCISMest Virginia. The Bank offers
wealth management and investment advice throughhitdly-owned subsidiary First Community Wealth Mgement (“FCWM”) and the
Bank’s Trust Division.

Our efforts are focused on building financial parships and creating more enduring and comples¢ioakhips with businesses and
individuals through a personal and local approadbeinking and financial services. Our operatioesgatided by a strategic plan focusing on
organic growth that may be supplemented by strat&gfjuisitions. While our mission remains that ebenmunity bank, management
believes that entry into new markets may accelarategrowth rate by diversifying the demographitsur customer base and by generally
increasing our sales and service network.

Economy

The regional economies we operate in have showitiyand stable aspects; however, there have sigeificant declines in residential
development and construction activity, which arasistent with national trends. These declines fed¢o contraction in areas that have
historically been important components of our legdactivities. The following list summarizes infaation related to the regional economies
we operate in:

e West Virginia and Southwest Virginia — These ecomsnave significant exposure to extractive indestrsuch as coal, timber, and
natural gas. Unemployment levels have generally bmeer than the national averay

» Central North Carolina — This economy has suffénegcent years due to foreign competition in tiviture and textile industries and
consolidation in the financial services industrgspite these detractions, these economies corttriuenefit from large regional and
national companies operating in the Triad and GéRtiedmont region:

e Southeastern North Carolina and Northeastern S@atblina— These economies benefit from tourism and militartyvities.
» Central Virginia— This economy has, in recent years, benefited freyndorporate and government activiti
» Eastern Tenness~ This economy continues to benefit from the stabdit higher education, healthcare services, andsiou
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Competition

We continue to encounter strong competition fomgdhoin loans and deposits and increased markeesNany of the markets we target are
being entered into by other banks located in neartaydistant markets. The expansion of banks, tcue@dns, and other non-depository
financial institutions over recent years has inifisgts competitive pressures on core deposit geimgraind retention. Competitive factors that
impact our Company include pressure on interedtlyigroduct fees, loan structure, and loan tehmogjever, we have countered these
pressures with our relationship style of bankirmmpetitive pricing, cost efficiencies, and disaigld approach to loan underwriting.

Recent Acquisition and Divestiture Activi

On June 8, 2012, we entered into a purchase andhatisn agreement with loss share arrangementsthatirederal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (“FDIC") to purchase certain assets asslime substantially all of the customer depasitscertain liabilities of Waccamaw
Bank (“Waccamaw”), a full service community banlatquartered in Whiteville, North Carolina. Undee thss share agreements, the FDIC
covers 80% of most loan and foreclosed real ekiages. Waccamaw's results of operations are ieduna the consolidated financial
statements from the date of acquisition. As a texfithe acquisition, the comparison between 204®2011 is impacted by increased levels
of assets, liabilities, income, and expense. Atition, Waccamaw had total assets of approxinga&800.64 million, loans of $318.35
million, and deposits of $414.13 million. Goodwiicorded in connection with the acquisition was.620nillion.

On May 31, 2012, we completed the acquisition afffes Bank of Virginia (“Peoples”), a full servicemmunity bank headquartered in
Richmond, Virginia. Peoplesesults of operations are included in the constdididinancial statements from the date of acquoisitAs a resu
of the acquisition, the comparison between 2012281id is impacted by increased levels of assetsijities, common stock, income, and
expense. At acquisition, Peoples had total as$etgpyoximately $275.76 million, loans of $184.84lion, and deposits of $232.75 million.
Goodwill recorded in connection with the acquisitiwas $10.32 million.

We issued cash consideration of $150 thousandifs &) purchase one insurance agency. We receigégate cash proceeds of $1.58
million in 2011 from the sale of two insurance agjen. Acquisition and divestiture activity assoethtvith insurance agencies is included in
the consolidated financial statements from thestation date; therefore, comparisons between figgais are impacted by varying levels of
assets, liabilities, income, and expense.

Insurance Services

We offer insurance services through Greenpointjlesérvice insurance agency that provides comrakerid personal lines of insurance.
Revenues are primarily derived from commissions pgiissuing companies on the sale of policies. @@sion revenue totaled $5.93
million in 2013, an increase of $190 thousand,.80%, compared to the same period of 2012, whicluésto an increase in direct bill
property and casualty insurance income. Commigsieenue totaled $5.74 million in 2012, a decred$e164 thousand, or 7.33%, compared
to the same period of 2011. The decrease in revedileets the sale of two agency offices during2201

Wealth Management Services

We offer trust management, estate administratiod,iavestment advisory services through FCWM amedBbank’s Trust Division, which
reported combined assets under management of $ifldgras of December 31, 2013, and $876 millioro&®ecember 31, 2012. These
assets are not our assets, but are managed unmirrsvize-based arrangements as fiduciary or ageetdecrease in managed assets is
attributed to FCWM. The Trust Division manages iintigos trusts and trusts under will, develops addhinisters employee benefit and
individual retirement plans, and manages and setfitates. Fiduciary fees for these services amget on a schedule related to the size,
nature, and complexity of the account. Revenuesisbprimarily of commissions on assets under mamsnt and investment advisory fees.
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Critical Accounting Estimates

We prepare our consolidated financial statemenés@ordance with generally accepted accountingiples (“GAAP”) in the United States
and conform to general practices within the bankiaystry. Our financial position and results oeogtions require management to make
judgments and estimates to develop the amountctetl and disclosed in the consolidated finantséments. Different assumptions in
application of these estimates could result in neltehanges to our consolidated financial posiaod consolidated results of operations.
Estimates, assumptions, and judgments are baskidtonical experience and other factors includirgeetations of future events believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances that adpeaily evaluated. These estimates are generaltgssary when assets and liabilities are
required to be recorded at estimated fair valwdedine in the value of an asset carried on thenfiral statements at fair value warrants an
impairment write-down or establishment of a valomtieserve, or an asset or liability needs to berded based upon the probability of
occurrence of a future event. Carrying assets iabdities at fair value inherently results in mdieancial statement volatility. Fair values and
information used to record valuation adjustmentétain assets and liabilities are based eithejumted market prices or, when available,
are provided by third-party sources. When thirdyparformation is not available, valuation adjustiteeare estimated by management
primarily through the use of financial modelinghamues and appraisal estimates.

Our accounting policies are fundamental in undeditay MD&A and the disclosures presented in IterfiRhancial Statements and
Supplementary Data,” of this report. See Note Lmigary of Significant Accounting Policies,” to tB®nsolidated Financial Statements in
Item 8 of this report. These policies may involignficant estimates and assumptions that havetanahimpact on our financial condition
operating performance due to the levels of subjiggtand judgment necessary to account for highmgeutain matters or the susceptibility of
such matters to change. Based on the valuatiomigpads used and the sensitivity of financial statehamounts to the methods, assumptions,
and estimates underlying those amounts, we hawtifidel the establishment and determination of gtreent securities, the allowance for
loan losses, business combinations, intangiblessaed income taxes as the accounting areasetfjaire the most subjective or complex
judgments

Investment Securitie

Independent third parties are used to determinéaih&alues of our investment securities. Inputsviled by third parties are reviewed and
corroborated by management. Evaluations of theesaofthe unrealized losses are performed to deterwhether the impairment is
temporary or other-than-temporary in nature. Wéengwour investment portfolio on a quarterly basisifdications of other-than-temporary
impairment (“OTTI"). The analysis differs dependingon the type of investment security being analy@onsiderations in determining
whether a security is other-than-temporarily impdiinclude, among others, our intent and abilitiidtd the security for a period of time
sufficient to allow for any anticipated recoveryfair value, or whether it is more likely than we¢ will be required to sell the security before
recovering its fair value; the severity of the lassl the length of time fair value has been belmeréized cost; the expectation of the
security’s future performance; and the creditwaordisis of the security’s issuer. If the impairmerdegermined to be other-than-temporary, the
value of the security is reduced and a correspandirarge to earnings is recognized. See Note 8estment Securities,” to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8 of this report.

Allowance for Loan Losse

Our quarterly review of the allowance methodology eelevant factors serves as the primary meansageanent evaluates the adequacy of
the allowance for loan losses. The determinatioounfallowance for loan losses requires managetoengke significant estimates and
assumptions. While management utilizes its beggjeht and available information, the ultimate adeywf the allowance is dependent
upon a variety of factors beyond our control, indhg the performance of our loan portfolio, the mmmy, changes in interest rates, and the
view of regulatory authorities. These uncertaintiesy result in material changes to the allowancédfan losses in the near term; however,
the amount of the change cannot reasonably beagstim
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The Company'’s allowance for loan losses consistes#rves assigned to specific loans and creditioekhips and general reserves assigned
to loans not separately identified that have begmented into groups with similar risk charactarsstaccording to our internal risk grades.
General reserve allocations are based on managsmetgments of qualitative and quantitative fastabout macro and micro economic
conditions reflected within the loan portfolio ati economy. Factors considered in this evaluaticlmde, but are not limited to, probable
losses from loan and other credit arrangementgrgéaconomic conditions, changes in credit comaéinhs or pledged collateral, historical
loan loss experience, and trends in portfolio vayumaturities, composition, delinquencies, and nonals. Historical loss rates for each risk
grade of commercial loans are adjusted by enviroriahdactors to estimate the amount of reserve eg&yg segment. Individually significant
loans require additional analysis such as the l@ars underlying cash flow and capacity for delgaygment, specific business conditions,
and value of secondary sources of repayment; coesdly, this analysis may result in the identifioatof weakness and a corresponding t

for a specific reserve.

Third-party collateral valuations are regularlyabed and evaluated to assist management in detieqrpotential credit impairment and the
amount of impairment to record. Internal collateraluations are generally performed within twodarfweeks of identifying the initial
potential impairment. The internal evaluation conegahe original appraisal to current local re¢éhtesmarket conditions and considers
experience and expected liquidation costs. Whéuir@-party evaluation is received, it is reviewed feasonableness. Once the evaluation is
reviewed and accepted, discounts are applied torfaiket value, based on, but not limited to, datdnical liquidation experience for like
collateral, resulting in an estimated net realigakdlue. The estimated net realizable value is ematpto the outstanding loan balance to
determine the appropriate amount of specific impairt reserve. Specific reserves are generally dedofior impaired loans while third-party
evaluations are in process and for impaired lohasdontinue to make some form of payment. Whil@imgfor receipt of the third-party
appraisal, we regularly review the relationshijdientify any potential adverse developments andrbibg tasks necessary to gain control of
the collateral and prepare it for liquidation, inding, but not limited to, engagement of counsepection of collateral, and continued
communication with the borrower, if appropriate.

Generally, the only difference between current ajged value, adjusted for liquidation costs, arddérrying amount of the loan, less the
specific reserve, is any downward adjustment taaped value that we determine appropriate, sutheasosts to sell the property and a
deflator for the devaluation of property when baaksthe sellers. Impaired loans that do not meeaforementioned criteria and do not have
a specific reserve have typically been written dénough partial chargeffs to net realizable value. Based on prior exgrese, the Compar
rarely returns loans to performing status aftey t@ve been partially charged off. Credits ideetifas impaired move quickly through the
process towards ultimate resolution except in casesdving bankruptcy and various state judiciabgesses, which may extend the time for
ultimate resolution.

An independent third party is used to assist mamage in the determination of the changes in cashig] and the amount of possible
impairment, related to our purchased performing$oand purchased credit impaired (“PCI”) loan poBSI loan pools are evaluated
separately from non-PCl loans in the determinatibiine allowance. See Note 6, “Allowance for Loarses,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in Item 8 of this report.

Business Combination

The Company may engage in business combinatiomsothier companies. In accordance with the acqoisitiethod of accounting, all
identifiable acquired assets, including purchased$, and liabilities are recorded at fair valwsr Falues are subject to refinement for up to
one year after the closing date of the acquisiiadditional information regarding the closingedair values becomes available.
Management makes significant estimates and exsrsigaificant judgment in accounting for businessbinations. Any excess of the
purchase price over the fair value of net assefsised is recorded as goodwill. If the price of Heguired business is less than the net assets
acquired, a gain on the purchase is recorded. Eialaassets and liabilities are typically valuethgsdiscount models that apply current
discount rates to streams of cash flow. Valuation
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methods require the use of assumptions, whiche&suitrin alternate valuations, varying levels obdwill, or bargain purchase gains, and in
some cases amortization expense or accretion inddia@agement must also make estimates for the luseéconomic lives of certain
acquired assets and liabilities. We review the ppased loan portfolio quarterly for changes in démlus and possible impairment using input
provided from an independent third party. Managefsessumptions regarding purchased loans andgiftiEnassets may significantly
influence the allowance for loan losses. See NptA@uisitions, Divestitures, and Branching Actiyi’ and Note 6, “Allowance for Loan
Losses,” to the Consolidated Financial Statementem 8 of this report.

The Company may also engage in FDIC-assisted asitmmbinations. In 2012, we entered into a puchasg assumption agreement with
loss share arrangements with the FDIC to purchadaio assets and assume substantially all ofubtomer deposits and certain liabilities of
Waccamaw. Pursuant to the loss share agreemeatsSDHC agreed to cover 80% of covered assets d¢mtsisf most loan and other real
estate losses. Gains and recoveries on coverets asset prior losses and are reimbursed to thkCRID the loss share percentage at the time
of recovery. The loss share agreement for singiélyecovered assets provides FDIC loss sharingrandvery reimbursement to the FDIC
ten years. The loss share agreement for commemiakred assets provides for FDIC loss sharingieryfears and recovery reimbursemet
the FDIC for eight years. In accordance with thguésition method of accounting, the FDIC indemrafion asset was recorded at fair value
using projected cash flows based on expected regements and the applicable loss share percentgemcur expenses related to covered
assets, and certain of these costs are reimburfsabighe FDIC through monthly and quarterly claiws submit. Estimated reimbursements
from the FDIC are netted against covered expemstiistatements of income. We regularly reviewfdlirevalue of the FDIC

indemnification asset with input from a third-papovider. Post-acquisition adjustments to the mdiication asset are measured on the
same basis as the underlying covered assets. Se&/ N&DIC Indemnification Asset,” to the Consaltdd Financial Statements in Item 8 of
this report.

Intangible Asset:

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase prier the fair value of net assets acquired insingss combination. Goodwill is allocated
to the appropriate reporting unit when acquired.mé&ntain two reporting units, Community Bankingldnsurance Services. Goodwill is
tested annually in the fourth quarter using a gatiie assessment to determine if it is more likbbn not that the fair value of each reporting
unit is less than its carrying amount. Qualitafi@etors may include macroeconomic conditions, itryusnd market considerations, our
overall financial performance, and changes in tagksprice. If we conclude that it is more likehan not that the fair value of either repor
unit is less than its carrying amount, we perfortwastep quantitative goodwill impairment test. Stegphsists of calculating and compar
the fair value of each reporting unit to its camgyiamount, including goodwill. If the fair value afreporting unit is greater than its book va
no goodwill impairment exists. If the carrying ambof a reporting unit is greater than its caloedbfair value, goodwill impairment may
exist and Step 2 is required to determine the atnaiuhe impairment loss.

Core deposit intangible assets represent the femma@ngs potential of acquired deposit relatiopshi hese deposits are amortized over their
estimated remaining useful lives, as determinethbgagement. Other identifiable intangible assétsagrily represent the rights arising from
contractual arrangements and are amortized usagtthight-line method. See Note 9, “Goodwill antiéd Intangible Assets,” to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of téort.

Income Taxes

The establishment of provisions for federal antesitecome taxes is a complex area of accountingnialves the use of judgments and
estimates in applying relevant tax statutes. Weaipen multiple state tax jurisdictions, which végs the appropriate allocation of income
and expense to each state based on a variety oftagypnent or allocation bases. In addition, aulit§ederal and state tax authorities may
reveal liabilities that differ from our estimatesdgprovisions. We continually evaluate our expogangossible tax assessments arising from
audits and record an estimate of possible expdssed on current facts and circumstances.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measurid) @nacted income tax rates applicable to theogdgemporary differences are expected t
realized or settled. As changes in tax laws argbrate enacted, deferred tax assets and liabditeeadjusted through the provision for incc
taxes. When evidence indicates that it is mordyiikegan not that some, or all, of the deferreddaget will not be recovered, the carrying v
of the asset may be reduced by a valuation alloeidncreases or decreases in the valuation allosveesuilt in increases or decreases to the
provision for income taxes. See Note 16, “Incomeebd’ to the Consolidated Financial Statement$amI8 of this report.

Performance Overview

Highlights of our results of operations in 2013 dimdncial condition as of December 31, 2013, idelthe following:
* We repurchased 1,739,601 shares of our common st@&x13.
» The nol-covered loan portfolio increased $15.73 million gawed to year end 201

» Specific reserves in the allowance for loan loskseased $329 thousand, or 5.88%, compared t@epda2012 as a result of resolut
activity on nonperforming loan

» Non-covered nonperforming loans as a percentage alfion-covered loans decreased 10 basis point8T84lcompared to year end
2012.

Results of Operation
Net Income
The following table presents our net income andteel information in the periods indicated:

2013 Compared to 201! 2012 Compared to 201:
Year Ended December 31 Increase % Increase %

(Amounts in thousands, except per share c 2013 2012 2011 (Decrease) Change (Decrease) Change
Net income $23,31: $28,577 $20,02¢ $ (5,26%) -1842% $ 8,54¢ 42.6%
Net income available to commu

shareholder 22,28¢ 27,51¢ 19,32¢ (5,23)) -19.01% 8,19¢ 42.4(%
Basic earnings per common sh 1.13 1.44 1.0¢ (0.3)) -21.5% 0.3¢€ 33.3%
Diluted earings per common shi 1.11 1.4C 1.07 (0.29) -20.71% 0.3t 30.84%
Return on average ass 0.8%% 1.1(% 0.88% -0.2€% -23.62% 0.22% 25.0(%
Return on average common eqt 6.57% 8.7(% 6.81% -2.1% -24.48% 1.8% 27.7"%

2013 Compared to 2012Net income decreased in 2013 due to net amaddizetlated to the FDIC indemnification asset, rearéased
provision for loan losses, a one-time contracteaksance payment, and a decrease in other openatiogne resulting from an out-of-period
adjustment in 2012. These decreases were offsatrégluction in merger related expenses and a éddliimterest expense on deposits and
borrowings.

During our core system conversion in 2012, we disoed that certain loan charge-offs reported inrgperiods, beginning in 2007, were
overstated due to not recognizing the impact @ragt payments that had been applied to principdbfins on nonaccrual status. The
overstated charge-offs resulted in an overstatedigion for loan losses and corresponding undedtpte-tax income. Annual ptax income
was understated $938 thousand in 2011, $639 thdus&010, and $321 thousand in 2009. Charge-offi®wverstated $2.39 million
between 2007 and 2011. Management analyzed theaadetermined that prior years were not matgnmisstated and correcting the error
in 2012 would not materially misstate 2012 resW& recorded a $2.39 million increase (“out-of-pdradjustment”) to other income in 2012
to correct the understatement of pre-tax income.

2012 Compared to 201INet income increased in 2012 due to a significaetin loan interest income from the Peoples\Atagtcamaw
acquisitions, a reduced provision for loan lossedgcrease in interest expense on deposits, aindraase in other operating income resulting
from the out-of-period adjustment. These increases
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were offset by the recognition of merger expensas the Peoples and Waccamaw acquisitions, a dexirdhe net gain on sale of
securities, and an increase in salaries and emplogeefits resulting from the expanded branch nétwo

Net Interest Incom

Net interest income, our largest contributor taneags, comprised 75.48% of total net interest amnimterest income in 2013, 71.04%

2012, and 66.96% in 2011. For the following disaussnet interest income is presented on a taxvadgnt basis to provide a comparison
among all types of interest earning assets. Thedaxalent basis adjusts for the tax-favored stafuncome from certain loans and
investments. Although non-GAAP, management beli¢ghissfinancial measure is more widely used infthancial services industry and
provides better comparability of net interest ineoanising from taxable and tax-exempt sources. Béethis non-GAAP financial measure to
monitor net interest income performance and matia@eomposition of our balance sheet. The followaige presents our average
consolidated balance sheets in the periods indicate

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Average Average Average
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Interest Yield/
(Amounts in thousand Balance Interest () Rate (1) Balance Interest ) Rate @) Balance @) Rate @)
Assets
Earning assel
Loans @ $1,699,61. $ 96,76¢ 5.6¢% $1,611,55 $ 96,80 6.01% $1,382,09 $80,74: 5.84%
Securities available for
sale 543,69 15,18 2.7% 502,41¢ 15,17( 3.02% 434,58, 15,77* 3.65%
Securities held to
maturity 667 54 8.1(% 2,622 171 6.52% 3,99¢ 333 8.32%
Interes-bearing deposit 63,56¢ 211 0.3:% 77,85 25¢ 0.32% 116,06: 28t 0.25%
Total earning asse 2,307,54. $112,21° 4.86% 2,194,441 $112,40: 5.12% 1,936,74. $97,13: 5.01%
Other asset 354,05¢ 316,48! 258,89°
Total asset $2,661,60; $2,510,93. $2,195,63!
Liabilities
Interes-bearing deposit
Demand deposil $ 361,97¢ $ 24C 0.07% $ 306,01¢ $  18E 0.06% $ 277,26! $ 431 0.1€%
Savings deposil 516,24 584 0.11% 471,40¢ 55€ 0.12% 410,24( 88¢ 0.22%
Time deposit: 772,74: 7,99¢ 1.04% 776,90. 9,231 1.1% 682,99° 11,47 1.68%
Total interes-bearing deposit  1,650,96° 8,82: 0.5% 1,554,32 9,97 0.64% 1,370,500 12,78¢ 0.9%%
Borrowings
Federal funds purchas 632 2 0.32% 49C 2 0.41% 77 — 0.0(%
Retail repurchase
agreement 69,14 26& 0.3¢% 78,60¢ 44¢ 0.57% 83,56¢ 544 0.65%
Wholesale repurchase
agreement 53,11¢ 1,89( 3.5€% 55,16: 2,02¢ 3.61% 50,00( 1,887 3.71%
FHLB advances and
other borrowingt 168,39¢ 6,85/ 4.07% 175,33: 7,15¢ 4.08% 168,98t 6,92¢ 4.10%
Total borrowings 291,29( 9,011 3.0% 309,59 9,62¢ 3.11% 302,62¢ 9,35¢ 3.0%%

Total interes-bearing liabilities  1,942,25 17,83« 0.92% 1,863,92 19,60( 1.02% 1,673,120 22,14 1.32%
Noninteres-bearing demand

deposits 342,91¢ 286,95( 223,23
Other liabilities 20,81¢ 25,16( 4,127
Total liabilities 2,305,99 2,176,083 1,900,48!
Stockholder' equity 355,61: 334,90 295,15(
Total liabilities and equit $2,661,60: $2,510,93. $2,195,63!
Net interest income, te
equivalent $ 94,38: $ 92,80: $74,98¢
Net interest rate sprei® 3.94% 4.07% 3.6%
Net interest margi® 4.0% 4.2% 3.87%
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(1) Fully taxable equivalent at the rate of 35%1(E?). The FTE basis adjusts for the tax benefitthabme on certain tax exempt loans and
investments using the federal statutory rate of 3&%&ach period presented. The Company believesithasure to be the preferred
industry measurement of net interest income andiges relevant comparison between taxable and rabka amounts

(2) Nonaccrual loans are included in average balangessamding but with no related interest income myithe period of nonaccrui

(3) Represents the difference between the yield orireaassets and cost of fun

The following table presents the impact on tax egleint net interest income resulting from changesiume, the average volume times the
prior year's average rate; rate, the average iratstthe prior year’s average volume; and ratefeluthe average volume column times the
change in average rate, in the periods indicated:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2013 Compared to 2012 December 31, 2012 Compared to 2011
Dollar Increase (Decrease) due to Dollar Increase (Decrease) due to
Rate/ Rate/

(Amounts in thousand Volume Rate Volume Total Volume Rate Volume Total
Interest earned c®:

Loans 5,29z (5,157 (170 (35 13,40: 2,34¢ 311 16,06:

Securities available for sa 1,24¢ (1,159 (77) 14 2,46: (2,65)) (41¢€) (60%)

Securities held to maturi (127) 41 (32 (117) (115) (72) 25 (162)

Interes-bearing deposits with other bar (47) — (D) (48) (95) 93 (24) (26)
Total interes-earning asse! 6,36¢ (6,277 (279) (18€) 15,65! (2817) (104) 15,26¢
Interest paid o®;

Demand deposil 33 31 9 55 4€ (277) (15) (24¢€)

Savings deposil 54 47 21 28 134 (410 (54) (330

Time deposit: (500 (1,16 a7 (1,239 1,57¢ (3,347) (471 (2,240)

Federal funds purchas — — — — — — 2 2

Retail repurchase agreeme (59) (149 19 (184) (32 (67) 4 (95)

Wholesale repurchase agreeme (75) (62) 3 (133 19t (50) 9 13€

FHLB advances and other Borrowin (282) (18) — (300 26( (39 — 22¢€
Total interes-bearing liabilities (374 (1,409 17 (1,76€) 2,181 (4,185 (542) (2,547)
Change in net interest income, tax equiva 6,73¢ (4,867) (296) 1,58( $13,47: $3,90¢/ $ 43¢ $17,81¢

(1) Fully taxable equivalent at the rate of 3t

The following table reconciles the differences betw net interest income under GAAP and net intémestme on a tax equivalent basis in
periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012 2011

Net interest income, GAAP ba: $91,64: $90,05¢ $72,02¢
Tax equivalent adjustme® 2,741 2,747 2,95¢
Net interest income, tax equivale $94,38! $92,80: $74,98¢

(1) Fully taxable equivalent at the rate of 35%TE=). The FTE basis adjusts for the tax benefit;mnabme on certain tax exempt loans and
investments using the federal statutory rate of 3&%&ach period presented. We believe this medsuhe preferred industry
measurement of net interest income and providesaat comparison between taxable and nontaxable i
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Interest and yield on loans include accretion inedrom the Peoples and Waccamaw acquired loangtiodf We expect the purchase
accounting interest accretion to continue to dedimfuture periods due to acquired portfolio #tiri. The following table presents net intel
margin and related average balance sheet informaxoluding the impact of purchase accounting dicerén the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Average Average Average
(Amounts in thousand Interest (1) R\gt?ald(/l) Interest () Rgteeld{l) Ints(*{)est R\gt?ald/l
Earning assel
Loans @ $ 96,76¢ 56% $ 96,80 6.01%  $80,74: 5.84%
Accretion income 14,72¢ 12,87: —
Less: cash accretion incor 7,02: 4,15¢ —
Non-cash accretion incorr 7,70% 8,71 —
Loans, excluding nc-cash accretio 89,06¢ 5.24% 88,09( 5.47% 80,74 5.84%
Other earning asse 15,44¢ 2.54% 15,60( 2.68% 16,39 2.9%
Total earning asse 104,51« 4.52% 103,69( 4.7% 97,13t 5.01%
Total interes-bearing liabilities 17,83¢ 0.92% 19,60( 1.05% 22,14’ 1.32%
Net interest income, tax equivale $ 86,68( $ 84,09( $74,98¢
Net interest rate sprea®, less no-cash accretio 3.61% 3.61% 3.65%
Net interest margi @, less no-cash accretio 3.7¢% 3.82% 3.87%

(1) Fully taxable equivalent at the rate of 35%TE=). The FTE basis adjusts for the tax benefit;mnabme on certain tax exempt loans and
investments using the federal statutory rate of 3&@&ach period presented. The Company believssrthasure to be the preferred
industry measurement of net interest income andiges relevant comparison between taxable and rabta amounts

(2) Nonaccrual loans are included in average balangessamding but with no related interest income myithe period of nonaccrui

(3) Represents the difference between the yield ornreaassets and cost of funi

(4) Represents tax equivalent net interest income ety average earning ass:

2013 Compared to 2012\Net interest income under GAAP increased $1.9Bomj or 1.76%, and tax equivalent net interesbme increase
$1.58 million, or 1.70%, in 2013. Changes in therage balances of and yields/rates on earningsaasdtinterest-bearing liabilities resulted
in a 13 basis point decrease in the net interéstsiread and a 14 basis point decrease in thistasgtst margin.

Loan interest accretion stemming from the Peoptes\dlaccamaw acquisitions totaled $14.73 millio2@13 and $12.87 million in 2012.
Interest accretion income received in cash tot&led2 million in 2013 and $4.16 million in 2012.dixding non-cash accretion income, the
yield on loans decreased 23 basis points in 20b&hwcompares to a decrease of 31 basis pointy GWAP. Excluding no-cash accretion
income, the net interest margin decreased 7 basissgn 2013, which compared to a decrease ofabistpoints under GAAP. We expect the
effect of accretion income on acquired loans tasibaificantly less in future periods.

Average earning assets increased $113.10 millios,1%%, in 2013 primarily resulting from a fullareimpact of the increased loan portfolio
from the Peoples and Waccamaw acquisitions anddoanth in our non-acquired portfolio. The yield earning assets decreased 26 basis
points in 2013, which was largely due to a 32 bpseist decrease in the yield on loans, due to tmicued low rate environment, and a 23
basis point decrease in the yield on availablesfde securities, due to new investment and reimesst of sales proceeds, maturities,
prepayments, and cash in lower yielding securifdssof December 31, 2013, other earning assets
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included held-to-maturity securities, that contidue decline as they were called or matured andepéaced, and interest-bearing deposits
with banks, primarily comprised of excess liquidigpt at the Federal Reserve Bank (“FRB”) of Richohbearing overnight market rates.

As of December 31, 2013, interest-bearing lialeditincluded interest-bearing deposits; federal$yndchased; retail repurchase agreements,
consisting of collateralized retail deposits anthomercial treasury accounts; wholesale repurchaseawents; Federal Home Loan Bank
(“FHLB") advances; and other borrowings. Averageiast-bearing liabilities increased $78.34 million4.20%, in 2013 primarily resulting
from a full year impact of the increased depositfptio from the Peoples and Waccamaw acquisitidime yield on interedbearing liabilities
decreased 13 basis points in 2013, which was ladyed to an 11 basis point decrease in the rateterest-bearing deposits. Average interest-
bearing deposits increased $96.64 million, or 6.2202013. Average interest-bearing demand depisiteased $55.96 million, or 18.29%,
and savings deposits, which include money marketatts and savings accounts, increased $44.840mibr 9.51%, in 2013 while average
time deposits decreased $4.16 million. Averagedvaings decreased $18.30 million, or 5.91%, in 2@t@ely due to the prepayment of

FHLB borrowings of $11.47 million and wholesale ueghase agreements of $8.15 million acquired froec®dmaw.

2012 Compared to 2011Net interest income under GAAP increased $18.08m or 25.03%, and tax equivalent net intefiesbme
increased $17.82 million, or 23.76%, in 2012. Cleanig the average balances of and yields/ratesiming assets and interest-bearing
liabilities resulted in a 38 basis points increisthe net interest rate spread and a 36 basis jpgirease in the net interest margin in 2012.

Loan interest accretion from the Peoples and Waawaatquisitions totaled $12.87 million in 2012 dfieh $4.16 million was received in
cash. Excluding non-cash accretion income, thealyelloans decreased 37 basis points in 2012, vductpares to an increase of 17 basis
points under GAAP. Excluding non-cash accretiomime, the net interest margin decreased 4 basissgai2012, which compared to an
increase of 36 basis points under GAAP.

Average earning assets increased $257.70 millioh331%, in 2012 primarily resulting from loangjared from Peoples and Waccamaw.
The yield on earning assets increased 11 basisspioi2012, which was largely due to a 17 basistaacrease in the yield on loans, due to
the effect of interest accretion on acquired loaffset by a 61 basis point decrease in the yialdailable-for-sale securities, due to new
investment and reinvestment of proceeds from salafiyjrities, prepayments, and cash in lower yigidiecurities. As of December 31, 2012,
other earning assets included held-to-maturity seesi and interest-bearing deposits with banksymadsed primarily of excess liquidity kept
at the FRB bearing overnight market rates.

Average interesbearing liabilities increased $190.79 million, dr40%, in 2012 primarily resulting from liabilitiessumed from Peoples ¢
Waccamaw. The yield on interdstaring liabilities decreased 27 basis points it22@vhich was largely due to a 29 basis point des@én th
rate on interest-bearing deposits, primarily tinepabits, as a result of the sustained low rateremwient. As of December 31, 2012, other
interest-bearing liabilities included federal furmgchased; retail repurchase agreements, corsisticollateralized retail deposits and
commercial treasury accounts; wholesale repurcagseements; FHLB advances; and other borrowings.dBerease in the average balance
of retail repurchase agreements was primarily ddewer balances in commercial treasury accountisérslow economy, which were sligh
offset by the Peoples and Waccamaw acquisitions.

Provision for Loan Losse

The provision for loan losses is the amount addetig allowance for loan losses after net chaffEehave been deducted in order to bring
allowance to a level management determines negessabsorb probable losses in the existing loatf@m. The provision charged to
operations was increased by $2.53 million in 20d@pared to 2012 due to a significant increasean lcharge-offs, primarily attributable to
losses created by the
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sale of four problem loans totaling $2.64 milli@md providing a provision for the acquired PCI fmit. The provision attributed to PCI
loans was $755 thousand in 2013, of which $296gh0d was charged to operations and $451 thousamdewarded through the FDIC
indemnification asset to reflect the indemnifiedtjmm of the post-acquisition exposure. The pranistharged to operations was reduced by
$3.37 million in 2012 compared to 2011 primarilyedo a continued general downward trend in nonealeet charge-offs. No provision
was recorded for PCI loans in 2012. See “Allowafucd_oan Losses” in the “Financial Condition” sextibelow.

Noninterest Incom

Noninterest income consists of all revenues nduiged in interest and fee income related to earassgts. Noninterest income compri
24.52% of total net interest and noninterest incam2013, 28.96% in 2012, and 33.04% in 2011. Tiewing table presents the
components of, and changes in, noninterest incortteei periods indicated:

2013 Compared to 201. 2012 Compared to 201.
Year Ended December 31 Increase Increase

(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012 2011 (Decrease % Change (Decrease % Change
Wealth management $ 3412 $3,701 $351C $ (289 -7.81% $ 191 5.44%
Service charges on deposit accol 13,55¢ 14,06: 13,23¢ (505) -3.5% 82t 6.25%
Other service charges and ft 7,151 6,462 5,72z 68¢ 10.6€% 74C 12.9%%
Insurance commissiot 5,93: 5,74: 6,197 19C 3.31% (459 -7.3%
Net impairment los (320) (942) (2,28%) 622 -66.02% 1,34 -58.71%
Net gain on sale of securiti 39¢ 482 5,26¢ (84 -17.3% (4,787 -90.82%
Net FDIC indemnification ass -

(amortization) accretio (5,59%) 45¢ — (6,05%) 1322.0'% 45¢ —
Other operating incom 5,23¢ 6,742 3,88¢ (1,50%) -22.3"% 2,854 73.41%
Noninterest incom $29,77:  $36,71(  $3553¢  $ (6,939 -189(% $ 1,17¢ 3.31%

2013 Compared to 201Noninterest income decreased $6.94 million, 080%, in 2013. Wealth management revenues, whidhde fees
and commissions for trust and investment adviseryises, decreased as a result of the departurertzin employees at FCWM. Other
service charges and fees increased primarily frarviAee income. We incurred OTTI charges of $32Quand in 2013 compared to $942
thousand in 2012, related to a non-Agency mortdaysed security (“MBS”), and realized a net gaii$899 thousand on the sale of
securities. See Note 3, “Investment Securitiesth®Consolidated Financial Statements in Item ®isfreport. We recorded net amortization
related to the FDIC indemnification asset of $51@ibion as a result of improved loss estimateshe tovered Waccamaw loan portfolio.
Other operating income decreased in 2013 primdrily to the out-of-period adjustment in 2012 thaitpeely impacted income. Excluding
the out-of-period adjustment, other operating ineantreased $888 thousand, or 20.43%, in 2013iffignt components of other operating
income also included a loyalty incentive from adkparty vendor of $353 thousand, increases in divddenome of $327 thousand, a net ¢
on debt prepayments of $296 thousand, and a decireasntal income of $209 thousand.

Excluding the impact from OTTI charges, the nengai the sale of securities, the net accretion/timation on the FDIC indemnification
asset, the net gain on debt prepayments, and thef-period adjustment, noninterest income incrdg&@77 thousand, or 1.97%, to $34.99
million in 2013 compared with $34.32 million in 201

2012 Compared to 201INoninterest income increased $1.18 million, &1%6, in 2012. Wealth management revenues increasetb
income from FCWM. Service charges on deposit acisoaind other service charges and fees increasadnilsi from fees and ATM income
related to the Waccamaw acquisition. Insurance ciesions decreased in 2012 due to lower profit-sigagtommissions from our carriers in
the first quarter of
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2012 and higher loss experience on our custorpeigiies. Further, commissions in 2012 excludedittgact from agency offices sold as |
of a strategic realignment during the third quaofe2011. We incurred OTTI charges of $942 thousarzD12 compared to $2.29 million in
2011, related to a non-Agency MBS, and realizedtagain of $483 thousand on the sale of securiies.Note 3, “Investment Securities,” to
the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item ®Bisfreport. We recorded net accretion relateth¢oRDIC indemnification asset of $458
thousand to recognize loss estimates in the cowdtartamaw loan portfolio. Other operating incon@éased in 2012 primarily from the
out-of-period adjustment to correct understatedtgxencome in prior periods. Excluding the outpafriod adjustment, other operating
income increased $459 thousand, or 11.81%, in 2Biificant components of other operating incose included gains related to
insurance agency sales of $365 thousand and mebgahe sale of certain fixed assets of $203 twods

Excluding the impact from OTTI charges, the nehgai the sale of securities, the net accretiorherFDIC indemnification asset, and the
out-of-period adjustment, noninterest income inseea$1.76 million, or 5.41%, to $34.32 million 812 compared with $32.56 million in
2011.

Noninterest Expens
The following table presents the components of,@rahges in, noninterest expense in the periodsatet!:

2013 Compared to 201. 2012 Compared to 201.
Year Ended December 31 Increase Increase

(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012 2011 (Decrease % Change (Decrease % Change
Salaries and employee benefits $41,23¢ $38,66 $34,12¢ $ 2,56¢ 6.620 $ 4,541 13.31%
Occupancy of bank premis 7,03: 6,872 6,28( 161 2.32% 592 9.4%
Furniture and equipme 4,96¢ 4,14¢ 3,49( 821 19.81% 655 18.71%
Amortization of intangible asse 72¢ 804 1,02( (75) -9.32% (21€) -21.18%
FDIC premiums and assessme 1,715 1,612 1,98¢ 10t 6.51% (372 -18.7%%
FHLB debt prepaymer — — 471 — — (477) -100.0(%
Merger related expen: 56 5,09z — (5,037%) -98.9(% 5,09¢ —
Goodwill impairment — — 1,23¢ — — (1,239 -100.0(%
Other operating expen: 23,24 21,19( 20,30¢ 2,05¢ 9.72% 88t 4.36%
Total noninterest expen: $78,98¢ $78,38:  $68,91¢ $ 60z 0.71% $ 9,46¢ 13.7%%

2013 Compared to 201Noninterest expense increased $602 thousand7@¥d) in 2013. Salaries and employee benefits @se@ largely
from a one-time charge to accrue for contractuatative severance of $1.07 million. Exclusive @& ffeverance charge, salaries and
employee benefits increased $1.50 million, or 3.8E%¥ployee benefits included increases in medixpérse of $735 thousand, incentive
stock compensation expense of $368 thousand, &énelment plan expense of $342 thousand. Salari@eamployee benefits attributed to the
Peoples and Waccamaw acquisitions totaled $5.0®mih 2013, which represents an increase of $ifffon compared to 2012. Full-time
equivalent employees, calculated using the numbeowrs worked, totaled 729 as of December 31, 26d@pared to 760 as of

December 31, 2012. Occupancy, furniture, and egeippraxpense increased $982 thousand, or 8.91991i8, #vhich included increased
depreciation costs in connection with the Waccaraeguisition and core operating system of $856 thodsWe incurred merger related ¢
of $56 thousand in 2013 compared to $5.09 millim2012 in connection with the Peoples and Waccaatwisitions. The increase in other
operating expense included charges related to smheduled branch closures/consolidations of $thiiibn, slated to occur during the first
half of 2014, and a net loss on sales and expams€REO of $2.04 million in 2013 compared to $1n@fion in 2012. Significant
components of other operating expense also includgdases in legal fees of $469 thousand, incerstiock compensation expense to
directors of $158 thousand, and communication esgeof $157 thousand.
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2012 Compared to 201INoninterest expense increased $9.47 million,3074% in 2012. Salaries and employee benefits ase
significantly as a result of the partial year imipfom the Peoples and Waccamaw acquisitions casublduring the second quarter of 2012,
which accounted for an increase in salaries and@rap benefits of $3.80 million. Employee benefitsluded increases in incentive
compensation costs of $1.94 million and Supplemdntacutive Retention Plan expense of $379 thousahide medical insurance expenses
decreased $1.56 million, due to lower claims, agféided $349 thousand less in direct loan origimatiosts, due to lower origination
volumes. Full-time equivalent employees totaled @a8®f December 31, 2012, compared to 633 as aéieer 31, 2011. The Peoples and
Waccamaw acquisitions added 101 full-time equiviadenployees. Occupancy, furniture, and equipmepéese increased $1.25 million, or
12.76%, primarily as a result of the expanded Hraretwork associated with the Peoples and Waccamguisitions. FDIC premiums and
assessments decreased as a result of modificatitims FDICs assessment methodology. We incurred merger detatgs of $5.09 million
2012 in connection with the Peoples and Waccamawisitions. The increase in other operating expeveeprimarily attributed to our
expanded branch network and legal expense, comguées, and travel related expenses incurreceiftaccamaw acquisition. Significant
components of other operating expense also incligdases in other service fees of $559 thousafide supplies expense of $466
thousand, and legal expenses of $348 thousandhwiece offset by a decrease in advertising expenfs$862 thousand. The net loss on
sales and expenses on OREO totaled $1.89 milli@d18 compared to $3.08 million in 2012.

Income Tax Expen:

2013 Compared to 2012ncome tax as a percentage of pretax income ragysignificantly from statutory rates due to peneat

differences, which are items of income and expexstuded by law from the calculation of taxableam®. Our most significant permanent
differences generally include interest income omitipal securities, which are exempt from fedenabime tax, and increases in the cash
surrender value of officers’ life insurance pol&iéncome tax expense decreased $3.22 million2at9%6, and the effective rate decreased
121 basis points to 31.88% in 2013. The decreawieffective tax rate was largely due to a desméa taxable revenues as a percent of net
earnings.

2012 Compared to 2011ncome tax increased $4.56 million, or 47.63%d tre effective rate increased 74 basis point8t68% in 2012.
The increase in the effective tax rate was lardely to an increase in taxable revenues as a partreat earnings and a decrease in the
relative amounts of nontaxable revenues.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

The efficiency ratio is a non-GAAP financial measthiat management believes provides investorsimpiortant information about our
operating expense control and efficiency of operati Management also believes this ratio focuseatain on our core operating
performance over time and is highly useful in cormgaperiod-to-period operating performance of dousiness operations. However, this
measure is supplemental and is not a substitut@fa@nalysis of performance based on GAAP measigsefficiency may not be
comparable to efficiency ratios reported by otlwearicial institutions.

Our efficiency ratio is computed by dividing adg@dtoninterest expense by the sum of tax equivaletinterest income and adjusted
noninterest income. Adjusted noninterest expenskidgs expenses and losses related to other teté esvned (‘OREO”), which may vary
significantly from period to period without substiaily affecting operations, and other non-corenmeaurring items. Noninterest income
excludes securities gains and losses, which maysignificantly from period to period without substially affecting operations; OTTI
charges; and other non-core, nonrecurring items.n@n-GAAP efficiency ratio measure is differerdrfr the GAAP-based efficiency ratio
calculation that uses noninterest expense and iadoym the consolidated statements of income.
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The following table presents GAAP and non-GAAPa@éincy ratio components and calculations in théopdandicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012 2011
GAAP-based efficiency ratia
Noninterest expens $ 78,98t $ 78,38! $ 68,91¢
Net interest income plus noninterest incc 121,412 126,76t 107,56:
GAAP-based efficiency rati 65.05% 61.8% 64.01%
Non-GAAP efficiency ratio
Noninterest expens $ 78,98t $ 78,38 $ 68,91¢
Non-GAAP adjustments
Merger related expen: (56) (5,099 —
FHLB debt prepayment fe: — — (477)
OREO expense and net Ic (2,039 (1,899 (3,08))
Goodwill impairment — — (1,239
Branch closure/consolidation expet (1,520 — —
Other noi-core, norrecurring expense iten (1,180 — )
Total nor-GAAP adjustment (4,799 (6,986 (4,86¢)
Adjusted noninterest expen 74,19: 71,39; 64,04
Net interest income plus noninterest incc 121,41: 126,76t 107,56:
Non-GAAP adjustments
Tax equivalency adjustme 2,741 2,747 2,95¢
Net impairment losses recognized in earni 32C 942 2,28t
Net gain on sale of securiti (399 (482) (5,264
Net gain on debt prepayme (29¢) — —
Prospective correction of prior period understatn — (2,395 —
Other noi-core, nor-recurring income item — — (18)
Total nor-GAAP adjustment 2,36¢ 811 (38)
Adjusted net interest income plus noninterest ing 123,77¢ 127,57 107,52!
Non-GAAP efficiency ratic 59.94% 55.96% 59.56%

Financial Condition

Total assets were $2.60 billion as of Decembef813, a decrease of $126.35 million, or 4.63%, camexb with $2.73 billion as of
December 31, 2012. Total liabilities were $2.2Tidwl as of December 31, 2013, a decrease of $98ilidn, or 4.16%, compared with $2.37
billion as of December 31, 2012. Our book valuegseconverted common share was $16.79 as of Dece8hp2013, an increase of $0.03,
compared to December 31, 2012.

Investment Securitie

Available-forsale securities as of December 31, 2013, decrédge84 million, or 2.72%, compared to December2B1L,2. The market valt
of securities available-for-sale as a percentagaairtized cost was 95.97% as of December 31, 2iBpared to 99.92% as of
December 31, 2012. The average life of the podfaias 7.53 years as of December 31, 2013, compara@5 years as of December 31,
2012. The duration of the portfolio was 6.40 yess®f December 31, 2013, compared to 6.14 yeasEBscember 31, 2012.

Held-to-maturity securities as of December 31, 2@Ereased $248 thousand, or 30.39%, comparedderiiber 31, 2012. Investment
securities classified as held to maturity are casepr primarily of high grade municipal bonds. Tharket value of securities held to maturity
as a percentage of amortized cost was 101.94%Bsas#mber 31, 2013, compared with 101.96% as oédber 31, 2012.
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Investment securities are reviewed quarterly farsgme OTTI. The review includes an analysis offdets and circumstances of each
individual investment such as the length of time féir value has been below cost, timing and amotiobntractual cash flows, the
expectation for that security’s performance, treditivorthiness of the issuer, and our intent tallibé security to recovery or maturity. If a
decline in value is determined to be other-thangermary, the value of the security is reduced andreesponding charge to noninterest
income is recognized. If a debt security is detagdito be other-thatemporarily impaired, we determine the amount efithpairment due
credit, recognized in earnings, and the amountdw¢her factors, recognized in other comprehenisiveme.

We recognized credit-related OTTI charges in egsassociated with debt securities beneficially @dvaf $320 thousand in 2013 and $942
thousand in 2012. These charges were related do-@gency MBS. Temporary impairment on the non-AgelBS is primarily related to
changes in interest rates. We recognized no imgaiticharges on equity securities during 2013 o228&e Note 3, “Investment Securities,”
to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Iteofi tBis report.

The following table details the amortized cost &idvalue of investment securities as of the datdgated:

December 31

2013 2012 2011
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair

(Amounts in thousand Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
Available for Sale
U.S. Treasury securitie $ 9,70¢ $ 9,01 $ — $ — $ — $ —
Municipal securitie: 147,04 144,28 151,11¢ 159,21 131,49¢ 137,81!
Single issue trust preferred secur 55,76¢ 46,23¢ 55,70" 44,64¢ 55,64¢ 40,24+
Corporate securitie 5,00( 4,871 — — — —
Corporate FDIC insured securiti — — — — 13,68¢ 13,71¢
Mortgage¢backed securitie:

Agency 306,31¢ 300,38t 310,32: 315,89° 274,38: 280,10:

Non-Agency All-A residential 12,54: 9,78¢ 14,21°¢ 11,06 15,98( 10,03(
Total mortgag-backed securitie 318,86: 310,17¢ 324,53t 326,96 290,36 290,13:
Equity securities 5,25¢ 5,24 3,44¢ 3,531 41¢ 521

Total available for sal $541,64: $519,82( $534,81( $534,35¢( $491,61' $482,43(

Held to Maturity
States and political subdivisio $ 5668 $ 57¢ $ B8l $ 832z $ 349 $ 3,53
Total held to maturit $ 568 $ 57¢ $ 8l $ 83z $ 349 $ 3,53

Loans Held for Sal

Loans held for sale as of December 31, 2013, deece$5.79 million, or 86.77%, compared to Decenie2012. Loans held for sale con:
of mortgage loans sold on a best efforts basisthesecondary loan market; accordingly, we doretaiin the interest rate risk involved in
these long-term commitments. The gross notionalernof outstanding commitments related to secondaasket mortgage loans as of
December 31, 2013, was $3.68 million for 19 loamsigared to $14.84 million for 88 loans as of Decengd, 2012.

Loans Held for Investme

Loans held for investment as of December 31, 26&8reased $13.93 million, or 0.83%, compared tcebdser 31, 2012. The decrease was
due to runoff in the Waccamaw loan portfolio coxkomder the FDIC loss share agreements. The noeredvoan portfolio increased $41.49
million, or 2.73%, compared to December 31, 201 &verage loan to deposit ratio was 85.24% foyéae ended December 31, 2013,
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compared to 87.52% for the same period of 2012.I@ams held for investment are grouped into theggrents (commercial loans, consumer
real estate loans, and consumer and other loatispath segment divided into various classes. @oMeans are defined as loans acquired in
FDIC-assisted transactions that are covered bysloage agreements. There were no covered loansetdt62. The held for investment
portfolio continues to be diversified among loapdy and industry segments. See Note 4, “Lodadlie Consolidated Financial Statement
Item 8 of this report.

The following table presents loans, net of uneainedme with non-covered loans disaggregated Issckas of the periods indicated. There
were no covered loans prior to 2012.

December 31
(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Non-covered loans held for investme
Commercial loan

Construction, development, and other I $ 35,25¢ $ 57,43¢ $ 61,76¢ $ 83,81 $ 102,86
Commercial and industri 95,45¢ 88,73¢ 91,93¢ 94,12 95,11¢
Multi-family residentia 70,19: 65,69¢ 77,05( 67,82« 65,60z
Single family no-owner occupiet 135,55¢ 135,91. 106,74 104,96( 109,53.
Non-farm, nor-residentia 475,91: 448,81( 336,00! 351,90: 343,97!
Agricultural 2,32¢ 1,70¢ 1,37 1,34: 1,251
Farmland 32,61 34,57( 37,16 36,95 41,03
Total commercial loan 847,31! 832,86° 712,04( 740,91¢ 759,37"
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line! 111,77¢ 111,08: 111,38 111,62( 111,59°
Single family owner occupie 496,01: 473,54° 473,06 444,19 436,23t
Owner occupied constructic 28,70:¢ 16,22 19,57" 18,34¢ 22,02¢
Total consumer real estate lo¢ 636,48! 600,85: 604,03: 574,16t 569,86
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 71,31 78,16: 67,12¢ 63,47¢ 60,09(
Other 3,92¢ 5,66¢ 12,86" 7,64¢ 4,601
Total consumer and other loa 75,23¢ 83,82¢ 79,99¢ 71,12 64,69
Non-covered loans held for investme 1,559,033 1,517,54 1,396,06 1,386,20! 1,393,93.
Covered loan 151,68: 207,10¢ — — —
Less unearned incon — — — — —
Total loans held for investme 1,710,72. 1,724,65: 1,396,06 1,386,20! 1,393,93.
Allowance for loan losse 24,07% 25,77( 26,20¢ 26,48: 24,27
Total loans held for investment, less allowa $1,686,64- $1,698,88. $1,369,386. $1,359,72. $1,369,65:
Loans held for sal $ 882 $ 6,677 $ 5,82 $ 4,69« $ 11,57¢
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The following table presents covered loans disagggesl by class as of the periods indicated:

December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other I; $ 15,86¢ $ 26,59t
Commercial and industri 3,32t 6,94¢
Multi-family residentia 1,93 2,611
Single family no-owner occupiet 7,44¢ 11,42¢
Non-farm, nor-residentia 34,64¢ 48,56¢
Agricultural 164 144
Farmland 873 1,091
Total commercial loan 64,25¢ 97,38:
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line! 69,20¢ 81,44¢
Single family owner occupie 16,91¢ 22,96
Owner occupied constructic 1,18¢ 1,64+
Total consumer real estate lo: 87,30¢ 106,05(
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 11¢ 3,67¢
Other = R
Total consumer and other loz 11€ 3,67¢
Total covered loan $151,68: $207,10¢
The following tables details the percentage of $omtotal loans, by loan class, as of the perindigated:
December 31
2012
Non-coverec Coverec Total Non-coverec Coverec Total
Commercial loan
Construction, development,and other I 2% 1% 3% 3% 2% 5%
Commercial and industri 6% 0% 6% 5% 1% 6%
Multi-family residentia 4% 0% 4% 4% 0% 4%
Single family no-owner occupiet 8% 0% 8% 8% 0% 8%
Non-farm, nor-residentia 28% 2% 30% 26% 3% 2%
Agricultural 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Farmland 2% 0% 2% 2% 0% 2%
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line! 6% 5% 11% 6% 5% 11%
Single family owner occupie 29% 1% 30% 28% 1% 29%
Owner occupied constructic 2% 0% 2% 1% 0% 1%
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 4% 0% 4% 5% 0% 5%
Other 0% 0% _ 0% 0% 0% _ 0%
Total loans 91% 9% 10C% 88% 12% 10C%
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December 31

2011 2010 2009

Commercial loan

Construction, development,and other I 4% 6% 7%

Commercial and industri 7% 7% 7%

Multi-family residentia 6% 5% 5%

Single family no-owner occupiet 8% 8% 8%

Non-farm, nor-residentia 24% 25% 25%

Agricultural 0% 0% 0%

Farmlanc 3% 3% 3%
Consumer real estate loe

Home equity line! 8% 8% 8%

Single family owner occupie 34% 32% 31%

Owner occupied constructic 1% 1% 2%
Consumer and other loa

Consumer loan 5% 5% 4%

Other 0% 0% 0%
Total loans 10C% 10C% 10C%

We lend primarily in the five-state region in whiate operate. We maintained no foreign loans andneddan concentrations to any one
borrower that represented 10% or more of outstanidians as of December 31, 2013 or 2012.

As of December 31, 2013, non-covered commercialdammprised 54.35% of the non-covered loan pastf@ommercial and industrial
loans include loans to small to mid-size industigammercial, and service companies that includeake not limited to, natural gas
producers, automobile dealers, and retail and velatdemerchants. Commercial real estate projectssept a variety of sectors of the
commercial real estate market, including singleifpand apartment lessors, commercial real estssolrs, and hotel/motel operators.
Commercial loan underwriting standards require tioaprehensive reviews and independent evaluatieqmerformed on credits exceeding
predefined size limits. Updates to these loan mesiare done periodically or on an annual basismdipg on the size of the loan relationship.

As of December 31, 2013, consumer real estate loamgrised 40.83% of the naovered loan portfolio. Residential real estataoiaclude
loans to individuals within our market footprintfocome equity loans and lines of credit and forghechase or construction of owner
occupied homes. Underwriting guidelines requiré buarowers meet certain credit, income, and ocedidtstandards at origination.

50



Table of Contents

The following table details the maturities and rsgasitivities of our non-covered loan portfoliocidecember 31, 2013:

(Amounts in thousand
Maturities
Commercial loan

Construction, development, and other lg®)

Commercial and industri;
Multi-family residentia
Single family no-owner occupiet
Non-farm, nor-residentia
Agricultural
Farmland
Total commercial loan
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line!
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic
Total consumer real estate lo¢
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan
Other
Total consumer and other loa

Total nor-covered loan

Rate sensitivities
Predetermined interest r¢
Floating or adjustable interest r:
Total nor-covered loan

One Year or Les!

$ 3,79¢
29,43¢

8,01¢

24,50
72,24¢

87C

6,28¢
145,15!

9,23¢
10,06¢
7,307
26,60¢

17,24:
17C

17,41

$ 114,53-
74,64:

Due After One
Year Through

Five Years

$ 24,33
61,05¢
39,14:
75,37¢

24717
1,06¢
16,65
464,81

38,10:
41,321

65¢
80,08¢

45,73
2,15¢
47,88t

$ 59279

$ 475,25
117,54

$ 592,79

Due After Five

Years Total
$ 7,11 $ 35,25¢
4,95¢ 95,45¢
23,03¢ 70,19
35,68( 135,55¢
156,49( 475,91
38¢€ 2,32¢
9,67 32,61¢
237,34 847,31!
64,43: 111,77«
444,61¢ 496,01:
20,73 28,70:
529,78¢ 636,48!
8,33¢ 71,31
1,601 3,92¢
9,94( 75,23¢
$ 777,07 $1,559,03!
$ 373,42 $ 963,21:
403,64 595,82
$ 777,07 $1,559,03!

(1) Construction loans with maturities due afteefyears include construction to permanent loaasthave not converted to principal and

interest payment:
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The following table details the maturities and rsdasitivities of our covered loan portfolio addefcember 31, 2013:

(Amounts in thousand
Maturities
Commercial loan

Construction, development, and other [i()

Commercial and industri;
Multi-family residentia
Single family no-owner occupiet
Non-farm, nor-residentia
Agricultural
Farmland
Total commercial loan
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line!
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic
Total consumer real estate lo¢
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan
Other
Total consumer and other loa

Total covered loan

Rate sensitivities
Predetermined interest r¢
Floating or adjustable interest r:
Total covered loan

One Year or Les:

$ 4,515
765
22t

1,252
11,11¢C

51C
18,37¢

104
4,981
42¢

5,51

5

5
$ 23,89

$ 20,27¢
3,627
$ 23,89:

Due After One
Year Through

Five Years

$ 10,07«
1,762

3,10¢
16,68¢
19

78

31,73(

3,11z
517z

75€
9,041

113
113
$ 40,88

$ 28,97¢
11,90¢

$ 40,88

Due After Five

Years Total
$ 1,27¢ $ 15,86¢
79¢ 3,32t
1,70¢ 1,93:
3,087 7,44¢
6,84¢ 34,64¢
144 1632

28€ 874
14,14¢ 64,25¢
65,98¢ 69,20¢
6,76¢ 16,91¢

— 1,18¢
72,75¢ 87,30¢
— 11€

— 11€

$ 86,90 $151,68:
$ 13,42 $ 62,67¢
73,47¢ 89,00¢
$ 86,90: $151,68:

(1) Construction loans with maturities due afteefyears include construction to permanent loaasthave not converted to principal and

interest payment:

Risk Element

Nonperforming assets consist of loans accountedriax nonaccrual basis, accruing loans contragtpakt due 90 days or more, unseasc

troubled debt restructurings (“TDRs”), and OREOahse acquired with credit deterioration with a digziocontinue to accrue interest based

on expected cash flows; therefore, PCI loans aremusidered nonaccrual. See Note 5, “Credit Qualid the Consolidated Financial

Statements in Item 8 of this report.
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The following table summarizes the components ofpeoforming assets and presents additional ddtailsonperforming and restructured
loans as of the periods indicated:

December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Non-covered nonperforming
Nonaccrual loan $19,16: $23,93: $24,48" $19,41¢ $17,527
Accruing loans past due 90 days or m — — — — —
TDRs @ 1,317 6,00¢ 60C 5,32¢ 1,39(
Total nonperforming loan 20,47 29,94( 25,08’ 24,73¢ 18,917
Non-covered OREC( 7,31¢ 5,74¢ 5,91« 4,91( 4,57¢
Total nonperforming asse $27,79( $35,68¢ $31,00: $29,64¢ $23,49¢
Covered nonperforming
Nonaccrual loan $ 3,35: $ 4,32: $ — $ — $ —
Accruing loans past due 90 days or m 86 — — — —
Total nonperforming loan 3,43¢ 4,32: — — —
Covered OREC 7,541 3,25¢ — — —
Total nonperforming asse $10,98( $ 7,57¢ $ — $ — $ —
Total nonperforming
Nonaccrual loan $22,51¢ $28,25¢ $24,48" $19,41¢ $17,52;
Accruing loans past due 90 days or m 86 — — —
TDRs @ 1,317 6,00¢ 60C 5,32¢ 1,39(
Total nonperforming loan 23,91: 34,26 25,08 24,73¢ 18,917
OREO 14,85¢ 9,00¢ 5,91¢ 4,91(C 4,57¢
Total nonperforming asse $38,77( $43,26" $31,00: $29,64¢ $23,49¢
Additional Information
Performing TDRs® $10,90( $ 6,03¢ $ 8,85¢ $ 6,86¢ $ 2,17¢
Total TDRs @ 12,21: 12,04° 9,45¢ 12,19: 3,56¢
Gross interest income that would have been recordizt the
original terms of nonperforming loa 1,54¢ 2,95¢ 1,15¢ 1,341 69¢
Actual interest income recorded onnonperformingn& 511 64( 411 587 17t
Non-covered ratios
Nonperforming loans to total loa 1.31% 1.97% 1.8(% 1.78% 1.3€¢%
Nonperforming assets to total ass 1.140% 1.42% 1.4% 1.32% 1.05%
Non-PCI allowance to nonperforming loa 113.9% 86.05% 103.6¢% 107.0%% 128.3%
Non-PCI allowance to total loar 1.5(% 1.7C% 1.8€% 1.91% 1.74%
Total ratios
Nonperforming loans to total loa 1.4(% 1.9%% 1.8(% 1.7¢% 1.3¢%
Nonperforming assets to total ass 1.4% 1.5%% 1.4% 1.32% 1.05%
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming lo 100.6%% 75.21% 104.4¢% 107.0%% 128.3%
Allowance for loan losses to total lozg 1.41% 1.4% 1.88% 1.91% 1.74%

(1) TDRs restructured within the past six months|wding nonaccrual TDRs of $734 thousand, $3.04fanj $3.04 million and $108
thousand for the four years ended December 31,.20i3e were no nonaccrual TDRs as of Decembe2(B19.

(2) TDRs with six months or more of satisfactoryment performance, excluding nonaccrual TDRs of$illion, $792 thousand, $227
thousand, and $48 thousand for the four years eDéedmber 31, 2013. There were no nonaccrual TBR$ Becember 31, 200

(3) Perfoming and nonperforming TDRs, excludingaworual TDRs of $2.20 million, $3.83 million, $3.&Wllion, and $156 thousand for
the four years ended December 31, 2013. There meer®naccrual TDRs as of December 31, 2
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Non-covered nonperforming assets totaled $27.79 miblis of December 31, 2013, a $7.90 million, or 2%1decrease from December 31,
2012. Non-covered nonperforming assets as a pagef total norcovered assets were 1.14% as of December 31, 20dared to 1.42¢
as of December 31, 2012.

Non-covered nonaccrual loans totaled $19.16 millionfaBecember 31, 2013, a $4.77 million, or 19.98#srease from December 31, 2012.
As of December 31, 2013, non-covered nonaccruaklegre largely attributed to the following loaasdes: single family owner occupied
(34.27%); commercial and industrial (27.92%); nam, non-residential (14.01%); and single family+mwvner occupied (10.26%).
Approximately $5.43 million, or 28.35%, of non-cogd nonaccrual loans were attributed to perfornimags acquired in business
combinations as of December 31, 2013. Certain loaisded in the nonaccrual category have beertemrilown to estimated realizable ve

or assigned specific reserves in the allowancéofar losses based upon management’s estimatesodiiestimate resolution.

When restructuring loans for borrowers experiendingncial difficulty, we generally make concessan interest rates, loan terms, and/or
amortization terms. Certain TDRs are classified@gperforming at time of restructuring and aremad to performing status after six
months of satisfactory payment performance; howethese loans remain identified as impaired untildayment or other satisfaction of the
obligation occurs.

Accruing TDRs totaled $12.21 million as of DecemBg&y 2013, compared to $12.05 million as of Decanie 2012. Nonperforming
accruing TDRs totaled $1.31 million, or 10.74% ofmiing TDRs, as of December 31, 2013, compar&®1@1 million, or 49.88% of
accruing TDRs, as of December 31, 2012. The allo@dor loan losses attributed to TDRs totaled $tid#lon as of December 31, 2013,
compared to $1.87 million as of December 31, 2012.

Ongoing activity in the classification and categerof nonperforming loans include collections olindgencies, foreclosures, loan
restructurings, and movements into or out of thepeoforming classification as a result of changiiaggnomic conditions, borrower financial
capacity, or resolution efforts. There were $86uand covered accruing loans contractually pas®@utays or more as of December 31,
2013.

Non-covered OREO, which is carried at the lesser tiineged net realizable value or cost, totaled $@Ron as of December 31, 2013, an
increase of $1.57 million, or 27.29%, compared &z@nber 31, 2012. As of December 31, 2013, nonredv®REO consisted of 52
properties with an average holding period of 8 hmenburing 2013, the net loss on the sale of ORE&ldd $1.52 million. Pursuant to FDIC
loss share agreements, covered OREO is presentefithe related fair value discount. The followitadples detail activity within OREO for
the periods indicated:

(Amounts in thousand Non-coverec Covered Total

Beginning balance, January 1, 2013 $ 5,74¢ $ 3,25¢ $ 9,00«
Additions 9,65¢ 8,78 18,43¢
Disposals (6,997 (2,776 (9,779
Valuation adjustment (1,090 (1,720 (2,810
Ending balance, December 31, 2( $ 7,31¢ $ 7,541 $14,85¢
(Amounts in thousand Non-coverec Covered Total

Beginning balance, January 1, 2012 $ 5,91/ $ — $ 5,91«
Acquired 12t 5,38¢ 5,51
Additions 7,761 1,19C 8,951
Disposals (6,939 (2,565 (9,499
Valuation adjustment (1,129 (75¢) (1,889
Ending balance, December 31, 2( $ 5,74¢ $ 3,25¢ $ 9,00¢
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Non-covered delinquent loans, comprised of loans 3@ da more past due and nonaccrual loans, tot&88®B86 million as of December 31,
2013, a decrease of $8.14 million, or 20.86%, caeghéo December 31, 2012. Non-covered delinquemdas a percentage of total non-
covered loans measured 1.98% as of December 33, 2@ich is attributed to loans 30 to 89 days past of 0.75% and nonaccrual loans of
1.23%. Non-covered nonperforming loans, comprifatboaccrual loans, nonperforming TDRs, and unsezs$d DRs, as a percentage of
total non-covered loans were 1.31% as of Decembe?®13, compared to 1.97% as of December 31, 2012.

Allowance for Loan Losse

The allowance for loan losses is maintained avel lmanagement deems sufficient to absorb probablelosses inherent in the loan
portfolio. The allowance is increased by chargesamings in the form of provisions and recoveoigrior loan chargeffs and decreased
loans charged off. The provision for loan lossesalsulated and charged to expense to bring tbevafice to an appropriate level using a
systematic process of measurement that requiragisant judgments and estimates.

Management performs quarterly assessments to datethe appropriate level of the allowance for lt@sses. The allowance for loan losses
includes specific allocations to significant indiual loans and credit relationships and generakves to the remaining loans that have been
deemed impaired. Loans not specifically identifted grouped into pools based on similar risk charestics. Management's general reserve
allocations are based on judgments of qualitatheeguantitative factors about macro and micro engo@onditions reflected in the loan
portfolio and the economy. For loans acquired igithesss combinations, a provision is recorded fgraadit deterioration after the
acquisition. Loans identified with credit impairmext acquisition are grouped into pools and evelliaeparately from the non-PCI portfolio.
The provision calculated for PCI loans is offsetdnyadjustment to the FDIC indemnification asseeflect the indemnified portion of the
post-acquisition exposure. See “Critical Accountitgfimates” above and Note 1, “Significant AccongtPolicies,” and Note 6, “Allowance
for Loan Losses,” to the Consolidated FinanciateStents in Item 8 of this report.

Our allowance for loan losses as a percentageretouered loans declined in 2013, which was coaststith improvements in our credit
quality indicators. As a result of elevated lew@igharge-offs and broader economic conditionsgeemed it appropriate to maintain a
conservative, although declining, level of qualitatfactors that adjust the historical loss ratgward in the allowance model. Our qualitative
risk factors reflected the elevated risk of loassks due to higher than normal unemployment, fieetsfof the recent recession, and
devaluations of various categories of collateraing stress remains in commercial and residen@hlestate markets resulting in decreases in
real estate values that adversely affect propexty @as collateral. As of December 31, 2013, manageoonsidered the allowance to be
adequate based upon analysis of the portfolio; kiewao assurance can be made that additions tltdveance will not be required in future
periods. We incurred net charge-offs of $10.35iarilin 2013, $6.11 million in 2012, and $9.32 naifliin 2011.
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The following table presents activity in our allavea for loan losses by loan type for the periodscated:

(Amounts in thousand
Beginning balance
Chargeoffs:
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other li
Commercial and industrii
Multi-family residentia
Single family no-owner occupiet
Non-farm, nor-residentia
Agricultural
Farmland
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line!
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan
Other
Total charg-offs
Recoveries
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other li
Commercial and industrii
Multi-family residentia
Single family no-owner occupiet
Non-farm, nor-residentia
Agricultural
Farmland
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line!
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic
Consumer and oth
Consumer loan
Other
Total recoverie!

Net charg-offs
Provision charged to operations, excluding PCl &«
Provision charged to operations, PCI lo
Provision recorded through tl

FDIC indemnification asse
Ending balanc

Net charg-offs to average nc-covered loan
Allowance to no-covered loan:

Year Ended December 31

2013
$25,77(

2,73¢
72C
17
2,61¢
1,61

56

2012 2011 2010 2009
$26,20: $26,48: $24,27: $17,78:
28¢ 1,90¢ 2,711 1,541
112 417 2,90 3,26%

20¢ 2,551 697 —
2,50z 1,81 1,66¢ 55(
642 1,07¢ 1,66¢ 1,07€
— — 6 7
61 21¢ — 50
851 691 1,08¢ 39¢
1,84: 1,61¢ 1,59¢ 1,34¢
9 19t 4 101
40z 44¢ 514 1,04
58E 53( 75€ 98¢
7,50+ 11,46( 13,60: 10,35¢
17 817 37 21
93 271 83 45¢

128 68 12 —
10¢ 121 39 48
28( 14€ 144 10€
1 1 32 4

1 — 31 —
76 158 12 1
21¢ 63 52 62
— 34 6 2
152 13¢ 162 34€

324 31¢ 43¢ —
1,397 2,13¢ 1,05( 1,04¢
6,11 9,32 12,55: 9,30¢
5,871 8,831 14,75’ 15,80:

(193) 21( — —
$25,77( $26,20: $26,48: $24,27

0.41% 0.67% 0.9(% 0.7C%
1.70% 1.88% 1.97% 1.72%
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The following table details the allowance for Idasses, excluding PCI loans, by loan class, aBeperiods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other I; $ 1,141 $ 1,214 $ 1,892 $ 3,991 $ 4,01¢
Commercial and industrii 5,21¢ 4,351 3,51t 4,511 5,09¢
Multi-family residentia 1,211 1,63(C 1,88¢ 1,081 44¢
Single family no-owner occupiet 3,54¢ 4,36 2,96( 3,212 2,26:
Non-farm, nor-residentia 4,65( 5,25¢ 6,93: 2,84¢ 3,931
Agricultural 23 22 19 19 42
Farmland 301 41€ 343 70 75
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line! 1,361 1,57¢ 1,36t 2,13¢ 1,19¢
Single family owner occupie 5,03( 5,99¢ 6,13¢ 6,657 4,69(
Owner occupied constructic 20¢€ 337 212 19z 18¢€
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 63t 597 74z 1,764 1,99(
Other — — — — —
Unallocatec — — — — 34%
Total allowance, excluding PCI loa $23,32: $25,76: $26,00- $26,48: $24,27"

The following table details the PCI allowance foah losses, by loan pool, as of the periods ineitat

Year Ended December 31
(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Commercial loan
Waccamaw commercii — — _ _ _
Waccamaw lines of crec — — — _ _

Peoples commercii 69 — — _ _

Other 8 8 201 — —
Consumer real estate loe

Waccamaw serviced home equity lir 271 — — — —

Waccamaw residenti: 217 — — — _

Peoples residenti: 184 — — — _

Consumer and other loa
Waccamaw consumu — — _

Total PCI allowanct $75¢ $ 8 $201 $— $—

Our allowance for loan losses totaled $24.07 mmilks of December 31, 2013, a $1.69 million decreasgared with $25.77 million as of
December 31, 2012. Excluding PCI loans, the allmedor loan losses as a percentage of carered loans held for investment was 1.50¢
of December 31, 2013, compared to 1.70% as of Deeef3iL, 2012. The cash flow analysis performedtferyear ended December 31, 2(
identified four of our seven PCI loan pools as imgdwith a cumulative impairment of $747 thousarfide portfolio continues to be
monitored for deterioration in credit, which magué in the need to increase the allowance for loases in future periods. As a result of
improving credit metrics, management deemed thecedi allowance adequate and directionally congisten
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Deposits

Total deposits as of December 31, 2013, decreag@d 3 million, or 3.91%, compared to December B1L22 Noninterest-bearing deposits
decreased $3.67 million and time deposits decrebs@8.00 million as of December 31, 2013, comp#oddecember 31, 2012. Interest-
bearing deposits increased $8.50 million and saviteposits, which include money market accountssamthgs accounts, increased $23.73
million as of December 31, 2013, compared to Deaarst, 2012.

Borrowings

Total borrowings as of December 31, 2013, decre@8dL6 million, or 4.20%, compared to December28i,2. We prepaid $8.15 million
wholesale repurchase agreements and $11.47 mifihiLB borrowings in 2013 that resulted in gaifi$$@96 thousand. Short-term
borrowings consist of federal funds purchased atallrepurchase agreements. Federal funds purdlsasef December 31, 2013, totaled
$16.00 million compared to no funds purchased d@eaember 31, 2012. The balance of retail repurchgseements decreased $17.81
million, or 13.08%, as of December 31, 2013, coragdo December 31, 2012. Securities underlyingl nefjpaurchase agreements remain
under our control during the terms of the agreemertte following table presents balance informatiod the weighted average rates paid on
retail repurchase agreements as of the periodsateti:

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(Amounts in thousand Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
Year-end balance $84,30¢ 0.1¢% $77,92: 0.52% $79,20¢ 0.52%
Average annual balan 69,77 0.3t% 79,09¢ 0.57% 83,64 0.65%
Maximum montl-end balanc: 84,30¢ 88,90¢ 96,92t

Long-term borrowings consist of wholesale repurehagreements; FHLB borrowings, including conveetibhd callable advances; and other
obligations. The balance of wholesale repurchaseeagents decreased $8.20 million, or 14.08%, amdviiighted average rate increased 37
basis points to 3.71% as of December 31, 2013, aompto December 31, 2012. As of December 31, 20f8lesale repurchase agreements
had contractual maturities between two and sixs€Hne balance of FHLB borrowings decreased $1mhiliton, or 7.15%, and the weighted
average rate increased 26 basis points to 4.12%@scember 31, 2013, compared to December 31,. 204 8f December 31, 2013, FHLB
borrowings had contractual maturities between tharekeight years.

Included in other indebtedness is $15.46 milliojuofor subordinated debentures (“Debenturdisd} were issued by the Company in Octc
2003 through FCBI Capital Trust, an unconsolidataedt subsidiary, with an interest rate of threenthd_IBOR plus 2.95%. The Debentures
mature in October 2033 and are currently callabtb@option of the Company.

Stockholders’ Equity

Total stockholders’ equity decreased $27.72 millimn7.78%, from $356.32 million as of December&112, to $328.61 million as of
December 31, 2013. In 2013 we repurchased 1,73%6&Es of our common stock for approximately $28llion. The change in
stockholders’ equity was also impacted by net ine@h$23.31 million, dividends declared on our coonnand Series A Noncumulative
Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series A Preferreackt) of $10.50 million, and a decrease in accurtadather comprehensive income
(“AOCI") of $12.92 million. AOCI was driven by unatized losses on available-for-sale securities.

58



Table of Contents

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity

Liquidity is a measure of our ability to raise scnt cash, or convert assets to cash, to medirmauncial obligations. We maintain a liquidity
risk management policy and contingency fundinggyofthe “Liquidity Plan”) that is designed to det@otential liquidity issues in order to
protect depositors, creditors, and shareholders.LTduidity Plan includes various internal and em## indicators that are reviewed on a
recurring basis by our Asset/Liability Managemenn@nittee (“ALCQO”) and the Board of Directors. ALO®responsible for reviewing
liquidity risk exposure and policies related taiidity management and ensuring that systems aedhiait controls are consistent with liquic
policies and provide accurate reports regardingjdity needs, sources, and compliance.

The Liquidity Plan involves ongoing monitoring aestimation of potentially credit sensitive liab#s and the sources and amounts of bal
sheet and external liquidity available to replaa#flows during a funding crisis. Several scenados analyzed based on varying assumptions
regarding the funding crisis’ severity and duratisach as decreases in earnings, asset qualityatat®n, adverse market conditions, and
reductions in borrowing capacity and availabildyspecific action plan is formulated and activatdten a financial shock that affects our
normal funding activities is identified. Generallige plan will reflect a strategy of replacing liél outflows with alternative liabilities, rathe
than balance sheet asset liquidity, to the extattdignificant premiums can be avoided. If altéuealiabilities are not available, outflows v

be met through liquidation of balance sheet asswtliding unpledged securities.

Cash on hand and deposits with other financiaitingins are immediately available to satisfy dépasthdrawals, customer credit needs, and
our operations. As of December 31, 2013, unencueabeaish on hand and deposits with other financsitutions were $56.57 million. Lin

of credit extended from correspondent banks andHieB are immediate funding sources that we maydrpon. As of December 31, 2013,
availability on federal funds lines with correspentibanks was $105.00 million and credit availdtden the FRB’s discount window was
$9.09 million. As of December 31, 2013, unused deimg capacity with the FHLB was $324.34 millionyther, an additional $34.74 million
was available under the FHLB credit facility subbjerthe optional delivery of additional collaterAlvailable-for-sale securities represent a
secondary source of liquidity upon conversion tigiaid asset. As of December 31, 2013, unpledgedlae-forsale securities were $235.
million.

As a holding company, the Company does not corslgatificant operations. The Company’s primary searof liquidity are dividends
received from the Bank and borrowings. Dividendis! iy the Bank are subject to certain regulatamjthtions. As of December 31, 2013,
Company’s liquid assets consisted of cash and imers securities totaling $24.21 million. The Comypa cash reserves and investments
provide adequate working capital to meet obligatiand projected dividends to shareholders for &x¢ tawvelve months. The Company
maintains a $15.00 million unsecured, committed bif credit with an unrelated financial institutidks of December 31, 2013, there was no
outstanding balance on the line. There are no krtoentds, demands, commitments, or events thatkalg,lor reasonably likely, to result in
any material changes to liquidity. We believe that liquidity position continues to be adequate ezatlily available.
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Cash Flows
The following table presents the major componehtsash flow in the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012 2011

Net cash provided by operating activit $ 4451¢ $ 56,63¢ $ 54,00¢
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi (1,167 252,47 (14,190
Net cash used in financing activiti (131,63) (211,560 (104,71)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis (88,28() 97,55 (64,895
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning bal. 144,84 47,29¢ 112,18¢
Cash and cash equivalents, ending bal $ 56,56 $ 144,84 $ 47,29:

2013 Compared to 2012\et cash provided by operating activities ded&il2.12 million, or 21.40%, in 2013, which wasrarily due to
decrease in net income of $5.27 million. Net casddun investing activities totaled $1.17 millioongpared to net cash provided of $252.47
million in 2012, which was largely the result of aoquisition activity in 2013, coupled with a $7®®illion decrease in proceeds from
securities and an $86.75 million increase in nahloriginations. Net cash used in financing adésilecreased $79.93 million in 2013, which
was primarily due to a decline in the annual desees interest-bearing deposits. The net effectsh flow activity was an $88.28 million

decrease in cash and cash equivalents in 2013.

2012 Compared to 2011Net cash provided by operating activities inceeg$2.63 million, or 4.87%, in 2012, which was mafnity due to an
increase in net income of $8.55 million. Net casbvjed by investing activities increased $266.66on in 2012, which was largely the
result of net cash acquired in acquisitions of $282nillion and net loan collections of $75.09 ioifl. Net cash used in financing activities
increased $106.85 million in 2012, which was pritgatue to an $84.99 million decrease in depodite net effect of cash flow activity was

a $162.45 million increase in cash and cash equitslin 2012.

Capital Resources
Risk-based capital requirements include balancetsissets and off-balance sheet arrangements weibfitthe risks inherent in the specific
asset type. The following table presents our chpit#s as of the dates indicated:

December 31

2013 2012 2011
Total risk-based capital rati
First Community Bancshares, Ir 16.4%% 16.7(% 18.15%
First Community Banl| 14.55% 15.22% 16.12%
Tier 1 risk-based capital rati
First Community Bancshares, Ir 15.1% 15.4%% 16.8%
First Community Banl| 13.3(% 13.9% 14.86%
Tier 1 leverage rati
First Community Bancshares, Ir 9.95% 9.9€% 11.5(%
First Community Banl| 8.65% 8.9&% 10.0¢%

Guidelines issued by state and federal bankingagemequire a minimum risk-based capital rati@%f, Tier 1 riskbased capital ratio of 69
and Tier 1 leverage ratio of 3%. As of December2R1,3, our Tier 1 risk-based capital and total-bisksed capital ratios decreased compared
to December 31, 2012, primarily due to stock repase activity. As of December 31, 2013, our TigVkrage ratio decreased compared to
December 31, 2012, primarily due to the decreadéeinl capital resulting from the repurchase e&sury stock and increase in net
unrealized losses on investment securities. Owlaéyy capital ratios declined between the perenided December 31, 2012 and 2011,

primarily as a result of growth in risk-weightedets, average assets, and
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capital generated from the Peoples and Waccamawisitions. As of December 31, 2013, our capitabsatvere well in excess of the
minimum standards and continue to be classifiededscapitalized under regulatory capital adequsteyndards. See Note 21, “Regulatory
Capital Requirements and Restrictions,” to the ©bdated Financial Statements in Item 8 of thisorép

Contractual Obligations

We maintain certain contractual cash obligatioss tAquire future cash payments. Management bslieechave adequate resources to fund
our outstanding commitments and, in a changingésteate environment, the ability to adjust ratesertificates of deposit; attract new
deposits; and replace deposits with FHLB advancesher fund providers, if cost effective. The éolling table presents our contractual cash
obligations, detailed by payment date, as of Deagrl, 2013:

Less Than One to Three to More than
(Amounts in thousand Total One Year Three Years Five Years Five Years
Deposits without a stated maturity $1,225,51 $1,225,51 $ — $ — $ —
Overnight security repurchase agreem: 81,26( 81,26( — — —
Certificates of depos@@) 736,79¢ 429,40° 235,06t 72,307 16
Term security repurchase agreems 60,32 4,87¢ 28,73t 1,59( 25,12:
FHLB advance®® 177,99 6,18( 12,36( 105,42( 54,03:
Trust preferred indebtedne 26,00¢ 62€ 1,24: 1,23t 22,90
Leases 2,902 771 741 322 1,06¢
Total contractual cash obligatio $2,310,79 $1,748,63 $278,14! $180,87: $103,14:

(1) Excludes interes

(2) Includes interest on fixed and variable ratkgaltions. The interest associated with variabte abligations is based upon interest rates
in effect at December 31, 2013. The interest tpdid on variable rate obligations is affected bgraes in market interest rates, which
materially affect the contractual obligation amaurtt be paid

(3) Excludes carrying value adjustments such as una@adrpremiums or discount
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We extend contractual commitment with off-balaniceet risk in the normal course of business to rireetinancing needs of our customers.
See Note 20, “Litigation, Commitments and Contirges,” to the Consolidated Financial Statementseim 8 of this report. The following
table presents our off-balance sheet arrangensgtts)ed by commitment expiration, as of Decemidegr2813:

Less than More than
One Year One to Three to
(Amounts in thousand Total (J Three Years Five Years Five Years
Commitments to extend credit
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other i $ 14,35: $ 5,051 $ 9,151 $ 15C $ —
Commercial and industri 38,90: 25,88: 12,75¢ 67 19t
Multi-family residentia 2,92¢ 2,62¢ 30C — —
Single family no-owner occupiet 99¢ 867 23 14 92
Non-farm, nor-residentia 17,05( 10,34( 4,48¢ 14¢ 2,07¢
Agricultural 56& 56& — — —
Farmland 1,62¢ 1,247 384 — —
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line: 110,41! 9,46¢ 13,56« 19,80 67,58(
Single family owner occupie 31¢ 207 48 8 56
Owner occupied constructic 16,107 14,96: 98¢ — 15€
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 12,86¢ 6,29¢ 77¢ 48¢ 5,301
Other 55 55 — — —
Total unused commitmen $216,17¢ $77,55¢ $ 42,48. $20,68: $75,45¢
Letters of credit
Financial letters of cred $ 172 $ — $ 162 $ — $ 10
Performance letters of cre( 4,021 — 3,927 — 94
Total letters of credi $ 4,19 $ — $ 4,08¢ $ — $ 104

(1) Lines of credit with no stated maturity date arguded in commitments for less than one y

Impact of Inflation and Changing Price:

Our consolidated financial statements and relat¢esnare presented in accordance with GAAP, wtegliires the measurement of results of
operations and financial position in terms of hiist@l dollars. Inflation may cause a rise in prieeels and changes in the relative purchasing
power of money. These inflationary effects arenefiected in historical dollar measurements. Thmary effect of inflation on our operatic

is increased operating costs. In management’s apiimterest rates have a greater impact on oanéial performance than inflation. Interest
rates do not necessarily fluctuate in the sametiing, or to the same extent, as the price of gamdisservices; therefore, the effect of infla
on financial institutions is generally not as sfgm@nt as the effect on businesses with large itneests in property, plant, and inventory. The
U.S. inflation rate continues to be relatively &aland management believes that any changeslatiamf will not be material to our financial
performance.
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ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

Our profitability is dependent to a large extenbrmet interest income, which is the differenceveen interest income on interest-earning
assets, such as loans and securities, and inexq@sise on interest-bearing liabilities, such g®sis and borrowings. Our Company, like
other financial institutions, is subject to intdreste risk to the degree that interest-earningtaggprice differently than interest-bearing
liabilities. We manage our mix of assets and litibg8 with the goal of limiting exposure to intetreate risk, ensuring adequate liquidity, and
coordinating sources and uses of funds while miaimig. an acceptable level of net interest incomegithe current interest rate environment.

Our primary component of operational revenue, metrest income, is subject to variation as a refuthanges in interest rate environmen
conjunction with unbalanced repricing opportuniti@searning assets and interest-bearing liabilitigerest rate risk has four primary
components: repricing risk, basis risk, yield curgi& and option risk. Repricing risk occurs whemreéng assets and paying liabilities reprice
at differing times as interest rates change. Baslisoccurs when the underlying rates on the ass®tdiabilities the institution holds change
different levels or in varying degrees. Yield curniak is the risk of adverse consequences as & maunequal changes in the spread between
two or more rates for different maturities for g@me instrument. Lastly, option risk is due to edalael options, often put or call options,
given or sold to holders of financial instruments.

To mitigate the effect of changes in the genenradllef interest rates, we manage repricing oppdrasiand thus, our interest rate sensitivity.
We seek to control our interest rate risk exposmiiasulate net interest income and net earnings ffuctuations in the general level of
interest rates. To measure our exposure to inteatstisk, quarterly simulations of net interestdme are performed using financial models
that project net interest income through a rangeoskible interest rate environments: rising, aéugj, most likely, and flat rate scenarios. We
use a simulation model that captures all earnisgtasinterest-bearing liabilities, and bfitance sheet financial instruments and combire
various factors affecting rate sensitivity intoearnings outlook for a range of assumed interéstsgenarios. The results of these simulations
indicate the existence and severity of interest rigk in each of those rate environments based tipocurrent balance sheet position,
assumptions as to changes in the volume and niiteriest-earning assets and interest-paying ltgsland our estimate of yields to be
attained in those future rate environments andnadéd on various deposit instruments and borrosvifigese assumptions are inherently
uncertain and, as a result, the model cannot mlgqgisedict the impact of fluctuations in interestes on net interest income. Actual results
will differ from simulated results due to timing agnitude, and frequency of interest rate changesedl as changes in market conditions and
our strategies. However, the earnings simulatiodehis currently the best tool available to us #adindustry for managing interest rate risk.

We have established policy limits for tolerancendérest rate risk in various interest rate scasaiin addition, the policy addresses exposure
limits to changes in the economic value of equiycading to predefined policy guidelines. The nresent simulation indicates that current
exposure to interest rate risk is within our defipslicy limits.

63



Table of Contents

The following table summarizes the impact of imnageliand sustained rate shocks in the intereseraieonment on net interest income. The
model simulates plus 300 to minus 100 basis pdiahges from the base case rate simulation andrétes the prospective effects of
hypothetical interest rate changes over a twelvatmbme period. This modeling technique, althougkful, does not take into account all
strategies that management might undertake in nsgpm a sudden and sustained rate shock as akpMse, as market conditions vary from
those assumed in the sensitivity analysis, actsllts will also differ due to prepayment and raficing levels likely deviating from those
assumed, the varying impact of interest rate chaags or floors on adjustable rate assets, thenfiateffect of changing debt service levels
on customers with adjustable rate loans, deposidy withdrawals and product preference changespther internal and external variables.
As of December 31, 2013, the Federal Open Marketr@ittee maintained a target range for federal fuofdsto 25 basis points, rendering a
complete downward shock of 200 basis points medggsgaccordingly, downward rate scenarios arddinio minus 100 basis points. In the
downward rate shocks presented, benchmark intextest are assumed at levels with floors near 0%.

(Amounts in thousands, except basis points)
Increase (Decrease) in Basis Poin

300
200
100
(100)

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012
Percent Percent
Change in Change in

Net Interest Income Change Net Interest Income Change
$ 2,64¢ 3.1 $ 10,92¢ 13.2
1,517 1.8 7,45k 9.C
454 0.5 3,60¢ 4.4

497 0.6 (35) —
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per shate

Assets

Cash and due from ban

Federal funds sol

Interes-bearing deposits in ban
Total cash and cash equivale

Securities available for sa

Securities held to maturit

Loans held for sal

Loans held for investment, net of unearned incc
Covered under loss share agreem
Not covered under loss share agreem
Less allowance for loan loss

Loans held for investment, n

FDIC indemnification asst

Premises and equipment, |

Other real estate owne
Covered under loss share agreem
Not covered under loss share agreem

Interest receivabl

Goodwill

Other intangible asse

Other asset

Total asset
Liabilities
Deposits:
Noninteres-bearing
Interes-bearing
Total deposit:
Interest, taxes, and other liabiliti
Federal funds purchas
Securities sold under agreements to repurc
FHLB borrowings
Other borrowing:
Total liabilities

Stockholders Equity

Preferred stock, undesignated par value; 1,0006s886es authorized; Series A Noncumulative Conwertib
Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value; 25,000 sharéwened; 15,251 shares issued at December 31, 2013,
and 17,421 shares issued at December 31,

Common stock, $1 par value; 50,000,000 shares amgtb 20,493,057 shares issued and 18,514,578
outstanding at December 31, 2013; 20,343,327 slesesd and 20,053,406 shares outstanding at
December 31, 201

Additional paic-in capital

Retained earning

Treasury stock, at co

Accumulated other comprehensive I

Total stockholder equity
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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December 31

2013 2012
$ 4359 $ 50,40
1,817 66,50
11,15: 27,93
56,56 144,84
519,82( 534,35
56¢ 81€
88: 6,67:
151,68: 207,10¢
1,559,03! 1,517,54
(24,07) (25,770
1,686,64. 1,698,88:
34,69 48,14
61,11¢ 64,86
7,541 3,25¢
7,31¢ 5,74¢
7,521 7,84
105,45t 104,86t
2,86¢ 3,52:
111,52 105,04(
$2,602,51.  $2,728,86
$ 339,68  $ 343,35
1,611,06. 1,686,82
1,950,74; 2,030,17,
22,77 28,81¢
16,00( —
118,30 136,11
150,00 161,55t
16,08¢ 15,87,
2,273,90i 2,372,54.
15,25 17,42
20,49: 20,34
215,66 213,82
125,82 113,01
(33,88 (6,45¢)
(14,740 (1,82¢)
328,60 356,32:
$2,602,51  $2,728,86




Table of Contents

FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per shate
Interest Income
Interest and fees on loans held for investn
Interest on securitie— taxable
Interest on securitie— nontaxable
Interest on deposits in ban

Total interest incom
Interest Expense
Interest on deposi
Interest on sho-term borrowings
Interest on lon-term debi

Total interest expens

Net interest incom
Provision for loan losse

Net interest income after provision for loan los

Noninterest Income

Wealth managemel

Service charges on deposit accol
Other service charges and ft
Insurance commissiot
Impairment losses on securiti

Portion of losses recognized in other compreheriaiv@me

Net impairment losses recognized in earni
Net gain on sale of securiti

Net FDIC indemnification asset (amortization) atiore

Other operating incom

Total noninterest incom
Noninterest Expense
Salaries and employee bene
Occupancy expense of bank premi
Furniture and equipme
Amortization of intangible asse
FDIC premiums and assessme
FHLB debt prepayment fe:
Merger related expen:
Goodwill impairment
Other operating expen:

Total noninterest expen:
Income before income tax
Income tax expens
Net income
Dividends on preferred stot
Net income available to common shareholc
Basic earnings per common sh

Diluted earnings per common shi
Cash dividends per common sh

Weighted average basic shares outstan
Weighted average diluted shares outstan

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Year Ended December 31

2013 2012

$  96,60( $ 96,68
7,87¢ 7,83(
4,79( 4,88:

211 25¢
109,47 109,65t
8,82: 9,97:
2,22: 2,51¢
6,78¢ 7,11¢
17,83¢ 19,60(
91,64: 90,05¢
8,20¢ 5,67¢
83,43 84,37¢
3,41z 3,701
13,55¢ 14,06:
7,151 6,46-
5,93¢ 5,74¢
(320) (942)
(320) (942)

39¢ 482
(5,597) 45¢
5,23¢ 6,747
29,77: 36,71(
41,23 38,66
7,03: 6,87¢
4,96¢ 4,14

72¢ 804

1,717 1,617

56 5,00:

23,24¢ 21,19(
78,98t 78,38:
34,22 42,708
10,90¢ 14,12¢
23,31 28,57
1,02¢ 1,05¢

$ 22728 $ 2751
$ 1.17 $ 1.42
1.11 1.4¢

0.4¢ 0.4%
19,792,09 19,127,06
20,961,80 20,419,56

2011

80,58(
8,11:
5,19¢

28t

94,17¢

12,78t¢
2,47¢
6,88¢

22,14,

72,02¢

9,04;

62,98:

3,51(
13,23¢
5,722
6,197
(2,285)

(2,285)

5,26¢

3,88¢

35,53¢

34,12¢
6,28(
3,49(
1,02(
1,98¢
471
1,23¢
20,30¢

68,91¢

29,60:

9,57¢

20,02¢
70z

19,32¢

1.0¢
1.0%
0.4C

17,877,42
18,687,52
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)

(Amounts in thousand
Comprehensive Income
Net income
Other comprehensive (loss) income, before
Available-for-sale securities
Unrealized (losses) gains on securities availainasdle with othe-thar-temporary impairmer
Unrealized (losses) gains on securities availaiesdle without other-than-temporary
impairment
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains redlizenet income
Less: reclassification adjustment for credit redat¢her-than-temporary impairments
recognized in net incomr
Unrealized (losses) gains on avail-for-sale securitie
Defined benefit plans
Net actuarial gain (loss) on pension and otherrptisgment benefit plar
Net prior service cost attributed to plan amendm
Less: reclassification adjustment for amortizatibprior service cost and net actuarial loss
included in net periodic benefit cc
Unrealized gains (losses) on defined benefit p
Unrealized gains on derivative securit
Other comprehensive (loss) income, before
Income tax benefit (expens
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of

Total comprehensive incon

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
$23,31:  $28577  $20,02¢
(1,279 1,03¢ (1,247
(19,969 7,28( 12,94¢
(399) (489 (5,269
32¢ 942 2,28¢
(21,32() 8,77¢ 8,72:
75¢€ (195) (1,230

(380) — —
327 26¢ 227
705 73 (1,007
— — 3C
(20,619 8,84¢ 7,74¢
7,70 (3,345) (2,889)
(12,919 5,50: 4,86
$10,397  $34,08(  $24,89(
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share
data)

Balance January 1, 2011

Net income

Other comprehensive incor

Common dividends declar— $0.40 per shar

Preferred dividends declar— $37.15 per shar

Issuance of preferred sto— 18,921 share

Repurchase of common stock warre

Equity-based compensation expel

Common stock options exercis— 2,969 share
Contribution of treasury stock to 401(k) p— 60,632 share
Purchase of treasury sha— 81,510 shares at $10.88 per st

Balance December 31, 20

Balance January 1, 20:

Net income

Other comprehensive incor

Common dividends declar— $0.43 per shar

Preferred dividends declar— $60.00 per shar

Preferred stock converted to common st— 103,500 share
Equity-based compensation expel

Common stock options exercis— 5,223 share

Restricted stock awar— 5,300 share

Purchase of treasury sha— 67,438 shares at $15.00 per st
Acquisition of Peoples Bank of Virgin— 2,157,005 share

Balance December 31, 20

Balance January 1, 20

Net income

Other comprehensive incor

Common dividends declar— $0.48 per shar

Preferred dividends declar— $60.00 per shar

Preferred stock converted to common st— 149,730 share
Equity-based compensation expel

Common stock options exercis— 5,850 share

Restricted stock awar— 40,371 share

Purchase of treasury sha— 1,739,601 shares at $16.31 per sl

Balance December 31, 20

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

EQUITY
Accumulated
- Other
Additional -
Preferred Common Retainec Treasury Comprehensive
Paid-in
Stock Stock Capital Earnings Stock Income (Loss) Total
$ — $ 18,08! $ 189,23¢ $ 81,48t $ 6,740 3 (12,1900  $269,87¢
— — — 20,02¢ — — 20,02¢
— — — — — 4,86: 4,86:
— — — (7,15%) — — (7,15%)
— — — (709) — — (707)
18,92 — (119) — — — 18,80:
— — (30) — — — (30)
— — 68 — 30 — 98
— — (6C) — 92 — 32
— — (980) — 1,801 — 821
— — — — (904 — (904)
$ 18,92 $ 18,08! $ 188,11¢ $ 93,65¢ $ (5,72) $ (7,328  $305,72!
$ 18,92: $ 18,08! $ 188,11t $ 93,65¢ $ 572) % (7,32¢)  $305,72
— — — 28,57° — — 28,57°
— — — — — 5,50¢ 5,50¢
— — — (8,162) — — (8,167)
— — — (1,05¢) — — (1,05¢)
(2,500 10z 1,39 — — — —
— — 11¢ — 17 — 132
— — (55) — 13C — 75
— — (59) — 12¢ — 69
— — — — (1,012 — (1,019
— 2,157 24,31 — — — 26,47(
$ 17,42 $ 20,34! $ 213,82 $113,01. $ (6459 $ (1,82f)  $356,32:
$ 17,42 $ 20,34! $ 213,82 $113,01: $ (6,459 $ (1,82%)  $356,32:
— — — 23,31. — — 23,31.
— — — — — (12,919 (22,91%)
— — — (9,47%) — — (9,475
— — — (1,029 — — (1,029
(2,170 15C 2,02( — — — —
— — 18 — — — 18
— — (21) — 10€ — 85
— — (183) — 88€ — 70z
— — — — (28,42)) — (28,42))
$ 15,25: $ 20,49: $ 215,66: $125,82! $(3388) $ (14,740  $328,60t
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Amounts in thousand
Operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:
Provision for loan losse
Depreciation and amortization of property, plant @quipmen
Amortization of premiums on investments,
Amortization (accretion) of FDIC indemnificationszs, ne
Amortization of intangible asse
Goodwill impairmen:
Gain on sale of loar
Equity-based compensation expel
(Gain) loss on sale of property, plant, and equipr
Loss on sales of other real est
Gain on sale of securiti¢
Net impairment losses recognized in earni
FHLB debt prepayment fe«
Deferred income tax (benefit) exper
Excess tax benefit from equ-based compensatic
Proceeds from sale of mortgage lo
Origination of mortgage loar
Decrease in accrued interest receiv:
Decrease (increase) in other operating activ
Net cash provided by operating activit
Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of securities available for
Proceeds from maturities, prepayments, and cakeatrities available for sa
Proceeds from maturities, prepayments, and cabeatdrities held to maturi
Payments to acquire securities available for
(Criginations) collections of loans, r
Proceeds from the redemption of FHLB stock,
Net cash (paid) acquired in acquisitic
Proceeds from the FDI
Payments to acquire property, plant, and equipt
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipi
Proceeds from sale of other real es
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi
Financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in noninte-bearing deposit
Net decrease in inter-bearing deposit
Net increase in federal funds purcha
Repayments of securities sold under agreemenéptochas:
Repayments of lor-term debr
Proceeds from issuance of preferred s
Proceeds from stock options exerci:
Excess tax benefit from equ-based compensatic
Payments for repurchase of treasury s'
Payments for repurchase of warrg
FHLB debt prepayment fe«
Payments of common dividen
Payments of preferred dividen
Net cash used in financing activiti
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

Supplemental transactions— noncash items
Transfer of loans to other real est
Loans originated to finance other real es
Supplemental disclosure— cash flow information
Cash paid for intere:
Cash paid for income tax

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
$ 23,31 $ 28,57 $ 20,02¢
8,20¢ 5,67¢ 9,04
4,66¢ 4,03¢ 3,98:
884 2,32¢ 1,611
5,591 (459 —
72¢ 804 1,02
— — 1,23¢
(1,219 (1,065) (719
18 132 o8
(159 82 (157)
2,78¢ 1,86¢ 2,361
(399 (489 (5,269
32¢ 94z 2,28t
— — 471
= (896) 2,36%
9 (6) (5
75,34 67,50: 45,46
(68,349 (67,28 (45,879
321 2,35¢ 1,48:
(7,54 12,53 14,56t
44,51¢ 56,63 54,00
105,93« 155,601 192,84
87,05 105,83( 49,19
25C 2,69( 1,29¢
(201,139 (245,349 (234,819
(11,66 75,00 (28,69)
47c 2,101 1,417
(697) 152,28 83t
14,31 2,97¢ —
(2,779 (8,009 (3,069
48¢ 1,151 59¢
6,60: 8,10¢ 6,20
(1,169 252,47 (14,190
(3,679 12,65 35,11
(75,76 (175,13) (112,60
16,00 — —
(17,810 (13,179 (11,68)
(11,599 (25,769 (25,260()
— — 18,80:
85 144 32

9 6 5
(28,42) (1,019 (904)
— — (30)
— — (471)
(9,479 (8,169 (7,15¢
(992) (1,120 (55¢)
(131,63) (211,56() (104,71)
(88,280 97,55 (64,89
144,84 47,29 112,18
$ 56,56 $144,84° $ 47,29
$ 18,43t $ 9,08 $ 9,72
3,19¢ 1,40¢ 151
18,14¢ 19,65¢ 22,85’
3,00( 10,38t 8,50(
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Operations

Unless the context suggests otherwise, the ugeedetm “Company” refers to First Community Bangskalnc. (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries as a consolidated entity. The Comjmayfinancial holding company headquartered ireBéld, Virginia that provides banking
products and services to individuals and commeatiatomers through its wholly-owned subsidiarysF€ommunity Bank (the “Bank”), a
Virginia-chartered banking institution, from 71 &imns. The Bank operates under the trade hamstsGommunity Bank in Virginia, West
Virginia, and North Carolina and Peoples CommuBiank, a Division of First Community Bank, in So@arolina and Tennessee. The
Company offers personal and commercial insurancdyats and services from 9 locations through itellykowned subsidiary Greenpoint
Insurance Group, Inc. (“Greenpoint”), which is hgaartered in High Point, North Carolina. Greenpoip¢rates under the Greenpoint name
and under the trade names First Community Insur&eceices (“FCIS”) and Carolina Insurers Associatedorth Carolina, Carr &Hyde
Insurance and FCIS in Virginia, and FCIS in Wegfjifiia. The Bank offers wealth management sendcekinvestment advice through its
Trust Division and wholly-owned subsidiary Firstf@munity Wealth Management (“FCWM?"), a registereddastment advisory firm. The
Trust Division and FCWM managed $706 million in doned assets as of December 31, 2013. These assatst assets of the Company,
but are managed under various fee-based arrangerfitiuciary or agent. The Company reported dafeted assets of $2.60 billion as of
December 31, 2013.

The Company operates in one business segment, CoityrBanking, which consists of all operations,luting commercial and consumer
banking, lending activities, wealth management, iasdrance services.

Principles of Consolidation

The accounting and reporting policies of the Comypaonform to generally accepted accounting prires@l'GAAP”) in the United States at
to predominant practices in the banking industtye TCompany'’s consolidated financial statementsigethe accounts of all wholly-owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balaneesl transactions have been eliminated in consmitnlaAssets held in an agency or
fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Compaiyaaa not included in the Company’s consolidatddrz® sheets.

The Company has investments in certain entitiesateaconsidered variable interest entities (“V)Esider GAAP. These VIEs include the
Company’s trust subsidiary, FCBI Capital Trust (tfieust”), certain tax credit limited partnershigs)d limited liability companies that
provide aviation services, insurance brokerade, itisurance, and other related financial servigéSs are legal entities in which the equity
investors do not have sufficient equity at risk thoe entity to independently finance its activite¥she collective holders do not have the
power through voting or similar rights to direcetactivities of the entity that most significaniiypact its economic performance, the
obligation to absorb the expected losses of thigyent the right to receive expected residual meswf the entity. Consolidation of a VIE is
considered appropriate if a reporting entity isphienary beneficiary, the party that has both digant influence and control over the VIE.
Management periodically performs a qualitative gsiglto determine if the Company is the primarydfimary of a VIE. This analysis
includes review of the VIES’ capital structuresnwactual terms, and primary activities, includthg Companys ability to direct the activitie
of the VIEs and obligations to absorb losses, eritht to receive benefits, significant to the ¥lBased on the Company’s analysis for the
periods presented in this report, it is not thenairy beneficiary of its VIEs. Accordingly, thesdigas do not meet the criteria for
consolidation and, therefore, are reported in o#lssets in the Company’s consolidated balanceshBw®t carrying value and maximum
potential loss exposure of VIEs totaled $2.89 wiillas of December 31, 2013, and $3.04 million d&3exfember 31, 2012.
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Use of Estimates

In preparing consolidated financial statementsoimfarmity with GAAP, management is required to makémates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liaslitis of the date of the balance sheet and reparednts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. The Company has identifieditems that require the most subjective assumptiorcomplex judgments: investment
securities, the allowance for loan losses, theiprav for income taxes, and business combinatimeiuding intangible assets.

Reclassification

Certain amounts reported in prior years have beelassified to conform to the current year’s prégtion. These reclassifications had no
effect on the Company’s results of operations,raial position, or cash flow.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and duelfaois, time deposits with other banks, federai$uisold, and interest-bearing balances
on deposit with the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLBiat are available for immediate withdrawal.

Investment Securities

Management determines the appropriate classifitaticecurities at the time of purchase. Debt sgesithat management has the intent and
ability to hold to maturity are classified as hétdmaturity securities and carried at amortized c®sturities not classified as held to matu
including equity securities with readily determiteafair values, are classified as available-foesacurities and carried at estimated fair
value. Securities classified as available for salgsist of securities management intends to halehfiefinite periods of time, including
securities to be used as part of the Company’s/babéity management strategy and securities thay be sold in response to changes in
interest rates, prepayment risk, or other siméatdrs. Unrealized appreciation or depreciatiofainvalue above or below amortized cost is
included in stockholders’ equity, net of incomedsxunder the category of accumulated other corepsgte income (“AOCI"). Gains or
losses on the call, maturity, or sale of investnseturities are recorded based on the specifidifibtion method. Purchase premiums and
discounts are amortized or accreted over the filesecurity into interest income.

The Company performs an extensive quarterly rev@edetermine if impairment exists in the investmeamittfolio. If a security is deemed
impaired, management evaluates the causes of ineg&bsses to determine whether the impairmeteinigorary or other-than-temporary in
nature. If a security is determined to be othentteamporarily impaired, the value of the securityeduced and a corresponding charge to
noninterest income is recognized. If the other-tteanporary impairment (“OTTI") is related to a delgicurity, the Company determines the
amount of the impairment related to the credit,ledsich is recognized in noninterest income, argdaimount related to all other factors,
which is recognized in other comprehensive incot@(”).

Loans Held for Sale

Loans originated with the intent to sell in theasatary market are classified as held for sale. kdwald for sale consist primarily of one to
four family residential loans and are carried atlthwer of cost or estimated fair value as deteethion an aggregate basis. These long-term,
fixed rate loans are sold to investors on a bdsttefbasis; consequently, the Company does nairbltbe interest rate risk involved in these
loans. The fair value of loans held for sale isdmined by quoted market prices for loans with Eimtoupon rates and terms.
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The Company enters into interest rate lock commité1RLCs”) with customers on mortgage loans muted to be sold in the secondary
market and commitments to sell mortgages. Thes€#dnd forward sale loan commitments are recorti&adravalue in other assets and
liabilities with any changes in fair value recogrdzin other income. These derivative instrumentaataqyualify as hedges. The fair value of
IRLC derivatives is determined by quoted marketgsifor loans with similar coupon rates and teifhe fair value of forward sale loan
commitments is based on changes in the value afdhemitment, principally because of changes inragerates.

Loans Held for Investment

Loans originated with the intent to hold for anefidite period of time, until maturity, or until paff are classified as held for investment.
Loans held for investment are carried at the ppalcamount outstanding, net of unearned incoms,dag write-downs necessary to reduce
individual loans to net realizable value. Loan oradion fees, including loan commitment and undémg fees, are reduced by direct costs
associated with loan processing, including salalégml review, and appraisal fees. Net deferrad lees are deferred and amortized over the
life of the related loan or commitment period.

The Company maintains an active and robust prolleiit identification system through its ongoinegdit review function. When a credit is
identified as exhibiting characteristics of weakepithe Company assesses the credit for potemt@irment. Loans are considered impaired
when, in the opinion of management and based aemtinformation and events, the collection of pifial and interest payments due under
the contractual terms of the loan agreements awbtfid. The impairment allowances allocated towdlial loans, including individual credit
relationships, and loan pools, grouped by simike characteristics, are reviewed by managemet quarterly basis. Factors considered in
determining impairment include, but are not limitedthe borrower’s cash flow and capacity for defpayment, the valuation of collateral,
historical loss percentages, and economic condition

The Company’s Special Assets staff reviews loari®$Bousand and greater on a quarterly basis. Atofunterest on loans is generally
based on the daily amount of principal outstandirans are considered past due when either prihaigaterest payments become
contractually delinquent by 30 or more days. Coresulmans are generally charged off against thevaltee for loan losses when the loans
become 120 days past due (180 days if securedsidergial real estate and 90 days if unsecuredpthkr loans are charged off against the
allowance for loan losses after collection attenfigtge been exhausted, which generally is withind&gs. It is the Company’s policy to
discontinue the accrual of interest, if warrantaujoans based on the payment status, evaluatitheaklated collateral, and the financial
strength of the borrower. The accrual of interesbime is normally discontinued when a loan becd@edays past due. Management may
elect to continue the accrual of interest wherldlha is well secured and in process of collectihen interest accruals are discontinued,
interest accrued and not collected in the curreat ys reversed from income, and interest accraddhat collected from prior years is char
to the allowance for loan losses. Interest incoeadized on impaired loans is recognized upon rédeipe impaired loan is on a nonaccrual
basis. Nonaccrual loans may be returned to acstatls if the loan is brought current and followsesiod of sustained performance,
including six months of regular principal and irgstrpayments. Accrual of interest on impaired laarmgenerally continued unless the loan
becomes delinquent 90 days or more. Recoveriasaofl previously charged off are credited to thenadhce for loan losses in the period
received.

Loans are considered troubled debt restructurifiBRs”) when the Company grants concessions, fgaller economic reasons, to
borrowers experiencing financial difficulty that wid not otherwise be considered. The Company gpenakes concessions in interest
rates, loan terms, and/or amortization terms. AIRE $250 thousand or greater are evaluated foecifspreserve based on either the
collateral or net present value method,
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whichever is most applicable. TDRs under $250 thndsare subject to the reserve calculation foisdiasl loans based primarily on the
historical loss rate. At the date of modificatiomnaccrual loans are classified as nonaccrual TDBRs classified as nonperforming at the
date of modification are returned to performindustaafter six months of satisfactory payment penfamce; however, these loans remain
identified as impaired until full payment or ottsatisfaction of the obligation occurs.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is maintained avel lmanagement deems sufficient to absorb probablelosses inherent in the loan
portfolio. The allowance is increased by chargesamings in the form of provisions and recoveofgrior loan chargeffs and decreased
loans charged off. The provision is calculated eimarged to earnings to bring the allowance to allthat, according to a systematic process
of measurement, reflects the amount managementass is needed to absorb probable losses in tifelmm While management utilizes its
best judgment and information available, the ulteredequacy of the allowance is dependent upomietyaf factors beyond the Company’s
control: the performance of the Company’s loanfptid, the economy, changes in interest ratesyibe of regulatory authorities towards
loan classifications, and other factors. While nggamaent has allocated the allowance for loan lossepecific loans and general portfolio
segments, the entire allowance is available foragsenst any type of loan loss deemed appropriatadnagement.

Management performs quarterly assessments to detethe appropriate level of the allowance for lézsses. The Company'’s allowance is
segmented into commercial, consumer real estatec@msumer and other loans with each segment divide classes with similar
characteristics, such as the type of loan andteodih The allowance for loan losses includes $ipeailocations to significant individual loal
and credit relationships and general reservesstodimaining loans that have been deemed impaihd_not specifically identified are
grouped into pools based on similar risk charagties. A loan that becomes adversely classifiegraded is moved into a group of adversely
classified or graded loans with similar risk chagastics for evaluation. Management’s generalmasallocations are based on judgments of
qualitative and quantitative factors about macrd maicro economic conditions reflected in the loantfolio and the economy.

No allowance for loan losses is carried over caldighed at acquisition for purchased loans acduiréusiness combinations. A provisi

for loan losses is recorded for any credit detation in purchased performing loans after the agition date. Purchased credit impaired
(“PCI") loans are grouped into pools and evaluatepiarately from the non-PClI portfolio. The Compasiimates cash flows to be collected
on PCI loans and discounts those cash flows atrkeneate of interest. If cash flows for PCI loare expected to decline, generally a
provision for loan losses is charged to earningsulting in an increase to the allowance for lamsés. If cash flows for PCI loans are
expected to improve, any previously establishealahce is first reversed to the extent of priorrgha and then interest income is increased
using prospective yield adjustment over the remagjilife of the loan, or pool of loans. Any provigiestablished for PCI loans covered under
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIG8s share agreements is offset by an adjustmenéetBDIC indemnification asset to
reflect the indemnified portion of the post-acqtiigi exposure.

Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned (“OREQ”) and acquired thnofioreclosure, or other settlement, is carriethadower of cost or fair value less
estimated selling costs. The fair value is gengitzdised on current third-party appraisals. Wheropqrty is transferred into OREO, any
excess of the loan balance over the net realifablealue is charged against the allowance fon lmsses. Operating expenses, gains, and
losses on the sale of OREO are included in otheinterest expense in the Company’s consolidatedratents of income after any fair value
write-downs are recorded as valuation adjustments.
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Business Combinations

The Company may engage in business combinatiomsothier companies. These transactions are accofortading Topic 805 of the
Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (“FASB”) Aocaniting Standards Codification (“ASC”), which rerps the use of the acquisition
method of accounting. In accordance with the adipismethod of accounting, all identifiable assatguired, including purchased loans,
liabilities are recorded at fair value. Any exce§she purchase price over the fair value of neetsacquired is recorded as goodwill. In
instances where the price of the acquired busisdsss than the net assets acquired, a gain goutisbase is recorded.

Management makes significant estimates and judgmergccounting for business combinations. Faineslare assigned based on quoted
prices for similar assets, if readily available appraisals by qualified independent parties favant asset and liability categories.
Management must also make estimates for the usedonomic lives of certain acquired assets aiilliiies. These lives are used in
establishing the amortization and accretion of sortengible assets and liabilities, such as copsliés obtained in the acquisition of
commercial banks. Fair values are subject to refer for up to one year after the closing datéefacquisition as additional information
regarding the closing date fair values becomedahlai The results of operations of an acquireityeate included in the Company’s
consolidated results of operations from the closia of the merger.

Purchased loans are recorded using the fair vagibadology outlined in Topic 820 of the FASB AS&clasive of loss share agreements
with the FDIC. The fair value estimates associatél loans include expected prepayments and theuatrand timing of expected principal,
interest, and other cash flows. No allowance fanltosses is recorded at acquisition for purchéssts because the fair values of the
acquired loans incorporate assumptions regardiedgitarisk.

When purchased loans exhibit evidence of credérigtition after the acquisition date, and it islyable at acquisition the Company will not
collect all contractually required principal anderest payments, the loans are referred to asd2@t! PCI loans are accounted for using 1
310-30 of the FASB ASC, formerly the American Itk of Certified Public Accountants’ Statemenfafsition 03-3, “Accounting for
Certain Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a $fan” PCI loans are initially measured at fairuglwhich includes estimated future credit
losses expected to be incurred over the life ofdhas. In accordance with the guidance, the Compagregates PCI loans that have
common risk characteristics into loan pools. ThenBany has established the following loan poolste€l#o the acquisitions of Peoples Bank
of Virginia (“Peoples”) and Waccamaw Bank (“Waccamipfor evaluation: Waccamaw commercial, Waccamimgd of credit, Peoples
commercial, Waccamaw serviced home equity lines;d&imaw residential, Peoples residential, and Waasaconsumer. Evidence of credit
quality deterioration at acquisition may includeaseres such as nonaccrual status, credit scoetein collateral value, current loan to
value percentages, and days past due. The Compansiders expected prepayments and estimates thenamed timing of expected
principal, interest, and other cash flows for elam or pool of loans identified as credit impairdfdhe contractually required payments at
acquisition exceed the cash flows expected to Beated, the excess is the naoeretable difference, which is available to abswddlit losse
on those loans or pools of loans. If the cash flewgected at acquisition exceed the estimated/édiles, the excess is the accretable yield,
which is recognized in interest income over theaiing lives of those loans or pools of loans wttere is a reasonable expectation about
the amount and timing of such cash flows.

Purchased performing loans are accounting for usiagontractual cash flow method of accountingctvinesults in these loans being
recorded at fair value with a credit discount. Téie value discount is accreted as an adjustmeyield over the estimated contractual lives of
the loans. Additional information regarding the
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accounting and valuation of the allowance for ltzmses related to purchased loans, intangiblesassad receivables resulting from FDIC-
assisted transactions is found in this note ottiresolidated financial statements.

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Indemnificaton Asset

The FDIC indemnification asset represents the aagrgmount of the right to receive payments from EDIC for losses incurred on specified
assets purchased from the FDIC that are coverdaiskyshare agreements. The FDIC indemnificatioatassneasured separately from rel:
covered assets because it is not contractually éddakin the assets or transferable should thesassatisposed. In accordance with the
acquisition method of accounting, the FDIC indericaifion asset was recorded at fair value usingegptef cash flows based on expected
reimbursements and applicable loss share percengasgautlined in the loss share agreements witREHE. The expected reimbursements
did not include reimbursable amounts related torfutovered expenditures. The cash flows were diged to reflect the timing and receipt
of reimbursements from the FDIC. The discount iyeted through noninterest income over future pistid he Company regularly reviews
the fair value of the FDIC indemnification assethwinput from a third-party provider. Post-acqudsitadjustments to the indemnification
asset are measured on the same basis as the umgledyered assets. Increases in the cash flowswared loans reduce the FDIC
indemnification asset balance, which is recognagdmortization through noninterest income ovestigeter of the remaining life of the
FDIC indemnification asset or the underlying lodbecreases in the cash flows of covered loansaser¢he FDIC indemnification asset
balance, which is recognized as accretion througtinterest income. The realization of the FDIC mdéication asset ultimately depends on
the performance of the underlying covered asdetspassage of time, and claims paid by the FDI&gfore, the amount the Company
realizes could differ materially from the carryinglue.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost lesmatated depreciation and amortization. Depreciatiod amortization are computed by the
straight-line method over the estimated usefuklioéthe respective assets. Useful lives range am10 years for furniture, fixtures, and
equipment; 3 to 5 years for software, hardware,datd handling equipment; and 10 to 40 years fadiogs and building improvements.
Land improvements are amortized over a period ofedis and leasehold improvements are amortizedtibgdesser of the term of the
respective leases plus the first optional renewebp, when renewal is reasonably assured, ordtimated useful lives of the improvements.
The Company leases various properties within émdéin network. Leases generally have initial teringoao 20 years and most contain
options to renew with reasonable increases in Adhteases are accounted for as operating leddamtenance and repairs are charged to
current operations while improvements that extéredetconomic useful life of the underlying assetcagitalized. Disposition gains and los
are reflected in current operations.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of goodwill, core depiosiingible assets, and other identifiable intalegéssets that result from business
combinations. Goodwill represents the excess opthrehase price over the fair value of net asssgieed, and it is allocated to the
appropriate reporting unit when acquired. The Campaaintains two reporting units, Community Bankarg Insurance Services. Goodwill
is not amortized, but is tested annually in thetfoguarter using a qualitative assessment to mhdterif it is more likely than not that the fair
value of each reporting unit is less than its dagyamount. If the Company concludes that it is erdely than not that the fair value of eitl
reporting unit is less than its carrying amoung, tilvo-step quantitative goodwill impairment tespésformed. Step 1 consists of calculating
and comparing the fair value of each reporting tmits carrying amount, including goodwill. If tiigir value of a reporting unit is greater
than its book value, no
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goodwill impairment exists. If the carrying amowfita reporting unit is greater than its calculdtgdvalue, goodwill impairment may exist
and Step 2 is required to determine the amouriteofrhpairment loss. The Company performed its anmyzairment test of goodwill as of
October 31, 2013, and determined that qualitatittedy it was more likely than not that goodwill wast impaired; therefore, the Step 1 and
Step 2 tests were not deemed necessary. Qualifatit@rs considered in the analysis included mamoemic conditions, industry and mar
considerations, overall financial performance, gfgnin stock price, and the Company’s progressrasvstated objectives as compared to
prior years. An impairment charge to goodwill arldes intangible assets may be required in the éuifuthe Company’s future earnings and
cash flows decline or discount rates used in detengp fair value increase. No events have occuaféet the 2013 analysis to indicate
additional impairment.

Core deposit intangible assets represent the feama@ngs potential of acquired deposit relatiopsiand are amortized over their estimated
remaining useful lives. Other identifiable intangilassets primarily represent the rights arisingifcontractual arrangements and are
amortized using the straight-line method.

Other Investments

As a condition of membership in the FHLB and thdd¥al Reserve Bank (“FRB”), the Company is requiedubscribe to a minimum level
of stock in the FHLB of Atlanta (“FHLBA”) and FRBf&ichmond. These securities are reported in aissets in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets. There is no markétdse securities and ownership is restrictedetbes, readily determinable fair values are
not available. The Company carries these nonmarletzcurities at cost and reviews the FHLB of Atastock quarterly for impairment.
The Company believes the FHLB of Atlanta ownergiopition provides access to relatively inexpensitelesale and overnight funding.
During 2013 and 2012 the FHLBA repurchased exceisgity-based stock and paid quarterly cash divitberBased on publicly available
information as of December 31, 2013, the Compatig\yed that its FHLBA stock was not impaired. Thgastment in FHLBA stock was
$10.72 million as of December 31, 2013, and $1i8lon as of December 31, 2012. The investmeritRB of Richmond stock was $5.58
million as of December 31, 2013, and $5.57 mill&enof December 31, 2012.

The Company maintains long-term investments inotegrientities, including the Trust, certain tax d@réihited partnerships, and other limited
liability companies that provide aviation servicesurance brokerage, title insurance, and otHateg financial services. These entities are
reported in other assets in the Company’s condelitlhalance sheets. Investments in entities teaCtdmpany has no significant influence or
control over, generally ownership interests of ks 20%, are recorded using the cost methodanfiending. In accordance with the cost
method, these investments do not have readily mi@iable fair values and dividends received are gdlyaecorded as income. Investments
in entities that the Company has the ability toreise significant influence over but not contraéngrally ownership interests ranging from
20% to 50%, are recorded using the equity methatodunting. In accordance with the equity methidddends received generally reduce
the carrying amount of the investment, and thestiment is adjusted to recognize the Company'’s stfdfee entity’s earnings, losses, and
changes in capital, if any. Management believesfatuye adjustments to equity investments will tmenaterial. All longterm investments a
reviewed periodically for possible impairment. Tdarying value and maximum potential loss of eqintsestments totaled $786 thousand as
of December 31, 2013, and $782 thousand as of De=e8i, 2012.
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Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

Securities sold under agreements to repurchasgearrally accounted for as collateralized finan¢ragsactions. Securities, generally U.S.
government and federal agency securities, pledgetléateral under these arrangements can be soipledged only if replaced by the
secured party. The fair value of the collateravpded to a third party is continually monitored aadHitional collateral is provided as
appropriate.

Advertising Expenses

Advertising costs are generally expensed as indufiee Company may establish accruals for antiegbatlvertising expenses in the cours
a fiscal year.

Equity-Based Compensation

The cost of employee services received in exchéorgequity instruments, such as stock options astricted stock awards, is generally
measured at fair value on the grant date. A Blazike®s model is utilized to estimate the fair vadfistock options, while the market price of
the Company’s common stock at the date of gramsésl as the fair value of restricted stock awadsnpensation cost is recognized over the
required service period, generally defined as #wsting period for stock option awards and as theiction period for restricted stock awards.
For awards with graded vesting, compensation sagtdognized on a straight-line basis over theisgquservice period for the entire award.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense is comprised of the currentdafiekred tax consequences of events and transactimady recognized. The Company
includes interest and penalties related to incawdiabilities in income tax expense. The effectiae rate, income tax expense as a perce
of pre-tax income, may vary significantly from sty rates due to tax credits and permanent éiffees. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized for the estimated future tax coresecgs attributable to differences between the éaed of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purpos&s changes in tax laws or rates are enacted, deféax assets and liabilities are adjusted
through the provision for income taxes.

The Company and its subsidiari¢ax filings for the years ended December 31, 2008ugh 2012 are currently open to audit under tatat
limitation by the Internal Revenue Service and masistate tax departments.

Earnings per Common Share

Basic earnings per common share is calculated\igidg net income available to common shareholtigrthe weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. Qdletrnings per common share includes the dilufifeeeof potential common stock that
could be issued by the Company. In accordancetivithireasury stock method of accounting, potentaimon stock could be issued for
stock options, nonvested restricted stock awarlfppnance based stock awards, and convertiblepesf stock. Diluted earnings per
common share is calculated by dividing net incoméhle weighted average number of common sharesaodisg for the period plus the
number of dilutive potential common shares. Thewdation of diluted earnings per common share eladypotential common shares that
have an exercise price greater than the averageemalue of the Company’s common stock becausefteet would be antidilutive.
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The following table presents the calculation ofibasid diluted earnings per common share for thmgg indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per steteg 2013 2012 2011
Net income $ 23,3L $ 28,557 $ 20,02¢
Dividends on preferred stox 1,02¢ 1,05¢ 703
Net income available to common shareholc $ 22,28t $ 2751¢ $ 19,32
Weighted average number of common shares outsignusic 19,792,09 19,127,06 17,877,42
Dilutive effect of potential common shares frc
Stock options 19,331 4,54¢ 1,39(
Restricted stoc 5,01¢ 2,107 343
Convertible preferred stoc 1,132,99i 1,285,84: 808,36°
Contingently issuable shar 12,35: — —
Weighted average number of common shares outsigndiloted _20,961,80 _20,419,56 18,687,52
Basic earnings per common sh $ 1.13 $ 1.44 $ 1.0¢
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 1.11 $ 1.4C $ 1.07
Antidilutive potential common share
Stock options 317,42( 420,80: 393,13¢
Restricted stoc 271 — 2,34:
Total potential antidilutive shart 317,69: 420,80:. 395,47t

The Company’s Series A Noncumulative Convertiblef€red Stock (“Series A Preferred Stock”) caraeg? dividend rate. Each share of
the Series A Preferred Stock is convertible intsBares of the Company’s common stock at any timlengandatorily converts after five
years. The Company may redeem the shares at faee after May 20, 2014. The number of Series Aé&refl Stock outstanding was 15,:
as of December 31, 2013, 17,421 as of Decembe&@P, and 18,921 shares as of December 31, 2011.

Derivative Instruments

A derivative is an instrument whose value is datifrem an underlying instrument or index, suchrdsrest rates, equity security prices,
currencies, commodity prices, or credit spreadsivagves include futures, forwards, swaps, optiontracts, and other financial instruments
with similar characteristics. Derivative contraoften involve future commitments to exchange irgepalyment streams or currencies based
on a notional or contractual amount (e.g., interas swaps or currency forwards) or to purchaslhiother financial instruments at speci
terms on a specified date (e.g., options to bugetirsecurities or currencies). The Company eritgosderivative transactions principally to
protect against the risk of adverse price or irsterate movements on the value of certain asset$iailities and on future cash flows. All
derivative instruments are reported at fair vatuthe balance sheets.

If certain conditions are met, a derivative maydbsignated as a hedge related to fair value, ¢ash dr foreign exposure risk. Changes in
fair value of a derivative instrument vary depemgdim the intended use of the derivative and thalting designation. The Company accounts
for fair value hedges using the regression analysithod. The hedged item is regressed with theihgdgstrument and if the coefficient of
determination is at least 0.80 the hedge will bentled effective. The change in fair value of thediregl derivative and the change in fair ve

of the hedged exposure are recorded in earningsh&dge ineffectiveness is also reflected in cureannings. Changes in the fair value of
derivatives not designated as
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hedging instruments are recognized as a gain sfitosarnings. The Company formally documents atgtionships between hedging
instruments and hedged items and the risk managesbgttive and strategy for undertaking each hddgmnsaction. As of December 31,
2013, the Company had one interest rate swap tiaifigd as a fair value hedging instrument. ThenPany’s other derivative instruments
include various IRLCs and forward sale loan comreitis that do not qualify as hedging instruments.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would lmeired to sell an asset or paid to transfer alitglin an orderly transaction between market
participants. A fair value measurement assumedhiearansaction to sell the asset or transfelidhdity occurs in the principal market for t
asset or liability or, in the absence of a printiparket, the most advantageous market for thet asdiability. The price in the principal, or
most advantageous, market used to measure theafag of the asset or liability shall not be adpastor transaction costs. An orderly
transaction is a transaction that assumes exptstine market for a period before the measurematat tv allow for marketing activities that
are usual and customary for transactions involgimch assets and liabilities; it is not a forceddetion. Market participants are buyers and
sellers in the principal market that are indepehdarowledgeable, able to transact, and willingrémsact.

The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 Inputs — Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets fortidahassets or liabilities that the reporting Bnkias the ability to
access at the measurement d

Level 2 Inputs — Inputs other than quoted prices included in Levidat are observable for the asset or liabilitthesi directly or
indirectly. These might include quoted prices fionikar assets or liabilities in active markets, tpprices for identici
or similar assets or liabilities in markets that aot active, inputs other than quoted pricesdahaibbservable for the
asset or liability and provide a reasonable bagi$dir value determination, such as interest ratedd curves,
volatilities, prepayment speeds, default rates,aadit risks, or inputs that are principally dexivfrom observable
market data

Level 3 Inputs — Unobservable inputs for determining the fair valagassets or liabilities when there is little armarket activity at the
measurement date, using reasonable inputs and pssnombased on the best information at the timéhé extent that
inputs are available without undue cost and efftinese inputs and assumptions may include modatetemputs that
are not corroborated by observable market dataaarehtity s own assumption

These valuation methodologies were applied tofah® Company’s assets and liabilities carriechat\falue. In general, fair value is based
upon quoted market prices, where available. If sjuabted market prices are not available, fair védugased upon third-party models that
primarily use, as inputs, observable market-basedmeters. Valuation adjustments may be made toetisat financial instruments are
recorded at fair value. These adjustments may decAmounts to reflect counterparty credit quathe, Company’s creditworthiness, among
other things, as well as unobservable parametemg sach valuation adjustments are applied conglgtewer time. The Company'’s valuation
methodologies may produce a fair value calculati@i may not be indicative of net realizable valueeflective of future fair values. While
management believes the Company’s valuation methgis are appropriate and consistent with otheketgarticipants, the use of
different methodologies or assumptions to deterrtiieefair value of certain financial instrumentsilcbresult in a different estimate of fair
value at the reporting date.
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Accounting Standards Updates

In February 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Steaslblpdate (“ASU”) 2013-02, “Reporting of Amounts@assified Out of Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income,” which requires ametdiprovide information about the amounts redfaess out of accumulated other
comprehensive income. An entity is required to @néseither on the face of the statement wheréngetne is presented or in the notes,
significant amounts reclassified out of accumulatgder comprehensive income by the respectiveitéms of net income but only if the
amount reclassified is required under GAAP to ldassified to net income in its entirety in the samaporting period. For other amounts not
required under GAAP to be reclassified in theilirety to net income, an entity is required to crosfgrence to other disclosures required
under GAAP that provide additional detail aboutsthamounts. This update is effective prospectif@lynterim and annual periods beginn
on or after December 15, 2012. The Company addhteduidance in 2013 and has included the relassfiodures in Note 17, “Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income,” to the Consolidateduftial Statements of this report.

In October 2012, the FASB issued ASU 2012-06, “Bass Combinations (Topic 805) — Subsequent Accogrfitir an Indemnification Asset
Recognized at the Acquisition Date as a Result@baernment-Assisted Acquisition of a Financialitosion (a consensus of the FASB
Emerging Issues Task Force),” to address the diyemspractice about how to subsequently measarmdemnification asset recognized as a
result of a government-assisted acquisition oharftial institution. The amendments in ASU 2012dXuire a reporting entity to
subsequently account for a change in the measutevhére indemnification asset on the same bastkeashange in the assets subject to
indemnification. ASU 2012-06 further requires thay amortization of changes in value be limitethilesser of the term of the
indemnification agreement and the remaining liféhaf indemnified assets. The amendments in ASU-P81&re effective prospectively for
fiscal years beginning on or after December 1522@hd early adoption is permitted. The Companypsstbthe guidance in 2013 and has
recognized negative accretion related to the indfération asset.

Note 2.  Acquisitions and Divestitures
Peoples Bank of Virgini

On May 31, 2012, the Company completed the acquisitf Peoples, based in Richmond, Virginia. Pespéefull service community bank,
operated 4 branches throughout the Richmond artescduisition, Peoples had total assets of $27&ilin, loans of $184.84 million, and
deposits of $232.75 million. The purchase price $43.28 million, including common stock valued 26%17 million and cash consideration
of $12.26 million. The Company issued 2,157,005ehaf common stock with an estimated fair valu81#.27 per share. Each outstanding
share of Peoples was exchanged for $6.08 in cash.8@ shares of the Company’s common stock. Thapaay recorded goodwill of
$10.32 million from the acquisition.

Waccamaw Bank

On June 8, 2012, the Company entered into a puedrasd assumption agreement with loss share arrargsmwith the FDIC to purchase
certain assets and assume substantially all aleépesits and certain liabilities of Waccamaw, headlggred in Whiteville, North Carolina.
Waccamaw, a full service community bank, operattranches throughout North Carolina and South IPa&r0At acquisition, Waccamaw
had total assets of $500.64 million, loans of $3%8nillion, and deposits of $414.13 million. Undlee loss share agreements, the FDIC
covers 80% of most loan and foreclosed real eiages. The Company recorded an indemnificatioatagsp49.76 million at acquisition
representing the present value of estimated laasesvered assets to be reimbursed by the FDIC CEmepany recorded goodwill of $10.62
million from the acquisition.
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Insurance Service

In 2013 the Company issued cash consideration @ $iousand to purchase one agency. The acquisitiors call for further cash
consideration of $253 thousand if certain operatamgets are met. The fair value of these paymeassbooked at acquisition and added $324
thousand of goodwill and other intangibles to tlemPany’s consolidated balance sheet as of Dece®ih@013. In 2011 Greenpoint

received cash of $1.58 million from the sale of @gencies.

Acquisitions that occurred before 2009 call fouisg further cash consideration if certain opeatargets are met. If those targets are met,
the value of the consideration will be added todbst of the acquisition. Eamut payments related to these acquisitions tothiei® thousan
in 2013, $692 thousand in 2012, and $680 thousag011.

Net Cash Paid (Acquired) in Acquisitions and Diitageés

The following table presents the components ottash acquired, or paid, in acquisitions and dit@®s, an investing activity in the
Company’s statements of cash flows, in the perindgated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012 2011
Acquisitions
Fair value of assets and liabilities acquir
Investment $ — $ 62,91¢ $ —
Loans 281 419,32( —
Premises and equipme — 7,53¢ —
Other asset — 255,92. —
Deposits — (649,18, —
Other liabilities — (60,08%) —
Purchase price in excess of net assets acq 663 21,81( 68(
Total purchase pric 944 58,23¢ 68(

Y 26,46¢ —
184,05: —

Non-cash purchase pric
Cash acquire

Divestitures

24

Net cash paid (acquired) in acquisitic 697 (152,28 68(
Book value of assets sc — — (1,67¢)
Book value of liabilities soli — — 17¢
Sales price in excess of net liabilities assul — — (67)
Total sales pric — — (1,57¢
Cash solc — — —
Amount due remaining on boo — — 6C

Net cash acquired in divestitur — — 1,51F)

Net cash paid (acquired) in acquisitions and dittgsts $ 697 $(152,28)) $ (835

82



Table of Contents

FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Note 3. Investment Securities

The following tables present the amortized costfaidvalue of available-for-sale securities, irdihg gross unrealized gains and losses, as o
the dates indicated:

December 31, 201

Amortized Unrealizec Unrealized Fair OTTlin
(Amounts in thousand Cost Gains Losses Value Aocl (1)
U.S. Treasury securities $ 9,70¢ $ — $ (695) $ 9,01 $ —
Municipal securitie: 147,04¢ 1,86¢ (4,637 144,28l —
Single issue trust preferred securil 55,76¢ — (9,530 46,23¢ —
Corporate securitie 5,00( — (129 4,871 —
Mortgagebacked securitie:
Agency 306,31¢ 2,57¢ (8,50¢) 300,38t —
Non-Agency All-A residential 12,54: — (2,759 9,78¢ (2,759
Total mortgag-backed securitie 318,86: 2,57¢ (11,267) 310,17! (2,759
Equity securitie: 5,25¢ 24 (36) 5,24 —
Total $541,64. $ 4,461 $(26,289) $519,82! $(2,759)
December 31, 201,
Amortized Unrealizec Unrealized OTTlin
(Amounts in thousand Cost Gains Losses Fair Value Aocl @)
Municipal securities $151,11¢ $ 8,19t $ (97)  $159,21° $ —
Single issue trust preferred securil 55,70" — (11,067 44,64¢ —
Mortgagebacked securitie:
Agency 310,32: 6,02 (449 315,89 —
Non-Agency All-A residential 14,21°¢ — (3,14%) 11,06] (3,149
Total mortgag-backed securitie 324,53t 6,02: (3,599 326,96 (3,149
Equity securitie: 3,44¢ 19C (10£5) 3,531 —
Total $534,81( $14,40¢ $(14,86() $534,35! $(3,149

(1) Otherthar-temporary impairment in accumulated other comprsiverincome
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The following table presents the amortized costalue, and weighted-average yield of availalledale securities, by contractual maturity,
as of December 31, 2013. Actual maturities couffiédfrom contractual maturities because issuerg hae the right to call or prepay
obligations with or without penalties.

Tax Equivalent
U.S. Treasury

Municipal Purchase
(Amounts in thousand Securities Securities Corporate Notes Total Yield (1)
Amortized cost maturity
Within one yea $ — $ 1,38¢ $ — $ 1,38t 3.85%
After one year through five
years — 14,22° — 14,22° 5.6%%
After five years through ten
years 9,70¢ 131,43t 55,76: 196,90t 3.62%
After ten years — — 5,00z 5,00z 1.15%
Amortized cos $ 9,70¢ $147,04¢ $ 60,76¢ 217,52:
Mortgagebacked securitie 318,86: 2.5(%
Equity securitie: 5,25¢ 4.92%
Total amortized cos $541,64.
Tax equivalent purchase yie 2.0<% 4.7% 1.3%% 3.01%
Average contractual maturity (in
years) 9.3¢ 10.4: 13.5¢ 11.2¢
Fair value maturity
Within one yeal $ — $ 1,39¢ $ — $ 1,39¢
After one year through five
years — 14,55% — 14,55%
After five years through ten
years 9,01z 128,33( 47,13: 184,47:
After ten year: — — 3,97¢ 3,97¢
Fair value $ 9,01 $144,28( $ 51,10¢ 204,39t
Mortgage-backed securitie 310,17¢
Equity securities 5,24
Total fair value $519,82(

(1) Fully taxable equivalent at the rate of 3t

The following tables present the amortized costfairdvalue of held-to-maturity securities, incladigross unrealized gains and losses, as of
the dates indicated:

December 31, 201

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
(Amounts in thousand Cost Gains Losses Value
Municipal securities $ 56E $ 11 $ — $57¢
Total $ 56¢ $ 11 $ — $57¢

December 31, 201,

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
(Amounts in thousand Cost Gains Losses Value
Municipal securities $ 8le $ 16 $ — $832
Total $ 81€ $ 16 $ — $832
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The following table presents the amortized costMalue, and weighted-average yield of held-toumi&t securities, by contractual maturity,
as of December 31, 2013. Actual maturities couffiédfrom contractual maturities because issuerg hae the right to call or prepay
obligations with or without penalties.

Tax Equivalent

Municipal
Purchase
(Amounts in thousand Securities Yield (1)
Amortized cost maturity
Within one yea $ 19C 8.05%
After one year through five yea 37¢ 8.17%
After five years through ten yee — —
After ten year — —
Total amortized cos $ 56¢
Tax equivalent purchase yie 8.1%%
Average contractual maturity (in yea 1.3
Fair value maturity
Within one yeal $ 198
After one year through five yea 38¢€
After five years through ten yee —
After ten years —
Total fair value $ 57¢

(1) Fully taxable equivalent at the rate of 3t

The following table presents municipal securitl®s state, for the states where the largest voluihtieese securities are held in the Company’
portfolio. The table also presents the amortizest aad fair value of the municipal securities, inthg gross unrealized gains and losses,
the dates indicated.

December 31, 201.

Percent of

(Amounts in thousand Municipal Portfolio Amortized Cost Unrealized Gains Unrealized Losse Fair Value
New York 11.3%% $ 16,16 $ 294 $ (29) $ 16,42%
Minnesots 8.5t% 12,50 174 (279 12,39¢
New Jerse 8.1¢% 11,56¢ 30€ (25) 11,84¢
Connecticu 7.8t% 11,40¢ 91 (109 11,38¢
Wisconsin 7.8%% 11,81¢ 11¢€ (584) 11,34¢
Ohio 7.4%% 11,29¢ 13¢ (637) 10,79:
Massachuseti 6.85% 10,10z 11¢ (295) 9,92¢
Texas 6.2/% 9,48t 134 (57¢€) 9,041
Other 35.6(% 53,28: 50¢ (2,109 51,68¢

Total 100.0% $ 147,61 $ 1,87¢ $ (4,63)) $144,85¢
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December 31, 201.

Percent of

(Amounts in thousand Municipal Portfolio Amortized Cost Unrealized Gains Unrealized Losse Fair Value
New York 11.0%% $ 16,55 $ 1,11« $ — $ 17,66¢
Wisconsin 8.6% 13,26¢ 60z — 13,86¢
Minnesots 8.61% 12,99( 79€ (4) 13,78«
New Jerse! 8.01% 11,94( 874 — 12,81«
Connecticu 1.7%% 11,69¢ 66C — 12,35:
Texas 7.42% 11,41¢ 47C (16) 11,87(
Ohio 7.31% 11,145 57¢ (21) 11,70
Massachuseti 6.9¢% 10,53 642 3) 11,17(
Other 34.25% 52,40( 2,47¢ (53) 54,82:

Total 100.0(% $ 151,93 $ 8,211 $ (97 $160,04¢

The following tables present the fair values anckatized losses for available-for-sale securitiea continuous unrealized loss position for
less than 12 months and for 12 months or longef #s dates indicated. There were no held-to-nitstaecurities in a continuous unrealized
loss position as of December 31, 2013 or 2012.

December 31, 201:

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or longer Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

(Amounts in thousand Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. Treasury securities $ 901z $ (695 & — $ — $ 901z $ (699
Municipal securitie: 57,95( (4,149 3,04¢ (490 60,99¢ (4,637)
Single issue trust preferred securil — — 46,23¢ (9,530 46,23¢ (9,530
Corporate securitie 4,87 (129 — — 4,87 (129

Mortgage¢backed securitie:
Agency 114,04 (4,367 55,70¢ (4,147 169,75: (8,509
Non-Agency All-A residential — — 9,78¢ (2,759 9,78¢ (2,759
Total mortgag-backed securitie 114,04 (4,367 65,49¢ (6,907 179,54. (11,267)
Equity securitie: 4,97¢ (24) 20 (12 4,99¢ (36€)
Total $190,85° $ (9,356) $114,79¢ $(16,939) $305,65!  $(26,289)
December 31, 201,
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or longer Total

Unrealizec Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

(Amounts in thousand Fair Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Municipal securities $ 6,43¢€ $ ©O) $ — $ — $ 6,43¢ $ (97
Single issue trust preferred securil — — 44,64¢ (11,067 44,64¢ (11,067

Mortgagebacked securitie:

Agency 74,19° (449 15 — 74,21 (449
Non-Agency All-A residential — — 11,06¢ (3,14%) 11,06¢ (3,14%)
Total mortgag-backed securitie 74,19° (449 11,08: (3,149 85,27¢ (3,599
Equity securitie: 3,10¢ (25) 10¢ (80) 3,21¢ (10%)
Total $83,73¢ $ (57) $55,83! $(14,289 $139,57- $(14,86()
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As of December 31, 2013, there were 219 indiviceglrities in an unrealized loss position, and tt@nbined depreciation in value
represented 5.06% of the available-for-sale séeantortfolio. Individual securities in an unrealizloss position as of December 31, 2013,
included 32 securities in a continuous unrealizsgd position for 12 months or longer that the Camypioes not intend to sell, and that it has
determined is not more likely than not going taréguired to sell, prior to the maturities or readee of the securities. As of December 31,
2012, there were 57 individual securities in areafized loss position, and their combined deprixidh value represented 2.78% of the
available-for-sale securities portfolio.

The following table presents the components ofGbmpany’s net gain from the sale of securitieh@geriods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012 2011

Gross realized gains $ 553 $ 728 $ 6,96:¢
Gross realized losst (159 (240 (1,699
Net gain on sale of securiti $ 39¢ $ 482 $ 5,264

The carrying value of securities pledged to sepultdic deposits and other purposes was $284.7oméls of December 31, 2013, and
$292.88 million as of December 31, 2012.

The Company reviews its investment portfolio oruarterly basis for indications of OTTI. Debt seties not beneficially owned by the
Company include securities issued from the U.S.dbtepent of the Treasury (the “Treasury”), municipaturities, and single issue trust
preferred securities. For debt securities not bieiadliy owned, the Company analyzes factors sucth@severity and duration of the
impairment, adverse conditions within the issuingdpuistry, prospects for the issuer, performancéefkecurity, changes in rating by rating
agencies, and other qualitative factors to detegnfithe impairment will be recovered. If the ewation suggests that the impairment will not
be recovered, the Company calculates the preskrg vhthe security to determine the amount of QTHe security is then written down to
its current present value and the Company calaubate records the amount of the loss due to datitrs in earnings through noninterest
income and the amount due to other factors in $siwiders’ equity through OCI. During 2013 and 20th2, Company incurred no OTTI
charges related to debt securities not benefic@adlyjed. Temporary impairment on these securitigsiisarily related to changes in interest
rates, certain disruptions in the credit marke¢stabilization in the Eurozone, and other currenhemic factors.

Debt securities beneficially owned by the Compamiysist of corporate FDIC securities and mortgagekéea securities (“MBS”). For debt
securities beneficially owned, the Company analyhesash flows for each applicable security t@dine if an adverse change in cash
flows expected to be collected has occurred. Ifpttegected value of cash flows at the current répgrdate is less than the present value
previously projected, and less than the currenkb@due, an adverse change has occurred. The Cgntpam compares the current present
value of cash flows to the current net book vatuddtermine the credit-related portion of the OTITHe credit-related OTTI is recorded in
earnings through noninterest income and any remginoncredit-related OTTI is recorded in stockhodtdequity through OCI. The Compa
incurred credit-related OTTI charges related totdelourities beneficially owned of $320 thousan80d3 and $942 thousand in 2012. These
charges were related to a non-Agency MBS.

The Company uses a discounted cash flow modeh@®onon-Agency Alt-A residential MBS with the follavg assumptions: constant
voluntary prepayment rate of 2%, a customized @oristefault rate scenario that assumes
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approximately 16% of the remaining underlying mages will default over the life of the securitydemcustomized loss severity rate scer
that ramps the loss rate down from 55% to 10% twercourse of approximately three years. The fdligwable presents the activity for
credit-related losses recognized in earnings ot sksturities where a portion of an OTTI was recpgdiin OCI for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012 2011
Beginning balanc& $7,47¢ $6,53¢ $4,251
Additions for credit losses on securities not poergly recognize: — — —
Additions for credit losses on securities previgusicognizec 32C 942 2,28¢

Reduction for increases in cash flo — — —
Reduction for securities management no longer dgé¢a hold to recover — — —
Reduction for securities sold/realized los — — —

Ending balanc: $7,79¢ $7,47¢ $6,53¢

(1) The beginning balance includes credit related kgsgduded in OTTI charges recognized on debt siesiin prior periods

For equity securities, the Company considers teninto hold or sell the security before recovéng, severity and duration of the decline in
fair value of the security below its cost, the fin&l condition and near-term prospects of thedgsand whether the decline appears to be
related to issuer, general market, or industry ¢@rs to determine if the impairment will be reeogd. If the Company deems the
impairment other-than-temporary in nature, the ggcis written down to its current present valuglahe OTTI loss is charged to earnings.
During 2013 and 2012, the Company recognized nol@mharges related to equity securities.
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Note 4. Loans

The Company’s loans held for investment are groupexdthree segments (commercial loans, consunaestate loans, and consumer and
other loans) with each segment divided into varidasses. Covered loans are defined as loans adquiFDIC-assisted transactions that are
covered by loss share agreements. Deferred loanfere $3.16 million as of December 31, 2013, $#8kon as of December 31, 2012, ¢
$1.69 million as of December 31, 2011. Customerdradts are reclassified as loans and totaled $hilbn as of December 31, 2013, and
$1.55 million as of December 31, 2012. The follogviable presents loans, net of unearned incomelisadgregated by class, as of the
periods indicated:

December 31

2013 2012
(Amounts in thousand Amount Percent Amount Percent
Non-covered loans held for investme
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other I $ 35,25¢ 206% $ 57,43 3.3%
Commercial and industri 95,45¢ 5.56% 88,73¢ 5.15%
Multi-family residentia 70,19: 4.1(% 65,69¢ 3.81%
Single family no-owner occupiet 135,55¢ 7.92% 135,91. 7.88%
Non-farm, nor-residentia 475,91: 27.82% 448,81( 26.02%
Agricultural 2,32¢ 0.14% 1,70¢ 0.1(%
Farmland 32,61 1.91% 34,57( 2.0(%
Total commercial loan 847,31! 49.5% 832,86° 48.2%
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line! 111,77( 6.52% 111,08: 6.44%
Single family owner occupie 496,01: 28.9% 473,54 27.46%
Owner occupied constructic 28,70 1.68% 16,22 0.94%
Total consumer real estate lo¢ 636,48! 37.2(% 600,85: 34.8%%
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 71,31 4.17% 78,16: 4.52%
Other 3,92¢ 0.25% 5,66¢ 0.3%%
Total consumer and other loz 75,23¢ 4.4(% 83,82¢ 4.86%
Total nor-covered loan 1,559,033 91.19% 1,517,54 87.99%
Total covered loan 151,68: 8.81% 207,10t 12.01%
Total loans held for investment, net of unearnedine $1,710,72. 100.0(% $1,724,65. 100.0(%
Loans held for sal $ 887 $ 6,67-
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The following table presents the components ofGbmpany’s covered loan portfolio, disaggregatedlags, as of the dates indicated:

December 31
(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012
Covered loan
Commercial loan

Construction, development, and other ; $ 15,86¢ $ 26,59t
Commercial and industri 3,32¢ 6,94¢
Multi-family residentia 1,93: 2,611
Single family no-owner occupiet 7,44¢ 11,42¢
Non-farm, nor-residentia 34,64¢ 48,56¢
Agricultural 164 144
Farmland 87¢ 1,091
Total commercial loan 64,25¢ 97,38:
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line: 69,20¢ 81,44
Single family owner occupie 16,91¢ 22,96:
Owner occupied constructic 1,18¢ 1,64¢
Total consumer real estate loz 87,30¢ 106,05(
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 11¢€ 3,67¢
Total covered loan $151,68: $207,10¢

For information concerning off-balance sheet finagcsee Note 20, “Litigation, Commitments and Qugéncies,” to the Consolidated
Financial Statements of this report.

Purchased Credit Impaired Loal

When the fair values of purchased loans are estaali at acquisition, certain loans are identifieéhgpaired. These PCI loans are aggregated
into loan pools that have common risk charactedstfhe Company'’s loan pools consist of Waccamawneercial, Waccamaw lines of

credit, Peoples commercial, Waccamaw serviced renméy lines, Waccamaw residential, Peoples resisleand Waccamaw consumer.

The Company estimates cash flows to be collected@inoans and discounts those cash flows at aehsaake of interest. The following table
presents the carrying and contractual unpaid graidalance of PCI loans, by acquisition, as ofdages indicated:

(Amounts in thousand Peoples Waccamaw Other Total

Carrying balance, January 1, 2011 $3,221 $ 3,221
Carrying balance, December 31, 2( 2,88¢ 2,88¢
Unpaid principal balance, December 31, 2 6,824 6,824
Carrying balance, January 1, 2C $ — $ — $2,88¢ $ 2,88¢
Impaired loans acquire 32,60: 117,57. — 150,17!
Carrying balance, December 31, 2( 26,90° 112,09: 2,34( 141,34
Unpaid principal balance, December 31, 2 34,64+ 157,78: 5,91¢ 198,34:
Carrying balance, January 1, 2C $26,90" $112,09: $2,34( $141,34(
Carrying balance, December 31, 2( 9,19¢ 70,58¢ 1,931 81,71
Unpaid principal balance, December 31, 2 17,43 105,67 5,39( 128,49t
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The following table presents the activity in themtable yield related to PCI loans, by acquisitiarthe periods indicated:

(Amounts in thousand Peoples Waccamaw Other Total

Balance, January 1, 2011 $ 944 $ 944
Accretion (174) (179
Reclassifications from nonaccretable differe 14¢ 14¢
Disposals — —

Balance, December 31, 20 $ 91¢ $ 9ic¢
Balance, January 1, 20 $ — $ — $ 9i¢ $ 91¢
Additions 3,40( 26,48: — 29,88:
Accretion (85€) (3,319 (1,089 (5,260)
Reclassifications from nonaccretable differe — — 18t 18t
Disposals (202) (1,280 — 1,48
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 2,342 $ 21,88¢ $ 15 $24,24:
Balance, January 1, 20. $ 2,342 $ 21,88¢ $ 15 $24,24:
Additions 14¢ 281 — 42¢
Accretion (1,840 (6,28¢) (119 (8,247)
Reclassifications from (to) nonaccretable differe 6,15¢ (2,967) 112 3,30(
Disposals 1,51)) (2,579 — 4,085
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 5,294 $ 10,33¢ $ 8 $15,64(

Note 5.  Credit Quality

The Company identifies loans for potential impaintarough a variety of means, including, but mofited to, ongoing loan review, renewal
processes, delinquency data, market communicatmspublic information. If the Company determitteet it is probable all principal and
interest amounts contractually due will not be ectiéd, the loan is generally deemed to be impaired.
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The following tables present the recorded investraad related information for loans consideredearbpaired, excluding PCI loans, as of
the periods indicated:

December 31, 201

Unpaid
Recorded Average Annual Prinrt’:ipal Related
(Amounts in thousand Investment Recorded Investmen Balance Allowance
Impaired loans with no related allowan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other ; $ — $ 3,85( $ — $ —
Commercial and industrii 292 69¢ 29z —
Multi-family residentia — 18 — —
Single family no-owner occupiet 28¢ 93¢ 317 —
Non-farm, nor-residentia 5,352 7,22t 5,68 —
Agricultural — — — —
Farmlanc 351 37C 363 —
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line! 257 454 264 —
Single family owner occupie 2,00¢ 2,15¢ 2,41¢ —
Owner occupied constructic — 15 — —
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan — 3 — —
Total impaired loans with no related allowat 8,541 15,72¢ 9,332 —
Impaired loans with a related allowan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other I $ — $ 1,057 $ — $ —
Commercial and industrii 4,897 4,281 10,24 3,79¢
Multi-family residentia — 94 — —
Single family no-owner occupiet 37t 89z 37¢ 47
Non-farm, nor-residentia 60C 1,49¢ 60C 114
Agricultural — — — —
Farmlanc — — — —
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line! 21t 304 23C 52
Single family owner occupie 4,84¢ 4,49¢ 5,03¢ 73t
Owner occupied constructic — — — —
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan — — — —
Total impaired loans with a related allowal 10,93: 12,62( 16,48¢ 4,747
Total impaired loan $19,47¢ $ 28,34¢ $25,81¢ $ 4,742
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December 31, 201

Unpaid
Recorded Average Annual Prinrt’:ipal
(Amounts in thousand Investment Recorded Investmen Balance
Impaired loans with no related allowan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other I; $ 2,91¢ $ 93t $ 2,91¢
Commercial and industrii 284 32C 284
Multi-family residentia — 517 —
Single family no-owner occupiet 382 1,101 684
Non-farm, nor-residentia 5,28: 2,61¢ 5,36:
Agricultural — — —
Farmland — 93 —
Consumer real estate log
Home equity line! 27¢ 37C 271
Single family owner occupie 271 4,441 383
Owner occupied constructic — — —
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan — 1 —
Total impaired loans with no related allowal 9,41¢ 10,391 9,90¢
Impaired loans with a related allowan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other li — 69 —
Commercial and industri 3,31¢ 4,51( 8,50z
Multi-family residentia 37¢ 142 397
Single family no-owner occupiet 2,411 2,48¢ 2,46(
Non-farm, nor-residentia 2,781 5,82( 2,95¢
Agricultural — — —
Farmlanc — 93 —
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line! 227 15C 23C
Single family owner occupie 4,67: 3,511 4,90:
Owner occupied constructic — — —
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan — — —
Total impaired loans with a related allowal 13,78 16,78( 19,45(
Total impaired loan $ 23,20: $ 27,171 $29,35¢
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The following table presents interest income redphon impaired loans, excluding PCI loans, inghdods indicated:

Year ended December 31
(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012 2011

Impaired loans with no related allowan
Commercial loan

Construction, development, and other I; $ 294 $ 3 $—
Commercial and industrii 17 17 4
Multi-family residentia 3 4 24
Single family no-owner occupiet 99 5€ 39
Non-farm, nor-residentia 29€ 10z 25
Agricultural — — —
Farmland 12 — —
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line! 25 28 15
Single family owner occupie 70 112 43
Owner occupied constructic 5 — 3
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan — — 2
Total impaired loans with no related allowal 821 323 15E

Impaired loans with a related allowan
Commercial loan

Construction, development, and other li 117 1 9
Commercial and industri 18 94¢ 21
Multi-family residentia 7 3 —
Single family no-owner occupiet 3 8C 107
Non-farm, not-residentia 29 317 191
Agricultural — — —
Farmlanc — — —
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line! 12 1 —
Single family owner occupie 54 10z 164

Owner occupied constructic — — —
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan — — —
Total impaired loans with a related allowal 24C 1,45:¢ 492
Total impaired loan $1,061 $1,77¢ $647
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As of December 31, 2013, the Company determinegditiodthe 7 PCI loan pools were impaired. No impa&int was recognized on loan pc
before 2013. The following tables present balamzkiaterest income related to the impaired loaripas of the dates, and in the periods,
indicated:

December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012
Recorded investment $52,03: $—
Average annual recorded investm 35,22( —
Unpaid principal balanc 69,32( —
Allowance for loan losse 747

Year ended December 31
(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012 2011
Interest income recognized $1,96¢ $— $—

As part of the ongoing monitoring of the Comparlgan portfolio, management tracks certain cred#ligquindicators that include: trends
related to the risk rating of commercial loans, lthesl of classified commercial loans, net charffe;monperforming loans, and general
economic conditions. The Compasyban review function generally analyzes all conuia¢ loan relationships greater than $3.0 mill@anar
annual basis and at various times during the yeaddition, smaller commercial and retail loans sampled for review during the year. L«
risk ratings may be upgraded or downgraded tocedflerrent information identified during the loaview process. The Company uses a risk
grading matrix to assign a risk grade to each lnats portfolio. The general characteristics ofteaisk grade are as follows:

» Pass — This grade is assigned to loans with adaepteedit quality and risk. The Company furthegresents this grade based on
borrower characteristics that include: capitalrggth, earnings stability, liquidity leverage, andustry conditions

» Special Mention — This grade is assigned to lohasrequire an above average degree of supenasidrattention. These loans have the
characteristics of an asset with acceptable coerility and risk; however, adverse economic orrfaial conditions exist that create
potential weaknesses deserving of management’s akbsntion. If potential weaknesses are not ctedgthe prospect of repayment
may worsen

» Substandard — This grade is assigned to loani#ivat well defined weaknesses that may make paydedatlt, or principal exposure,
possible. In order to meet repayment terms, theesesl will likely be dependent on collateral liguida, secondary repayment sources,
or events outside the normal course of busir

» Doubtful —This grade is assigned to loans on nonaccrualsstahese loans have the weaknesses inherent itasdasd loans; howevt
the weaknesses are so severe that collectionwdéiion in full is extremely unlikely based on mnt facts, conditions, and values. [
to certain specific pending factors, the amouribs$ cannot yet be determint

e Loss — This grade is assigned to loans that wiltherged off or charged down when payments, inottie timing and value of
payments, are determined to be uncertain. Thisgriale does not imply that the asset has no reg@vesalvage value, but simply
means that it is not practical or desirable to defiéting off, either all or a portion of, the lodralance even though partial recovery may
be realized in the futur

Losses on covered loans are generally reimburgshilee FDIC at the applicable loss share percen&@é; therefore, covered loans are
disclosed separately in the following credit quatiiscussion. PCI loan pools are disaggregatedraniaded in their applicable loan class in
the following discussion. In addition, PCI loans generally not classified as nonaccrual or nomperihg due to the accrual of interest
income under the accretion method of accounting.
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The following tables present loans held for investin by internal credit risk grade, as of the pdgimdicated:

(Amounts in thousand
Non-covered loan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other li
Commercial and industri;
Multi-family residentia
Single family no-owner occupiet
Non-farm, nor-residentia
Agricultural
Farmland
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line!
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan
Other
Total nor-covered loan
Covered loan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other Ii
Commercial and industri;
Multi-family residentia
Single family no-owner occupiet
Non-farm, nor-residentia
Agricultural
Farmland
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line!
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan
Other
Total covered loan

Total loans

December 31, 201

Special

Pass Mention Substandarc Doubtful Loss Total
$ 30,71¢ $109¢ $ 3,13¢ $ 30 $— $ 35,25¢
87,58¢ 1,05¢ 2,91¢ 3,891 — 95,45¢
67,25 2,230 703 — — 70,19
121,36 4,501 9,31¢ 37t — 135,55¢
440,33 21,04¢ 14,50( 31 — 475,91
2,30¢ 8 10 — — 2,32¢
27,42 1,721 3,47: — — 32,61«
107,41 1,35¢ 2,78¢ 21t — 111,77«
460,16¢ 8,17( 27,50 16¢ — 496,01:
28,24. 261 20C — — 28,70:
69,97: 864 472 — 4 71,318
3,91¢ — 8 — — 3,92¢
1,446,70. 42,31 65,03t 4,98¢ 4 1,559,03!
9,72 1,37¢ 4,71¢ 51 — 15,86¢
2,86t 247 18¢ 24 — 3,32t
1,47 — 461 — — 1,93¢
4,362 1,51¢ 1,552 16 — 7,44¢
13,077 4,63( 16,90: 38 — 34,64¢
164 — — — — 164
57z — 301 — — 87:¢
66,79° 1,13¢ 1,26¢ 2 — 69,20¢
10,83: 14¢ 5,93¢ — — 16,91¢
19¢ — 98¢ — — 1,18¢
11¢€ — — — — 11¢€
110,17¢ 9,06( 32,31. 131 — 151,68:
$1,556,88; $51,37¢ $ 97,347 $5,11¢t $ 4 $1,710,72

96



Table of Contents

FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

December 31, 201,

Special
(Amounts in thousand Pass Mention Substandarc Doubtful Loss Total
Non-covered loan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other I $ 4185 $1,497 $ 1354 $ 541 $— $ 57,43¢
Commercial and industrii 77,57 2,50¢ 4,821 3,83¢ — 88,73¢
Multi-family residentia 60,16 4,04: 1,49( — — 65,69
Single family no-owner occupiet 112,56. 5,93¢ 16,09: 1,32( — 135,91.
Non-farm, nor-residentia 399,90° 15,97¢ 32,80¢ 12C — 448,81(
Agricultural 1,65 19 33 — — 1,70¢
Farmlanc 28,88’ 2,26: 3,421 — — 34,57(
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line! 104,75( 2,73¢ 3,592 — — 111,08:
Single family owner occupie 436,58 9,59¢ 27,31¢ — 42 473,54°
Owner occupied constructic 15,84: 382 — — — 16,22:
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 76,78 867 501 8 — 78,16:
Other 5,651 8 1 — — 5,66¢
Total nor-covered loan 1,362,21! 45,83t 103,62« 5,82 42 1,517,54
Covered loan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other li 6,46: 2,12( 17,83« 17¢ — 26,59¢
Commercial and industri 6,22¢ 44t 197 81 — 6,94¢
Multi-family residentia 1,96: — 64¢ — — 2,611
Single family no-owner occupiet 6,06¢ 2,22: 3,01t 12t — 11,42¢
Non-farm, nor-residentia 23,85¢ 5,471 19,18¢ 44 — 48,56¢
Agricultural 145 — 1 — — 144
Farmland 93t — 15€ — — 1,091
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line! 16,32: 11,98: 53,11¢ 25 — 81,44
Single family owner occupie 16,01: 927 5,78¢ 237 — 22,96
Owner occupied constructic 484 — 1,16( — — 1,64¢
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 2,987 562 12t — — 3,67¢
Other — — — — — —
Total covered loan 81,45: 23,73 101,22¢ 69C — 207,10¢
Total loans $1,443,67. $69,57( $204,85. $6,517 $ 42 $1,724,65.

As of December 31, 2013, non-covered special meral classified loans decreased $42.99 millio2,7088%, compared to December 31,
2012, which was primarily due to loan workout aityivacross the portfolio coupled with continuedditémprovement. Credit quality also
significantly improved in the covered loan portéolvith special mention and classified loans deo{ir684.15 million, or 66.97%, as of
December 31, 2013, compared to December 31, 2012.
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The following table presents nonaccrual loansdaylclass, as of the dates indicated:

(Amounts in thousand
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other li
Commercial and industrii
Multi-family residentia
Single family no-owner occupiet
Non-farm, nor-residentia
Agricultural
Farmland
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line!
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan
Other
Total
Purchased impaired loa
Total nonaccrual loar

December 31

2013 2012

Non-coverec Coverec Total Non-coverec Covered Total
$ 1,187 $ 761 $ 1,94¢ $ 40t $1,99( $ 2,39¢
5,341 92 5,43¢ 3,912 35 3,947
— — — 37¢ — 37¢
1,96¢ 222 2,18¢ 7,071 21 7,092
2,68t — 2,68t 5,93¢ 951 6,88¢
— — — 2 — 2

441 301 74z — — _
76& 232 997 872 43€ 1,30¢
6,56 1,55k 8,12 5,21¢ 831 6,05(
— 19C 19C — 59 58
201 — 201 12€ — 12€
19,15: 3,35: 22,50¢ 23,92 4,32: 28,24¢
8 — 8 8 — 8
$ 19,16 $3,35° $22,51¢ $ 23,93 $4,32: $28,25¢
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The following tables present the aging of pastidaes, by loan class, as of the dates indicatedablitrual loans 30 days or more past due are
included in the applicable delinquency categoryer€hwere no non-covered accruing loans contragtpakt due 90 days or more as of
December 31, 2013, or December 31, 2012. Accrwagd contractually past due 90 days or more wesel&8isand as of December 31,
2013, which was attributed to covered home eqinggsl There were no accruing loans contractuakly gae 90 days or more as of

December 31, 2012.

December 31, 201

30- 59 Day: 60- 89 Day: 90+ Days Total Current Total
(Amounts in thousand Past Due Past Due Past Due Past Due Loans Loans
Non-covered loan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other I $ 11¢e  $ 10 $ 53z $ 66C $ 34598 $ 3525t
Commercial and industri 93 39 2,631 2,76: 92,69: 95,45¢
Multi-family residentia 11t — — 11t 70,08: 70,197
Single family no-owner occupiet 611 554 1,20: 2,36¢ 133,19: 135,55¢
Non-farm, nor-residentia 1,01¢ 31¢€ 1,77C 3,10z 472,80¢ 475,91
Agricultural — — — — 2,32¢ 2,32¢
Farmland 24k — — 24F 32,36¢ 32,61«
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line! 28¢ 317 442 1,04¢ 110,72. 111,77(
Single family owner occupie 7,42¢ 1,22¢ 14t 8,801 487,21. 496,01:
Owner occupied constructic 20t — 2,28¢ 2,48¢ 26,21 28,70:
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 811 86 10¢& 1,002 70,31 71,31
Other — — — — 3,92¢ 3,92¢
Total nor-covered loan 10,92¢ 2,552 9,112 22,59 1,536,44 1,559,03!
Covered loan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other li 47¢ — 452 932 14,93 15,86¢
Commercial and industri 5 44 92 141 3,18¢ 3,32¢
Multi-family residentia — — — — 1,93: 1,93:
Single family no-owner occupiet — — 184 184 7,26t 7,44¢
Non-farm, noi-residentia 20¢ — — 20¢ 34,43] 34,64¢
Agricultural — — — — 164 164
Farmland — — 301 301 57z 872
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line! 48¢ 86 162 737 68,46¢ 69,20¢
Single family owner occupie 197 12C 1,46¢€ 1,78 15,13¢ 16,91¢
Owner occupied constructic — — 19C 19C 994 1,18¢
Consumer and other loa —
Consumer loan — — — — 11¢ 11¢€
Other — — — — — —
Total covered loan 1,37¢ 25( 2,84¢ 447 147,20! 151,68:
Total loans $ 12,307 $ 2,80z $11,96. $27,07( $1,683,65  $1,710,72
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December 31, 201

60-
89 Day:
30-
59 Days Past 90+ Days Total Current Total
(Amounts in thousand Past Due Due Past Due Past Due Loans Loans
Non-covered loan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other i $ 344 $ — $ 18¢ $ 532 $ 56,90: $ 57,43«
Commercial and industri 387 84 1,43: 1,90: 86,83 88,73¢
Multi-family residentia 624 — — 624 65,07( 65,69¢
Single family no-owner occupiet 1,841 1,34¢ 3,71t 6,90/ 129,00¢ 135,91.
Non-farm, noi-residentia 2,702 93¢ 3,621 7,25¢ 441,55 448,81(
Agricultural — — — — 1,70¢ 1,70¢
Farmland 21€ 19¢ — 412 34,15¢ 34,57(
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line! 31t 93 49t 90:< 110,17¢ 111,08:
Single family owner occupie 6,56¢ 1,17¢ 1,64¢ 9,38¢ 464,16: 473,54°
Owner occupied constructic 382 — — 382 15,84: 16,22
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 71t 73 47 83t 77,32¢ 78,16
Other — — — — 5,66¢ 5,66¢
Total nor-covered loan 14,09( 3,90¢ 11,14: 29,13¢ 1,488,40 1,517,54
Covered loan
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other I 252 161 1,121 1,53¢ 25,06 26,59¢
Commercial and industri 45 — — 45 6,90: 6,94¢
Multi-family residentia — — — — 2,611 2,611
Single family no-owner occupiet 8 — 21 29 11,39¢ 11,42¢
Non-farm, nor-residentia 501 — 927 1,42¢ 47,137 48,56¢
Agricultural — — — — 144 144
Farmland 6 — — 6 1,08¢ 1,091
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line! 217 11z 204 53z 80,91: 81,44
Single family owner occupie 41z 13t 47t 1,02 21,93¢ 22,96
Owner occupied constructic — — 5¢ 59 1,58t 1,64¢
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan — — — — 3,67¢ 3,67¢
Other — — — — — —
Total covered loan 1,44: 40¢ 2,807 4,657 202,44 207,10¢
Total loans $15,53: $4,31¢ $13,94¢ $33,79¢ $1,690,85! $1,724,65:

The Company may make concessions in interest lasterms and/or amortization terms when regtrigg loans for borrowers
experiencing financial difficulty. All restructurddans to borrowers experiencing financial diffiguh excess of $250 thousand are evaluated
for a specific reserve based on either the coliatarnet present value method, whichever is mpgligable. Specific reserves in the
allowance for loan losses attributed to TDRs tat&i&.84 million as of December 31, 2013, and $indlion as of December 31, 2012.
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Restructured loans under $250 thousand are subjéunt reserve calculation at the historical l@de for classified loans. Certain TDRs are
classified as nonperforming at the time of restrtingy and are returned to performing status aftem®nths of satisfactory payment
performance; however, these loans remain identégetnpaired until full payment or other satisfantdf the obligation occurs. The Compi
recognized interest income on TDRs of $551 thousa2®13, $640 thousand in 2012, and $411 thousagdl11.

Loans acquired with credit deterioration, with aadiunt, are generally not considered a TDR as ésithe loan remains in the assigned loan
pool. There were no covered loans recorded as Td3Rd December 31, 2013 or 2012. The followingeaivesents loans modified as TDRs,
by loan class, segregated by accrual status, the afates indicated:

December 31

2013 2012
Nonaccrual Nonaccrual

(Amounts in thousand @) Accruing Total @) Accruing Total
Commercial loan

Construction, development, andother I; $ — $ — $ — $ 63 $ — $ 63

Commercial and industrii 1,11¢ — 1,11¢ 1,11¢ — 1,11¢

Single family no-owner occupiet 37E — 37¢ 1,38( — 1,38(

Non-farm, nor-residentia 12¢ 5,49( 5,61¢ 764 5,891 6,661
Consumer real estate loz

Home equity line! 15¢ 51 21C 30E 55 36(

Single family owner occupie 42% 6,67( 7,09:¢ 197 6,09t 6,292
Total TDRs $ 2,20( $12,21: $14,41: $ 3,82¢ $12,047 $15,87¢

(1) TDRs on nonaccrual status are included in the taiahccrual loan balance disclosed in the tableal

The following table presents loans modified as TDBstype of concession made and loan class, theg vestructured during the years
indicated. The post-modification recorded investmepresents the loan balance immediately followiragification.

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012
Pre- Post- Pre- Posi-
Modification Modification Modification Modification
Total Recorded Recorded Total Recorded Recorded
(Amounts in thousand Contracts Investment Investment Contracts Investment Investment
Below market interest rate Single family owner
occupied 2 $ 601 $ 557 — $ — $ —
Below market interest rate andextended payment
term Single family no-owner occupier 1 37t 32¢ — —
Non-farm, not-residentia 1 511 511 2 5,822 5,822
Single family owner occupie 4 80¢ 757 — — —
Total 8 $ 2,29 $ 2,15 3 $ 6,17: $ 6,141
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The following table presents loans modified as TDOisloan class, that were restructured withinghrevious 12 months for which there we
payment default during the years indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012
Total Recorded Total Recorded
(Amounts in thousand Contracts Investment Contracts Investment
Single family non-owner occupied 1 $ 37t — $ —
Single family owner occupie 1 35¢ — —
Total 2 $ 734 — $ —

Note 6. Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is maintained avel lmanagement deems adequate to absorb probabléoleses inherent in the loan
portfolio. The allowance is increased by provisicharges to operations and reduced by net chafgeWghile management utilizes its best
judgment and information available, the ultimate@ahcy of the allowance is dependent on a variefigators that may be beyond t
Company'’s control: the performance of the Compsahyan portfolio, the economy, changes in interaiss, the view of regulatory authorit
towards loan classifications, and other factoresehuncertainties may result in a material changleet allowance for loan losses in the near
term; however, the amount of the change cannobnednly be estimated.

The Company’s allowance is comprised of specifserees related to loans individually evaluatediuding credit relationships, and general
reserves related to loans not individually evalddtat are segmented into groups with similar ciséiracteristics, based on an internal risk
grading matrix. General reserve allocations areth@a®m management’s judgments of qualitative andtifative factors about macro and
micro economic conditions reflected within the Iqeortfolio and the economy. For loans acquired lousiness combination, loans identified
as credit impaired at the acquisition date are gedunto pools and evaluated separately from tmeR1©I portfolio. The Company has
aggregated PCI loans into the following pools: Wamaw commercial, Waccamaw lines of credit, Peopb@smercial, Waccamaw serviced
home equity lines, Waccamaw residential, Peoplgisieatial, and Waccamaw consumer. Provisions catledlfor PCI loans are offset by an
adjustment to the FDIC indemnification asset téefthe indemnified portion, 80%, of the post-asiion exposure. While allocations are
made to specific loans, various portfolio segmeamsl, loan pools, the allowance for loan lossesasdlable for use against any loan loss
management deems appropriate. As of December 33, Banagement believed the allowance was adetpuatesorb probable loan losses
inherent in the loan portfolio.
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(Amounts in thousand

Balance, January 1, 2011

Provision for loan losses charged to operat
Chargeoffs

Recoveries

Net charg-offs

Balance, December 31, 20

Balance, January 1, 20.

Provision for loan losses charged to operat
Chargeoffs

Recoveries

Net charg-offs

Balance, December 31, 20

Balance, January 1, 20.

Provision for loan losse

Benefit attributable to the FDIC indemnificatiorsat

Provision for loan losses charged to operat

Provision for loan losses recorded through the FDIC
indemnification asse

Chargeoffs

Recoveries

Net charg-offs

Balance, December 31, 20

103

Allowance Excluding

PCI Loans

$ 26,48:
8,84¢

(11,460
2,13¢

(9,329
$ 26,00¢
$ 26,00¢
5,871

(7,509
1,391

(6,119
$ 25,76:
$ 25,76:
7,912

7,91z

(12,527
2,17¢

(10,359

The following table presents the aggregate actimitthe allowance for loan losses in the periodsciated:

Allowance for
PCI Loans
$ —

201

$ 201

$ 201

(193

$ 8

$ 8

747

(451)

29€

451

$ 75E

Total
Allowance

$ 26,48:
9,047
(11,460)
2,13¢
(9,329

$ 26,20
$ 26,20
5,67¢
(7,509)
1,397
(6,115

$ 25,77
$ 25,77(
8,65¢
(451)
8,20¢

451
(12,527
2,17¢
(10,35;)
$ 24,07
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The following table presents the components ofitterity in the allowance for loan losses, exclgdi?Cl loans, by loan segment, in the
periods indicated:

Consumel
Consumer

(Amounts in thousand Commercial Real Estate and Other Total

Balance, January 1, 2011 $ 12,30( $ 12,641 $ 1,541 $ 26,48:
Provision for loan losses charged to operat 11,80¢ (2,68)) (279) 8,84¢
Loans charged o (7,98)) (2,500 (97¢) (11,460
Recoveries credited to allowan 1,42¢ 252 45¢ 2,13¢
Net charg-offs (6,555 (2,249 (520 (9,329
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 17,55: $ 7,711 $ 74z $ 26,00
Balance, January 1, 20. $ 17,55 $ 7,711 $ 74z $ 26,00«
Provision for loan losses charged to operat 2,89¢ 2,60¢ 367 5,871
Loans charged o (3,819 (2,7072) (98¢) (7,509
Recoveries credited to allowan 62€ 28¢ 47€ 1,391
Net charg-offs (3,18¢) (2,419 (512 (6,119
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 17,25¢ $ 7,90¢ $ 597 $ 25,76
Balance, January 1, 20. $ 17,25¢ $ 7,90¢ $ 597 $ 25,76
Provision for loan losses charged to operat 5,64: 1,36¢ 90¢ 7,912
Loans charged o (7,749 (3,119 (1,66¢ (12,52
Recoveries credited to allowan 931 442 802 2,17t
Net charg-offs (6,817) (2,679 (867) (10,357
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 16,09( $ 6,597 $ 63 $ 23,32:

The negative provision charged to operations irctiresumer real estate and consumer and other segmet®11 was due to refinement in
the allowance for loan losses methodology to segsiagle family real estate into non-owner (commaj@nd owner occupied (consumer
real estate).
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The following table presents the components oftttesity in the allowance for loan losses for P@ais, by loan segment, in the periods

indicated:

(Amounts in thousand

Balance, January 1, 2011

Provision for loan losses charged to operat

Balance, December 31, 20
Balance, January 1, 20.

Provision for loan losses charged to operat

Balance, December 31, 20

Balance, January 1, 20.
Purchased impaired provisit

Benefit attributable to FDIC indemnificaton as
Provision for loan losses charged to operat

Provision for loan losses recorded through the FiDHemnificaton asst

Balance, December 31, 20

The following tables present the Company’s alloveaftr loan losses and recorded investment in leex@duding PCI loans, by loan class, as

of the dates indicated:

(Amounts in thousand
Commercial loan

Construction, development, and other li

Commercial and industri;
Multi-family residentia
Single family no-owner occupiet
Non-farm, nor-residentia
Agricultural
Farmland
Total commercial loan
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line!
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic
Total consumer real estate lo:
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan
Other
Total consumer and other loa

Total loans, excluding PCI loal

Consumel
Consumer
Commercial Real Estate and Other
$ — $ — $
201 —
$ 201 $ — $
$ 201 $ — $
(199) —
$ 8 $ — $
$ 8 $ — $
69 67¢
(55) (396)
14 282
55 39¢€
$ 77 $ 67¢ $

December 31, 201:

Total

&+
N |
(@]
—

&+
N
o
—

& &
oS

0 16 =
N

&+
(0]

74
45

29¢
451

$ 75t

~I

B

Loans
Individually
Evaluated for

Impairment

$ —
5,18¢

664
5,952

351
12,15¢

472
6,85(

7,322

$ 1947¢

105

Allowance for

Loans
Individually
Evaluated

$ —
3,79¢
47
114

3,95¢

52
73¢

781

$ 474

Loans
Collectively
Evaluated for

Impairment

$ 46,40
92,61:
71,66¢

136,56
483,12t
2,48¢
33,13¢
866,00:

136,89t
502,22¢

29,09(
668,21!

71,38¢
3,92¢
75,31°F

Allowance for

Loans
Collectively
Evaluated

$ 1,141
1,421
1,217
3,50z
4,53¢

23
301

12,13t

1,30¢
4,29t

20€
5,81(

63%

63t
s_1858
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December 31, 201

Loans Allowance for Loans Allowance
Individually Collectively for Loans
Evaluated for Loans Evaluated for Collectively
Individually
(Amounts in thousand Impairment Evaluated Impairment Evaluated
Commercial loan
Construction, development, and other I $ 2,91¢ $ — $ 55,36¢ $ 1,214
Commercial and industri; 3,60z 3,197 88,81: 1,15¢
Multi-family residentia 37¢ 18 67,27¢ 1,612
Single family no-owner occupiet 2,79 99¢ 134,32: 3,371
Non-farm, nor-residentia 8,06: 35¢ 451,24( 4,901
Agricultural — — 1,852 22
Farmland — — 34,77¢ 41€
Total commercial loan 17,75: 4,56¢ 833,65: 12,69¢
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line! 49¢ 223 141,68« 1,351
Single family owner occupie 4,95( 80¢ 483,55! 5,18¢
Owner occupied constructic — — 16,76¢ 337
Total consumer real estate loz 5,44¢ 1,02¢ 642,00! 6,871
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan — — 81,03" 597
Other — — 5,66¢ —
Total consumer and other loa — — 86,70: 597
Total loans, excluding PCI loal $ 23,20: $ 5,59 $1,562,36! $ 20,16¢

The Company aggregates PCI loans into the folloeag pools: Waccamaw commercial, Waccamaw linesedit, Peoples commercial,
Waccamaw serviced home equity lines, Waccamawegtal, Peoples residential, and Waccamaw consurherfollowing table presents 1
Company’s allowance for loan losses and recordeesiment in PCI loans, by loan pool, as of theslatdicated:

December 31

2013 2012
Allowance for Allowance for
Loan Pools With Loans Pools Loan Pools With Loans Pools
With With
(Amounts in thousand Impairment Impairment Impairment Impairment
Commercial loan
Waccamaw commerci $ 19,85: $ — $ 40,68¢ $ —
Waccamaw lines of crec 2,59¢ 69 10,00¢ —
Peoples commercii 7,862 — 23,67( —
Other 1,931 8 2,34( 8
Total commercial loan 32,23¢ 77 76,707 8
Consumer real estate loz
Waccamaw serviced home equity lir 43,60¢ 2717 52,32 —
Waccamaw residenti 4,497 217 8,97¢ —
Peoples residenti 1,33¢ 184 3,23i —
Total consumer real estate lo¢ 49,43¢ 67¢ 64,53: —
Consumer and other loa
Waccamaw consumt 34 — 101 —
Total consumer and other loa 34 — 101 —
Total loans $ 81,71: $ 75E $ 141,34 $ 8
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Note 7. FDIC Indemnification Asset

The Company entered into loss share agreementghathDIC in 2012 in connection with the FDIC-atsilsacquisition of Waccamaw.
Under the loss share agreements, the FDIC agremu/gy 80% of most loan and foreclosed real estates. Certain expenses incurred in
relation to these covered assets are reimbursghleeb=DIC. Estimated reimbursements are nettethsighe expense on covered assets in
the Company’s consolidated statements of income.félowing table presents activity in the FDIC @mdnification asset in the periods
indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012
Beginning balance $ 48,14¢ $ —
FDIC loss share receivat— Waccamaw acquisitio — 49,75¢
Increase in estimated losses on covered | 451 —
Increase in estimated losses on covered O 4,42t 637
Reimbursable expenses from the FI 1,57¢ 273
Net (amortization) accretic (5,597 45¢
Reimbursements from the FD (14,31) (2,979
Ending balanc: $ 34,69 $48,14¢

Note 8. Premises, Equipment, and Lease

Premises and Equipme

Depreciation and amortization expense was $4.6lfomihn 2013, $4.03 million in 2012, and $3.98 1wl in 2011. The following table
presents the components of premises and equipraefitae dates indicated:

December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012
Land $ 19,88¢ $ 19,36¢
Buildings and leasehold improveme 54,29: 56,78¢
Equipment 36,98: 36,77¢
111,15¢ 112,93(
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat 50,04 48,06:
Total premises and equipment, $ 61,11¢ $ 64,86¢

Certain long-term investments in land and buildingse evaluated for impairment during 2013 duegnéo@ompany’s plan to close or
consolidate seven branch locations in 2014. Writerts related to these expected closures totaléx® $iillion in 2013.
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Leases

The Company enters into various noncancelable tipgrieases. Lease expense was $1.18 million i3 281.26 million in 2012, and $1.17
million in 2011. As of December 31, 2013, the Comypdid not sublease any portion of its noncancelalplerating leases to third parties.
following schedule presents future minimum leasgpents required under noncancelable operatingdeasth initial or remaining terms in
excess of one year, by year, as of December 3B:201

(Amounts in thousand

2014 $ 771
2015 434
2016 307
2017 20C
2018 122
2019 and thereaftt 1,06¢

$2,90:

Note 9.  Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase prier the fair value of net assets acquired. Gdbidvallocated to the appropriate
reporting unit when acquired, if applicable. Bef@@09, the cash consideration for meeting certpérating targets, under the agreement
terms, was added to goodwill when paid. BeginnmgQ@09, the estimated future value of the cashideration is recognized as goodwill at
the acquisition date. As of December 31, 2013tdted potential cash consideration remaining tgdiel in connection with acquisitions that
occurred before 2009 was $353 thousand, whicHdsated to the Insurance Services reporting utie Tompany analyzed the carrying
value of goodwill as of October 31, 2013, and dateed that no impairment charge was necessary.

The following table presents the activity in gooliivdy reporting unit, in the periods indicated:

Community Insurance

(Amounts in thousand Banking Services Total

Beginning balance, January 1, 2011 $ 75,59¢ $ 9,31¢ $ 84,91
Acquisitions and dispositions, n — (1,299 (1,299
Cash consideration pa — 68C 68C
Impairment Charge — (1,239 (1,239
Ending balance, December 31, 2( $ 75,59¢ $ 7,45i $ 83,05¢
Beginning balance, January 1, 2( $ 75,59¢ $ 7,457 $ 83,05¢
Acquisitions and dispositions, n 21,11¢ — 21,11¢
Cash consideration pa — 9z 692
Ending balance, December 31, 2( $ 96,71 $ 8,14¢ $104,86(
Beginning balance, January 1, 2( $ 96,71 $ 8,14¢ $104,86t
Acquisitions and dispositions, n (17¢) 324 14¢
Cash consideration pa — 441 441
Ending balance, December 31, 2( $ 96,54: $ 8,91~/ $105,45!
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Other Intangible Assets

The Company’s intangible assets also include cepmsit and other identifiable intangible assetgeCGleposit intangible assets are amortized
over their estimated useful lives that range froto T0 years. As of December 31, 2013, the remgilives of core deposit intangible assets
ranged from 2 to 5 years, and the weighted aver@maining life was 4 years. Other identifiable ng#ble assets consist primarily of the
value assigned to contractual rights arising frosurance agency acquisitions. Other identifiabignigible assets are amortized using the
straight-line method. The following table presethis components of other intangible assets, by tigygpunit, as of the dates indicated:

December 31

2013 2012
Community Insurance Community Insurance

(Amounts in thousand Banking Services Total Banking Services Total
Core deposit intangibles $ 7,94( $ — $ 7,94( $ 7,94( $ — $ 7,94(
Accumulated amortizatio (6,669 — (6,669 (6,244 — (6,244
Core deposit intangibles, n 1,271 — 1,271 1,69¢ — 1,69¢
Other identifiable intangible 53t 3,711 4,24¢ 53t 3,63¢ 4,17:
Accumulated amortizatio (410 (2,247 (2,65)) (3893 (1,964 (2,347)
Other identifiable intangibles, n 12t 1,47(C 1,59¢ 152 1,67¢ 1,82¢
Total other intangible assets, I $ 1,39¢ $ 1,47(C $ 2,86¢ $ 1,84¢ $ 1,674 $ 3,527

Amortization expense for other intangible assets $&29 thousand in 2013, $804 thousand in 2012$ar@® million in 2011. The following
schedule presents the estimated amortization egdenitangible assets, by year, as of Decembgp@13:

(Amounts in thousand

2014 $ 71z
2015 712
2016 607
2017 381
2018 292

2019 and thereaftt —

Note 10. Deposits
The following table presents the components of diépas of the dates indicated:

December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012
Noninteres-bearing demand deposits $ 339,68l $ 343,35:
Interes-bearing deposit:
Interes-bearing demand depos 361,82: 353,32:
Money market accoun 237,84! 237,25
Savings deposil 286,16! 263,01¢
Certificates of depos 606,17¢ 706,56¢
Individual retirement accoun 119,05: 126,65¢
Total interes-bearing deposit 1,611,06. 1,686,82.
Total deposit: $1,950,74; $2,030,17!
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The following schedule presents the contractuabnitas of time deposits as of December 31, 2013:

(Amounts in thousand

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019 and thereaftt

Time deposits of $100 thousand or more were $352i8ibn as of December 31, 2013, and $398.48 millas of December 31, 2012. The

$423,27:
163,59:
66,92¢
36,40¢
35,02(
16

$725,23:

following schedule presents the contractual maasiof time deposits of $100 thousand or more @&egember 31, 2013:

(Amounts in thousand

Three months or les

Over three through six mont
Over six through twelve monti
Over twelve month

Note 11. Borrowings
The following table presents the composition ofrbatings as of the dates indicated:

(Amounts in thousand
Federal funds purchased
Securities sold under agreements to repurct
Retalil
Wholesale
Total securities sold under agreements to repuec
FHLB borrowings:
Fixed rate credi
Advances
Total FHLB borrowings
Subordinated det
Other deb

Total borrowings

Short-term borrowings consist of federal funds pased and retail repurchase agreements, whicly@oally collateralized with agency
MBSs. The weighted average rate of federal fundsh@ased was 0.36% as of December 31, 2013. Théteeigverage rate of retail

$ 55,83¢
79,56
66,32:
151,12(
$352,83¢

December 31

2013 2012

$ 16,00( $§ —
68,30¢ 77,92
50,00( 58,19¢
118,30¢ 136,11¢
— 6,27¢
150,00( 155,28:
150,00( 161,55¢
15,46¢ 15,46¢
624 415
$300,39¢ $313,55:

repurchase agreements was 0.38% as of Decemb20B3,,and 0.57% as of December 31, 2012.
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Long-term borrowings consist of wholesale repuretagreements; FHLB borrowings, including fixed rettedit and convertible and callable
advances; and other obligations. The weighted geecantractual rate of wholesale repurchase agmsmeas 3.71% as of December 31,
2013, and 3.34% as of December 31, 2012. As of mbee 31, 2013, the weighted average contractuainbabf wholesale repurchase
agreements was 4.08 years. The weighted averagacuual rate of FHLB borrowings was 4.12% as ot&maber 31, 2013, and 3.86% as of
December 31, 2012. As of December 31, 2013, thghted average contractual maturity of FHLB borrayginvas 4.57 years. The following
schedule presents contractual maturities of FHLBdwangs, by year, as of December 31, 2013:

(Amounts in thousand

2014 $ —
2015 —
2016 —
2017 100,00
2018 —
2019 and thereaftt 50,00(
$150,00(

FHLB callable advances may be redeemed by the Faétldqdiarterly intervals after various lockout pesdhat could substantially shorten the
lives of the advances. If called, the advance nepdid in full or converted into another FHLB cttaatioduct. Prepayment of an advance may
result in substantial penalties based on the diffiéal between the contractual note and currenaacky rate for similar maturities. FHLB
advances were secured by qualifying loans thaleidt®l.13 billion as of December 31, 2013, and $P9&nillion as of December 31, 2012.
Unused borrowing capacity with the FHLB was $32418dion as of December 31, 2013. In 2013, the Campprepaid $8.15 million in
wholesale repurchase agreements and $11.47 mitliBRILB borrowings resulting in a $296 thousandngai

Subordinated debt consists of junior subordinatdzedtures (“Debentures”) of $15.46 million that &&sued by the Company in October
2003 to the Trust. The Debentures had an intea¢staf three-month LIBOR plus 2.95%. The Trust ahte to purchase the Debentures
through the issuance of trust preferred securitibéch had substantially identical terms as thedhtires. The Debentures mature on
October 8, 2033 and are currently callable. Netg@eds from the offering were contributed as capitéhe Bank to support further growth.
The Company’s obligations under the Debenturesodimer relevant Trust agreements, in aggregate tiaatesa full and unconditional
guarantee by the Company of the Trust’s obligatidihe preferred securities issued by the Trushaténcluded in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets; however, these desuqitalify as Tier 1 capital for regulatory purgsssubject to guidelines issued by the
Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve Systhen“fiederal Reserve”). The Federal Reserve’s qading limits did not prevent the
Company from including all $15.46 million in trysteferred securities outstanding in Tier 1 captabf December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Note 12. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company primarily uses derivative instrumeatprbtect against the risk of adverse price or@gerate movements on the value of
certain assets and liabilities and on future clshis. Derivative instruments represent contracta/ben parties that usually require little or no
initial net investment and result in one party deling cash or another asset to the other partydobas a notional amount and an underlying
asset as specified in the contract. These deravatstruments may consist of interest rate swapstd, caps, collars, futures, forward
contracts, and written and purchased options. R#vig instruments are subject to counterparty tresk due to the possibility that the
Company will incur a loss because a counterparyclivmay be a bank, a brokdealer or a customer, fails to meet its contraabbéfjations
This risk is measured as the expected positiveacephent value of contracts. All derivative consauoiy be executed only with exchanges or
counterparties approved by the Company’s Assetilitialvlanagement Committee.
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As of December 31, 2013, the Company’s derivatinstruments consisted of IRLCs, forward sale loanmitments, and interest rate swaps.
Generally, derivative instruments help the Compaiayage exposure to market risk and meet customanding needs. Market risk
represents the possibility that economic valueatiimerest income will be adversely affected lugtiiations in external factors such as
interest rates, market-driven loan rates, pricestlwer economic factors.

IRLCs and forward sale loan commitme. In the normal course of business, the Compargreimto interest rate lock commitments
(“IRLCs") with customers on mortgage loans intentdetbe sold in the secondary market and commitrierdgsll those originated mortgage
loans. The Company enters into IRLCs to provideptil borrowers an interest rate guarantee. Omaerggage loan is closed and funded, it
is included within loans held for sale and awadétie and delivery into the secondary market. Froendite we issue the commitment through
the date of sale into the secondary market, theg@domhas exposure to interest rate movement negudttom the risk that interest rates will
change from the rate quoted to the borrower. Dubdsee interest rate fluctuations, the Companylarnuz of mortgage loans held for sale is
subject to changes in fair value. Typically, thie falue of these loans declines when interessraterease and rise when interest rates
decrease. The fair values of the CompaniRLCs and forward sale loan commitments are dembat fair value as a component of other a
and other liabilities in the consolidated balantceess. These derivatives do not qualify as hedigisiguments; therefore, changes in fair value
are recorded in earnings.

Interest rate swap. The Company uses interest rate swap contractetlify its exposure to interest rate risk causedhmnges in the

London InterBank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) curve inlagon to certain designated fixed rate loans. €hastruments are used to convert these
fixed rate loans to an effective floating ratethié LIBOR rate falls below the loan’s stated fixatk for a given period, the Company will owe
the floating rate payer the notional amount tintesdifference between LIBOR and the stated fixeéel. iALIBOR is above the stated rate for
a given period, the Company will receive paymeiisdol on the notional amount times the differentwdn LIBOR and the stated fixed

rate. The Company'’s interest rate swaps qualifipgasvalue hedging instruments; therefore, charngélse fair value of the derivative and of
the hedged item attributable to the hedged riskeregnized in earnings in the same period.

In October 2013, the Company entered into a tem-¥&50 million notional interest rate swap agreatrthat was accounted for as a fair
value hedge. The swap and loan hedged by the swap@orded at fair value. The hedge was effeetssef December 31, 2013.

The following table presents the aggregate contedcir notional amounts, as well as the fair valfehe Company’s derivative instruments
as of the dates indicated:

December 31

2013 2012
Notional or Notional or
Contractual Derivative Derivative Contractual Derivative Derivative
(Amounts in thousand Amount Assets Liabilities Amount Assets Liabilities
Derivatives designated as hedc
Interest rate sway $ 3,45¢ $ 43 $ — $ — $ — $ —
Derivatives not designated as hed
IRLCs 3,67 — 41 14,84: 144 16
Forward sale loan commitmer 4,56( 41 — — — —
Total derivatives not designated as hec 8,23 41 41 14,84 144 16
Total derivatives $ 11,69( $ 84 $ 4 $ 14,84: $ 144 $ 16
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The following table presents the effect of the Camys derivative and hedging activity, if applicajpbn the statement of income in the
periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand Income Statement Locatiol 2013 2012 2011
Derivatives designated as hedc

Interest rate sway Other income $— $— $—
Derivatives not designated as hed

IRLCs Other income (169 — 16C

Forward sale loan commitmer Other income 41 — —
Total derivatives not designated as hec (12¢) — 16C
Total derivatives $(12¢) $— $ 16C

Note 13. Employee Benefit Plans
Employee Stock Ownership and Savings Plan

The Company maintains the Employee Stock OwnemhipSavings Plan (“KSOP”). Coverage under the gamovided to all employees
who meet minimum eligibility requirements. The KS®&d 499,075 shares of the Company’s common sisad December 31, 2013,
561,551 shares as of December 31, 2012, and 588t&66s as of December 31, 2011.

Employer Stock Fun

The Company made annual contributions to the seature within the KSOP at the discretion of theaRbof Directors until December 31,
2006, when the plan was frozen to future contringi Substantially all plan assets are investédaérCompany’s common stock. All KSOP
contributions beginning in 2007 have been madeeemployee savings feature of the plan.

Employee Savings Ple

The Company provides a 401(k) savings feature withé KSOP. The Company makes matching contribstioremployee deferrals at levels
determined by the Board of Directors on an annaaish The cost of the Company’s 100% matching dmuttons to qualified deferrals under
the 401(k) savings component of the KSOP was $hifiibn in 2013, $1.27 million in 2012, and $1.34llion in 2011. In 2013 and 2011, all
matching contributions were made in the Compangiamon stock. In 2012, matching contributions weeglein cash and the Company’s
common stock.

Employee Welfare Plan

The Company provides various medical, dental, wisiiée, accidental death and dismemberment, and-term disability insurance benefits
to all full-time employees who elect coverage urtties program. The health plan is managed by d4bérty administrator. Monthly

employer and employee contributions are made &x-@xempt employee benefits trust where the thindypadministrator processes and pays
claims. Stop-loss insurance coverage limits the @amy’s risk of loss to $100 thousand for individakdims and $3.98 million aggregate
claims. Expenses related to the health plan we@23$8illion in 2013, $2.25 million in 2012, and 3.million in 2011.
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Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company maintains deferred compensation agmgsméth certain current and former officers thadyide benefit payments, over
various periods, commencing at retirement or defthrued benefits are based on the present vafuegected payments and estimated life
expectancies and totaled $455 thousand as of Deare3b2013, and $459 thousand as of December032, Expenses related to the
deferred compensation plan were $60 thousand im efathe three years ended December 31, 2013.

Supplemental Executive Retention Plan

The Company maintains the Supplemental ExecutiteriRien Plan (the “SERP”) for key members of sem@nagement. The domestic
noncontributory, nonqualified SERP provides forefimed benefit, at normal retirement age, targetegb% of the participant’s projected
final average compensation, subject to a definexitmam annual benefit. Benefits under the SERP galydnecome payable at age 62. The
SERP is an unfunded plan; accordingly, there arplauo assets. The following table presents the corapts of the SERP’s net periodic
pension cost in the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012 2011
Service cost $13E $158 $161
Interest cos 24¢ 203 224
Amortization of losses (gain 49 45 —
Amortization of prior service co: 187 134 134
Net periodic cos $617 $53E $51¢

The actuarial benefit plan obligation was $5.62iomlas of December 31, 2013, and December 31,.2ZH& obligation as of December 31,
2013, included a $380 thousand increase as a dsuitamendment in January 2013 to revise the ahwfunormal retirement benefit. The
increase was offset by a $725 thousand actuariial §he assumed discount rate was increased t&bab0f December 31, 2013, compared
to 4.20% as of December 31, 2012. The followingesicle presents the projected benefit payments aloeunder the SERP, by year, as of
December 31, 2013:

(Amounts in thousand

2014 $ 24¢
2015 24¢€
2016 24¢
2017 377
2018 377
2019 through 202 2,171
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Directors’ Supplemental Retirement Plan

The Company maintains the Directors’ SupplementirBment Plan (the “Directors’ Plan”) for non-mgeanent directors. The domestic
noncontributory, nonqualified Directors’ Plan prdgs for a defined benefit, at normal retirement ageo 100% of the participant’s highest
consecutive three-year average compensation. Bewnefiler the Directors’ Plan generally become plgyabage 70. The DirectorBlan is ar
unfunded plan; accordingly, there are no plan as3éte following table presents the components®firectors’ Plan’s net periodic pension
cost in the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012 2011
Service cost $ 26 $ 27 $ 29
Interest cos 41 39 43
Amortization of gains (losse 1 — —
Amortization of prior service co: 90 a0 90
Net periodic cos $15¢ $15€ $162

The actuarial benefit plan obligation was $975 #end as of December 31, 2013, and $981 thousanfdCeember 31, 2012. The assumed
discount rate was increased to 5.25% as of Dece81h&2013, compared to 4.20% as of December 32.2lHe following schedule presents
the projected benefit payments to be paid undebthectors’ Plan, by year, as of December 31, 2013:

(Amounts in thousand

2014 $ 83
2015 81
2016 79
2017 10¢
2018 107
2019 through 202 552

Note 14. Equity-Based Compensation

The Company maintains equity-based compensatiors ptapromote the long-term success of the Compgrgncouraging officers,
employees, directors, and other individuals perfogiservices for the Company to focus on criticalg-range objectives. The Company’s
equity-based compensation plans include the 2018ikm Equity Compensation Plan (“2012 Pla@)p4 Omnibus Stock Option Plan, 2(
Director’s Option Plan, 1999 Stock Option Plan, aadous other option plans. As of December 31 32@ie 2012 Plan was the only plan
available for the issuance of future grants. Afind before the 2012 Plan are frozen and no newisgnaay be issued; however, any options or
awards unexercised and outstanding under those amain in effect in accordance with their respederms.

The 2012 Plan made available up to 600,000 shargsofential grants of incentive stock options, auoatified stock options, performance
awards, restricted stock, restricted stock unitsslsappreciation rights, bonus stock, and stocirde: Options granted pursuant to the 2012
Plan shall state the period of time the grant magXercised, not to exceed more than ten yearstfierdate granted. The Company’s
Compensation and Retirement Committee shall deterthie vesting period for each grant; howeverpifasting period is specified the
vesting shall occur in 25% increments on the fiost anniversaries of the grant date.
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The following table presents the pre-tax compensatixpense and excess tax benefit recognized mingarfor all equitypased compensatis
plans in the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012 2011
Pre-tax compensation expense $ 574 $ 20€ 98
Excess tax benel 9 6 5

Stock Options

The fair value of stock options is estimated atdhte of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton viidmamodel with the following
assumptions: expected volatility is based on thekiyehistorical volatility of the Company’s commetock price over the expected term of
the option; the expected term is generally caledlaising the shortcut method; the risk-free interee is based on the Treasury yield curve
on the grant date with a term comparable to thaetgead the dividend yield is based on the Compadividend yield using the most recent
dividend rate paid per share and trading pricéhef@ompany’s common stock.

The following table presents the assumptions usestimate the fair values of stock options atdhite of grant in the periods indicated. No
stock options were granted in 2013 or 2012.

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Expected volatility — — 27.96%
Expected term (in year — — 6.1¢
Risk-free interest rat — — 1.5(%
Expected dividend yiel — — 3.24%
Weighted average fair value of options granted §bare’ $— = $ 2.5¢

The following table presents stock option activityder the equity-based compensation plans in thedimdicated:

Weighted Average Weighted Average Aggregate
Remaining Contractual

(Amounts in thousands, Option Exercise Price Intrinsic
except share and per share da Shares Per Share Term (Years) Value
Outstanding, January 1, 20 471,88l $ 20.8
Grantec — —
Exercisec 5,85( 13.01
Cancelec 91,20: 22.9¢
Outstanding, December 31, 20 374,82 $ 20.4¢ 5.4 $ 52¢
Exercisable, December 31, 20 301,36! $ 22.5% 4.8 $ 191

The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercisad $22 thousand as of December 31, 2013, $16ahdwss of December 31, 2012, and
thousand as of December 31, 2011.

As of December 31, 2013, unrecognized compensatipense related to nonvested stock options washbsand, which is expected to be
recognized over a weighted average period of Oeédsy The actual compensation cost recognizedliffélr from this estimate due to a
number of items, including new grants and changesiimated forfeitures.
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Restricted Stock Awards

Restricted stock awards represent shares issuatgrpaot that are restricted and generally useeethiear vesting schedule from the grant
date. The fair value of restricted stock awardsaisulated using the Company’s common stock pricéhe grant date. The following table
presents restricted stock activity under the egoiéged compensation plans in the period indicated:

Weighted Average

Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value
Nonvested, January 1, 20 18,95( $ 12.67
Grantec 2,70C 16.2¢
Vested 6,05( 13.2¢
Cancelec 13,00( 12.6¢
Nonvested, December 31, 20 2,60( $ 15.0¢

As of December 31, 2013, unrecognized compensatetrelated to nonvested restricted stock awaeds$23 thousand, which is expected
to be recognized over a weighted average peri@ddaf years. The actual compensation cost recogmidkdiffer from this estimate due to a
number of items, including new awards granted drahges in estimated forfeitures.

Performance Stock Awards

Performance stock awards represent shares potgiggiable in the future. In 2013, the Companyralwd 80,872 shares with a three-year
performance period. Approximately 48% of each awessted on the grant date and the remaining skastsn three equal installments,
subject to the annual performance requirement la@decipient’s continued employment on the appleabsting date. The performance
requirement is based on an annual three-year awvenagmum growth rate in earnings per share. Thevidue of performance stock awards
is calculated using the Compagystock price on the grant date. The followingégtresents performance stock activity under th@ Zan in
the period indicated:

Weighted Average

Grant-Date
Shares Fair Value
Nonvested, January 1, 20 — $ —
Grantec 80,87z 15.7¢
Vested 39,08¢ 15.7¢
Cancelec 4,85 15.5¢
Nonvested, December 31, 20 36,93¢ $ 15.7¢

As of December 31, 2013, unrecognized compensatietrelated to nonvested performance stock aweadst216 thousand, which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted averagedoof 1.08 years. The actual compensation @zstgnized will differ from this estima
due to a number of items, including new awardstghand changes in estimated forfeitures.
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Note 15. Other Operating Income and Expense
The following table presents the components of rotiperating income in the periods indicated:

2013 2012 2011
(Amounts in thousand
Miscellaneous incom $ 411 $2,45¢ $ 23€
Other @ 4,82¢ 4,28: 3,65:
Total other operating incon $5,23¢ $6,74: $3,88¢

(1) Other components of other operating income do roeed 1% of total incom:

Miscellaneous income in 2012 included the $2.3%onilout-of-period adjustment to correct the untirment of pre-tax income from 2007
to 2011.

The following table presents the components of otiperating expense in the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011

(Amounts in thousand

Service fee! $ 3,157 $ 3,73¢ $ 2,941
Professional fee 2,56¢ 1,912 1,55¢
Telephone and data communicatis 1,70% 1,54¢ 1,61¢€
Advertising and public relatior 1,68¢ 1,421 1,68:
ATM processing expensi 1,60t 1,48 1,51¢
Premises and equipment w-downs 1,52( — 131
Office supplies 1,472 1,68¢ 1,22:
Other @ 9,53¢ 9,40z 9,64
Total other operating expen $23,24¢ $21,19( $20,30¢

(1) Other components of other operating income do rceed 1% of total incom:

Premises and equipment write-downs in 2013 corketéirely of expenses related to branch closundscansolidations expected to occur in
2014.

Note 16. Income Taxes

Income tax expense is comprised of current andagfefederal and state income taxes on the Con'pang-tax earnings. The following
table presents the components of income tax experke periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012 2011
Current tax expens:

Federa $12,81¢ $13,73: $7,101

State 1,74: 1,291 11C
Total current tax expen: 14,56: 15,02« 7,211
Deferred tax (benefit) expens

Federa (3,136 (1,507 1,65(

State (51¢) 60% 712
Total deferred tax (benefit) exper (3,659 (89€6) 2,362
Total income tax expen: $10,90¢ $14,12¢ $9,57:
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Deferred taxes derived from continuing operatiaflect the net effect of temporary differences lmwthe carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and@mts used for tax purposes. The following tabkspnts the significant components of the

net deferred tax asset as of the dates indicated:

December 31

2013 2012
(Amounts in thousand
Deferred tax asset
Allowance for loan losse $ 9,20¢ $ 9,857
Unrealized losses on availa-for-sale securitie 8,18/ 16¢
Unrealized asset loss 8,01¢ 8,02:
Purchase accountir 6,79¢ 6,191
FDIC assisted transactio 6,752 6,752
Intangible assel 6,38¢ 7,582
Deferred compensation ass 4,22¢ 4,23¢
Alternative minimum tax cred 1,84¢ 1,84¢
Other deferred tax asse¢ 2,67( 2,76
Total deferred tax asse 54,08 47,42
Deferred tax liabilities
FDIC indemnification asst¢ 12,15t 18,38¢
Fixed asset 2,19¢ 2,15¢
Odd days interest deferr 1,95¢ 2,02¢
Other 1,06¢ 1,05¢
Total deferred tax liabilitie 17,37¢ 23,62¢
Net deferred tax ass $36,70¢ $23,79:

The Company'’s effective tax rate, defined as inctemeexpense divided by pre-tax income, may vaggificantly from the statutory rate due
to permanent differences and the use of availalxeredits. The Company’s most significant permadéferences, income and expense
items excluded by law in the calculation of taxableome, include income on municipal securitiesichtare exempt from federal income t
income on bank-owned life insurance, and tax cseginerated by investments in low income housimgrahabilitation of historic structures.
The following table reconciles the federal statytizix rate to the Company’s effective tax rate frmontinuing operations in the periods
indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(Amounts in thousand
Federal statutory tax ra 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
(Reduction) increase resulting fro
Tax-exempt interes (5.19 (4.1¢€) (6.40
State income taxes, net of federal ber 2.3t 2.3t 2.7¢
Other, ne (0.39 (0.1 0.9¢
Effective tax rate 31.88% 33.08% 32.3%
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The following table presents the activity in acclamed other comprehensive income (“AOCI”), netaf,tby component for the periods

indicated:

(Amounts in thousand

Beginning balance, January 1, 2(

Other comprehensive gain (loss) before
reclassification

Reclassified from AOC

Net other comprehensive gain (lo

Ending balance, December 31, 2(

Beginning balance, January 1, 2(

Other comprehensive gain (loss) before
reclassification:

Reclassified from AOC

Net other comprehensive ge

Ending balance, December 31, 2(

Beginning balance, January 1, 2(

Other comprehensive (loss) gain before

reclassification:
Reclassified from AOC

Net comprehensive (loss) ge
Ending balance, December 31, 2(

Gains (Losses) ol
Cash Flow Hedge

(20)

$

»

»

20

20

120

Unrealized Gains (Losse

on Available-for-Sale
Securities

(11,219

7,341
(1,869

5,472

»

(5,74)

(5,74)

5,17:
28¢

5,45¢

»

(289)

(289)

(13,307
(50

(13,35)

(13,64()

Employee
Benefit Plan

$ (957

(770)

14C

(630)

$ (1,587)
$ (1,58)

(122)

167

___ 45
$ (1,54
$ (1,549

237
20E
442
$ (1,100

Total
$(12,190)

6,591

(1,729
4,86

$ (7,329
$ (7,329

5,051
452

5,50¢

$ (1,829
$ (1,829

(13,070
15E
(12,919
$(14,740)
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The following table presents reclassifications @uUAOCI by component in the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31 Income Statement
(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012 2011 Line Item Affected
Available-for-sale securitie
Gains realized in net incon $(39) $(483) $(5,2649 Net gain on sale of securiti
Credit-related OTTI recognized in net incot 32C 942 2,28t  Net impairment losses recognized in earni

(79) 45¢ (2,979 Income before taxe
Income tax effec (29) 174 (1,110 Income tax expense (bene!

(50) 28t (1,869 Netincome

Employee benefit plar

Amortization of prior service co: 2717 228 22 (1)
Amortization of gains 50 45 — (0]
327 26¢ 22%  Income before taxe
Income tax effec 122 101 83 Income tax expense (bene!
20¢ 167 14C  Netincome
Reclassified from AOCI, net of te $15E  $452 $(1,729 Netincome

(1) Amortization is included in net periodic pensiorst@ee Note 1 Employee Benefit Plar”

Note 18. Fair Value
Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value

Fair value is defined as the price that would lmeireed to sell an asset or paid to transfer allfglin an orderly transaction between market
participants. A description of the valuation metblogjies used for instruments measured at fair vasavell as the general classification of
such instruments pursuant to the valuation hiesarishpresented in the following discussion. Thealue hierarchy prioritizes the inputs
used in measuring fair value as follows:

* Level 1- Observable, unadjusted quoted prices in active ets

» Level 2—Inputs other than quoted prices included in Leviilat are directly or indirectly observable for tisset or liability

» Level 3— Unobservable inputs with little or no market adgivihat require the Company to use reasonable srgmudl assumptior
The Company uses fair value measurements to rectudtments to certain financial assets and lizgdslion a recurring basis. Additionally,
the Company may be required to record certain asgéair value on a nonrecurring basis in specificumstances, such as evidence of
impairment. Methodologies used to determine faluganay be highly subjective and judgmental in rgtauch as cash flow estimates, risk
characteristics, credit quality measurements, atetést rates; therefore, valuations may not beiggeSince fair values are estimated as of a

specific date, the amounts actually realized od pai the settlement or maturity of these instrumemdy be significantly different from
estimates. See Note 1, “Summary of Significant Aetimg Policies,” to the Consolidated Financialt&taents of this report.
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Assets and Liabilities Reported at Fair Value oRecurring Basit

Available-for-Sale SecuritiesSecurities available for sale are reported ataiue on a recurring basis. The fair value ofélelvsecurities is
based on quoted market prices in active markegsaflable. The Company also uses Level 1 inputsboe equity securities that are trade
active markets. If quoted market prices are nollabie, fair values are measured utilizing indepantdraluation techniques of identical or
similar securities for which significant assumpsare primarily derived from or corroborated byevable market data. Level 2 securities
use fair value measurements from independent grigénvices obtained by the Company. These fairevaleasurements consider observable
data that may include dealer quotes, market spreadh flows, the Treasury yield curve, live tradievels, trade execution data, market
consensus prepayment speeds, credit informatiahband terms and conditions. The Company’s Lewadirities include U.S. Treasury
securities, single issue trust preferred securitiegporate securities, MBS, and certain equitysges that are not actively traded. Securities
are based on Level 3 inputs when there is limittvidy or less transparency to the valuation irspuih the absence of observable or
corroborated market data, internally developedredts that incorporate market-based assumptionssatewhen such information is
available.

Fair value models may be required when trading/iigtinas declined significantly or does not exgsices are not current, or pricing variati
are significant. For Level 3 securities, the Compabtains the cash flow of specific securities frinind parties that use modeling software to
determine cash flows based on market participatat aad knowledge of the structures of each indafidecurity. The fair value of Level 3
securities are determined by applying approprisaeket observable discount rates to the cash flaweld from third-party models. Discount
rates are developed by determining credit sprebogeaa benchmark rate, such as LIBOR, and addiemipms for illiquidity, which are
based on a comparison of initial issuance spreadBOR versus a financial sector curve for receigBued debt to LIBOR. Securities with
increased uncertainty regarding the receipt of dlasts are discounted at higher rates due to tliitiad of a deal specific credit premium
based on assumptions about the performance ofidherlying collateral. Finally, internal fair valueodel pricing and external pricing
observations are combined by assigning weighta¢b ericing observation. Pricing is reviewed fasenableness based on the direction of
the specific markets and the general economic atdis.

Deferred Compensation Assets and Liabili. Securities held for trading purposes are recoedddir value on a recurring basis and included
in other assets in the consolidated balance shEetse securities include assets related to empldgferred compensation plans, which are
generally invested in Level 1 equity securitiese Tibility associated with these deferred compgmsalans are carried at the fair value of
the obligation to the employee, which correspondbi¢ fair value of the invested assets.

Derivative Assets and Liabilitie. Derivatives are recorded at fair value on a méegrbasis. The Company obtains dealer quotes, |l 2ve
inputs, based on observable data to value derastiv
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The following tables summarize financial assets lafilities recorded at fair value on a recurrlvasis, segregated by the level of valuation
inputs in the fair value hierarchy, as of the datescated:

December 31, 201

Total Fair Value Measurements Usinc

(Amounts in thousand Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 2
Available-for-sale securities

U.S. Treasury securitie $ 9,01 $ — $ 9,01: $—

Municipal securitie: 144,28 — 144,28 —

Single issue trust preferred securil 46,23¢ — 46,23¢ —

Corporate securitie 4,871 — 4,871 —

Agency MBS 300,38t — 300,38t —

Non-Agency All-A residential MBS 9,78¢ — 9,78¢ —

Equity securitie: 5,24 251 4,99¢ —
Total availabl-for-sale securitie $519,82( $ 251 $519,56¢ $—
Deferred compensation ass $ 4,20( $4,20( $ — $—
Derivatives

Interest rate sway $ 43 $ — $ 43 $—

Forward sale loan commitmer 41 — 41 —
Total derivative asse $ 84 $ — $ 84 $—
Deferred compensation liabilitie $ 4,20( $4,20( $ — $—
Derivative liabilities

IRLCs $ 41 $ — $ 41 $—

December 31, 201,
Total Fair Value Measurements Using

(Amounts in thousand Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 2
Available-for-sale securities

Municipal securitie: $159,21° $ — $159,21° $—

Single issue trust preferred securil 44,64¢ — 44,64¢ —

Agency MBS 315,89 — 315,89 —

Non-Agency All-A residential MBS 11,067 — 11,067 —

Equity securitie: 3,531 3,511 20 —
Total availabl-for-sale securitie $534,35¢ $3,511 $530,84° $—
Deferred compensation ass $ 3,62t $3,62¢ $ — $—
Derivatives

IRLCs $ 144 $ — $ 144 $—
Deferred compensation liabilitie $ 3,62¢ $3,62¢ $ — $—
Derivative liabilities

IRLCs $ 16 $ — $ 16 $—
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There were no changes in valuation techniques guhia years ended December 31, 2013 or 2012. [Edmpany determines that a valuat
technique change is necessary, the change is ads¢arhave occurred at the end of the respectivertieg period. In addition, there were no
transfers in to or out of Level 3 of the fair vahierarchy during the years ended December 31, 202812.

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurringi

Impaired Loans. Impaired loans are recorded at fair value onraexurring basis when repayment is expected stiety the sale of the
loan’s collateral. Fair value is based on appraisgde adjusted for customized discounting critdrgvel 3 inputs.

The Company maintains an active and robust problemit identification system. The impairment revigwludes obtaining third-party
collateral valuations to assist management in ifjeng potential credit impairment and determiniting amount of impairment to record. The
Company'’s Special Assets staff assumes the manageme monitoring of all loans determined to beaingd. Internal collateral valuations
are generally performed within two to four weeksdehtifying the initial potential impairment. Tlternal valuation compares the original
appraisal to current local real estate market ¢@mdi and considers experience and expected litjordaosts. A third-party valuation is
typically received within thirty to forty-five daysf completing the internal valuation. When a thpatty valuation is received, it is reviewed
for reasonableness. Once the valuation is reviemedaccepted, discounts are applied to fair maskee, based on, but not limited to, our
historical liquidation experience for like collagrresulting in an estimated net realizable valiree estimated net realizable value is
compared to the outstanding loan balance to deterthie appropriate amount of specific impairmeséree.

Specific reserves are generally recorded for ingghlioans while third-party valuations are in pracasd for impaired loans that continue to
make some form of payment. While waiting to recehe third-party appraisal, the Company regulagljiews the relationship to identify any
potential adverse developments and begins the resiessary to gain control of the collateral arepare it for liquidation, including, but not
limited to, engagement of counsel, inspection dideral, and continued communication with the barer, if appropriate. Generally, the ol
difference between the current appraised valus,ligsidation costs, and the carrying amount ofltfaa, less the specific reserve, is any
downward adjustment to the appraised value thaCtdrapany deems appropriate, such as the cost thesproperty and a deflator for the
devaluation of property when banks are the sellerpaired loans that do not meet the aforementiamigelria and do not have a specific
reserve have typically been written down througttiglecharge-offs to net realizable value. Basegnar experience, the Company rarely
returns loans to performing status after they Heaen partially charged off. Credits identified mxpaired move quickly through the process
towards ultimate resolution except in cases inv@\ankruptcy and various state judicial processbigh may extend the time for ultimate
resolution.

Other Real Estate Owned®REO is recorded at fair value on a nonrecurbagis using Level 3 inputs. The Company calculdtesair value
of OREO from current or prior appraisals that hbeen adjusted for valuation declines, estimatdihgeatosts, and other proprietary
gualitative adjustments that are deemed necessary.

Goodwill. Goodwill is recorded at fair value on a nonreguybasis when impairment has occurred. The fdureraf the Company reporting
units use Level 3 inputs based on discounted dashand market multiple models.
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The following tables summarize assets measuregiratdlue on a nonrecurring basis, segregated djetrel of valuation inputs in the fair
value hierarchy, in the periods indicated:

December 31, 201

;gti?l Fair Value Measurements Using
(Amounts in thousand Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Impaired loans not covered by loss share agreements $8,93¢ — — $ 8,93t
OREO, not covered by loss share agreemr 7,18( — — 7,18(
OREO, covered by loss share agreem 6,43: — — 6,43:

December 31, 201

TFZE?I Fair Value Measurements Using

Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(Amounts in thousand
Impaired loans not covered by loss share agreer $8,192 — — $ 8,19:
OREO, not covered by loss share agreemr 5,704 — — 5,70¢
OREO, covered by loss share agreem 3,25¢ — — 3,25¢

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Valuedsurements
The following table presents quantitative informatfor assets measured at fair value on a noniiegusasis using Level 3 valuation inputs
of December 31, 2013:

Range
Valuation Technique Unobservable Input (Weighted Average)

Appraisal adjustmen
ppraisal adjustmeny 6% to 100% (47%

Impaired loans . .
Discounted appraisal®

OREQO, not covered by loss share Appraisal adjustmen
@

agreement Discounted appraisal® 0% to 65% (34%
OREO, covered by loss share Aopraisal adiustmen
agreement Discounted appraisal® PP J @ 4% to 70% (41%

(1) Fair value is generally based on appraisals ofitteerlying collateral
(2) Appraisals may be adjusted by management fetioouized discounting criteria, estimated salessc@std proprietary qualitative
adjustments

Fair Value of Financial Instrumen

The Company uses various methodologies and assamspit estimate the fair value of certain finangiatruments. A description of the
valuation methodologies used for instruments netipusly discussed is as follows:

Cash and Cash Equivalent€ash and cash equivalents are reported at theirieg amount, which is considered a reasonaliimate due to
the short-term nature of these instruments.

Held-to-Maturity Securities Securities held to maturity are reported at¥aiue using quoted market prices or dealer quotes.

Loans Held for Sal. Loans held for sale are reported at the lowaost or estimated fair value. Estimated fair vatueased on the market
price of similar loans.
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Loans Held for Investme. Loans held for investment are reported at faineaising discounted future cash flows that applyent interest
rates for loans with similar terms and borroweddrgquality.

FDIC Indemnification Asse. The FDIC indemnification asset is reported at¥alue using discounted future cash flows thatyapprrent
discount rates.

Accrued Interest Receivable/Paya. Accrued interest receivable/payable is reportdfier carrying amount, which is considered a
reasonable estimate due to the short-term natuteesé instruments.

Deposits and Securities Sold Under Agreements paiiRease. Deposits without a stated maturity, such as deimiaterest-bearing demand,
and savings, are reported at their carrying amdhatamount payable on demand as of the reporttey which is considered a reasonable
estimate of fair value. Deposits and repurchaseeagents with fixed maturities and rates are redatdair value using discounted future
cash flows that apply interest rates currently labée in the market for instruments with similaachcteristics and maturities.

FHLB and Other Indebtedne. FHLB and other indebtedness is reported at faliner using discounted future cash flows that apybrest
rates currently available to the Company for boings with similar characteristics and maturitiesust preferred obligations are reported at
fair value using current credit spreads in the ragfér similar issues.

Off-Balance Sheet Instrument§he Company believes that fair values of unfuncim@mitments to extend credit, standby lettersredlit, anc
financial guarantees are not meaningful; therefoifehalance sheet instruments are not addresstn ifair value disclosures. Due to the
uncertainty and difficulty in assessing the likelild and timing of advancing available proceeds|abk of an established market for these
instruments, and the diversity in fee structures,Gompany believes it is not feasible or practi#d accurately disclose the fair values of
off-balance sheet instruments. For additional imfation regarding the unfunded, contractual valuefbbalance sheet financial instruments
see Note 20, “Litigation, Commitments and Contingjes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statementhisfreport.
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The following tables present the carrying amount fair value of the Company’s financial instrumerssgregated by the level of valuation
inputs in the fair value hierarchy, as of the datescated:

December 31, 201.

Carrying Fair Value Measurements Using
(Amounts in thousand Amount Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 56,56: $ 56,56 $56,56" $ — $ —
Available-for-sale securitie 519,82( 519,82( 251 519,56 —
Held-to-maturity securitie: 56¢ 57¢ — 57¢ —
Loans held for sal 88: 88: — 883 —
Loans held for investment less allowal 1,686,64 1,655,43 — — 1,655,43
FDIC indemnification asst 34,69: 34,69 — — 34,69
Accrued interest receivab 7,521 7,521 — 7,521 —
Derivative financial asse 84 84 — 84 —
Deferred compensation ass 4,20( 4,20( 4,20( — —
Liabilities
Demand deposil $ 339,68( $ 339,68 $ — $339,68!( $ —
Interes-bearing demand depos 361,82: 361,82: — 361,82: —
Savings deposil 524,01( 524,01( — 524,01( —
Time deposit: 725,23: 728,99¢ — 728,99¢ —
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 118,30¢ 121,32( — 121,32 —
Accrued interest payab 2,16¢ 2,16¢ — 2,16¢ —
FHLB and other indebtedne 166,08t 178,03: — 178,03: —
Derivative financial liabilities 41 41 — 41 —
Deferred compensation liabilitie 4,20( 4,20( 4,20( — —
December 31, 201,
Carrying Fair Value Measurements Using
(Amounts in thousand Amount Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Cash and cash equivale $ 144,84 $ 144,84 $144,84° $ — $ —
Available-for-sale securitie 534,35¢ 534,35¢ 3,511 530,84 —
Held-to-maturity securitie: 81€ 832 — 832 —
Loans held for sal 6,672 6,77¢ — 6,77¢ —
Loans held for investment less allowal 1,698,88. 1,702,12 — — 1,702,12
FDIC indemnification asst 48,14¢ 48,14¢ — — 48,14¢
Accrued interest receivab 7,842 7,842 — 7,84z —
Derivative financial asse 144 144 — 144 —
Deferred compensation ass 3,62¢ 3,62¢ 3,62¢ — —
Liabilities
Demand deposi $ 343,35. $ 343,35: $ — $343,35: $ —
Interes-bearing demand depos 353,32: 353,32: — 353,32: —
Savings deposil 500,27t 500,27¢ — 500,27t —
Time deposit: 833,22¢ 842,33: — 842,33: —
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 136,11¢ 142,41 — 142,41 —
Accrued interest payab 2,481 2,481 — 2,481 —
FHLB and other indebtedne 177,43! 200,41¢ — 200,41¢ —
Derivative financial liabilities 16 16 — 16 —
Deferred compensation liabilitie 3,62¢ 3,62¢ 3,62¢ — —
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Note 19. Related Party Transactions

The Company and its subsidiaries are involved itagetransactions with directors and executivécefs, their immediate families, their
business interests, or affiliates of such direcémd officers (collectively referred to as “relaggatties”) in the normal course of business. The
following table summarizes deposit transactionfiwdtiated parties in the periods indicated:

December 31

2013 2012 2011
(Amounts in thousand

Beginning balanc $2,58¢ $ 3,831 $17,11.
Increase in deposits, including new accot 907 311 1,29¢
Decrease in deposits, including closed acca (579 (1,559 (14,57)
Ending balanc: $2,922 $ 2,58¢ $ 3,83i

Changes in the composition of the Company’s suasidioard members and executive officers resuitednet increase in deposits of $103
thousand in 2013, $166 thousand in 2012, and $1Millidn in 2011.

All loans and commitments with related parties hagen made on substantially the same terms, ingjudierest rates and collateral, as tt
prevailing at the time for comparable transactioits unrelated parties. The following table sumreasiloan transactions with related parties
in the periods indicated:

December 31

2013 2012 2011
(Amounts in thousand

Beginning balanc $16,61" $18,40¢ $12,45¢
Increase in existing loans, including new lo 2,037 2,58( 10,07¢
Decrease in existing loans, including loans pafc (1,479 (4,369 (4,139
Ending balanc: $17,18: $16,61" $18,40¢

Changes in the composition of the Company’s suaisidioard members and executive officers resuttedriet decrease in loans of $613
thousand in 2013 and $2.79 million in 2012. Changédsans during 2011 were not attributed to thaendie in composition of the Company’s
directors and executive officers.

The Company'’s other operating expense included fega and lease expense associated with relatédgpd egal fees paid to related parties
totaled $57 thousand in 2013, $63 thousand in 281@ $80 thousand in 2011. Lease expense paithtedeparties totaled $134 thousand in
2013, $171 thousand in 2012, and $164 thousan@lf.2

Note 20. Litigation, Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

In the normal course of business, the Companyisfendant in various legal actions and assertachslaVhile the Company and its legal
counsel are unable to assess the ultimate outcbmach of these matters with certainty, the Comgaalieves the resolution of these actions,

singly or in the aggregate, should not have a rizdtedverse effect on the financial condition, tessaf operations or cash flows of the
Company.
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Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is a party to financial instrumenthwiff-balance sheet risk in the normal course Gifss to meet the financing needs of its
customers. These financial instruments include ci@ments to extend credit, standby letters of crexitl financial guarantees. These
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elemehtsedit and interest rate risk beyond the amoaobgnized in the balance sheets. The
contractual amounts of these instruments reflecettient of involvement the Company has in paricalasses of financial instruments. If
other party to a financial instrument does not grenf the Company’s credit loss exposure is the sagrtbe contractual amount of the
instrument. The Company uses the same credit pslinimaking commitments and conditional obligadias it does for on-balance sheet
instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements totteaccustomer as long as there is no violatioanyf condition established in the contract.
Commitments generally have fixed expiration datestber termination clauses and may require paymeatfee. Since many of the
commitments are expected to expire without beirsgvdrupon, the total commitment amounts do not reac#ég represent future cash
requirements. The Company evaluates each custogredgworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The mtnobgollateral obtained, if deemed
necessary, is based on management’s credit evaluattithe customer. Collateral may include accowdeivable, inventory, property, plant
and equipment, and income producing commercialgnms. Commitments to extend credit also includistanding commitments related to
mortgage loans that are sold on a best efforts liaigi the secondary loan market. The Company @iama reserve for the risk inherent in
unfunded lending commitments, which is includedtimer liabilities in the consolidated balance sbeet

Standby letters of credit and financial guaransgesconditional commitments issued by the Compargutirantee the performance of a
customer to a third party. The credit risk invohirdssuing letters of credit is essentially thensaas that involved in extending credit to
customers. The amount of collateral obtained, &@ded necessary, to secure the custaymiformance under certain letters of credit &el
on management’s credit evaluation of the customer.

The following table presents the Company’s off-baasheet financial instruments as of the datasatet:

December 31

2013 2012
(Amounts in thousand
Commitments to extend cres $216,17¢ $215,77(
Commitments related to secondary market mortgages 3,67 14,84(
Standby letters of credit and financial guaran 4,192 6,81(
Total off-balance sheet ris $224,04! $237,42(
Reserve for unfunded commitmel $ 32€ $ 32¢

The Company issued $15.46 million of trust preféisecurities in a private placement through thesfTim connection with the issuance, the
Company has committed to irrevocably and unconukitily guarantee the following payments or distritwis, with respect to the trust
preferred securities to the holders thereof tcetttent that the Trust has not made such paymemlistibutions and has the funds therefore:
(i) accrued and unpaid distributions, (ii) the neqhgion price, and (iii) upon a dissolution or tenaion of the Trust, the lesser of the
liquidation amount and all accrued and unpaid ittistrons and the amount of assets of the Trust intavailable for distribution.
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Note 21. Regulatory Capital Requirements and Restrtions

The Company and the Bank are subject to varioudatagy capital requirements administered by staig federal banking agencies. Failure
to meet minimum capital requirements can initisggan mandatory and possibly additional discretigractions by regulators that, if
undertaken, could have a direct material effedh@enCompany’s consolidated financial statementslddithe capital adequacy guidelines and
the regulatory framework for prompt corrective antiwhich applies only to the Bank, the Bank musenhspecific capital guidelines that
involve quantitative measures of the entity’s agd@tbilities, and certain off-balance sheet itemagalculated under regulatory accounting
practices. The Bank’s capital amounts and clasdifios are also subject to qualitative judgmentthieyregulators about components, risk
weightings, and other factors. Quantitative measestablished by regulation to ensure capital aagqrequire the Company and the Bank to
maintain minimum amounts and ratios for total anet T capital, as defined in the regulations, stfiveighted assets, as defined, and of Tier
1 capital, as defined, to average assets, as define

To be categorized as well capitalized, the Banktmmagntain minimum total capital to risk-weighteskats, Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted
assets, and Tier 1 capital to average assets glgepratios established by banking regulators.fA3ezember 31, 2013, the Company and the
Bank continued to meet all capital adequacy requergts. As of December 31, 2013, the most receiiftaatons from regulators continued
categorize the Bank as well capitalized under dgeilatory framework for prompt corrective actionabdhgement believes there have been no
conditions or events since those notifications tihatld change the Bank’s classification. The follogvtable presents the Company’s and the
Bank’s capital ratios as of the dates indicated:

December 31, 201

To Be Well
For Capital Capitalized Under
Adequacy Prompt Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provisions
(Amounts in thousand Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets
First Community Bancshares, Ir $270,63t 16.40 $131,69: 8.0(% N/A N/A
First Community Banl| 236,69¢ 14.5%%  130,14: 8.0(% $162,67¢ 10.0(%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets
First Community Bancshares, Ir 250,01 15.1% 65,847 4.0% N/A N/A
First Community Banl| 216,31 13.3(% 65,07C  4.0(% 97,60¢ 6.0(%
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets (Leverage
First Community Bancshares, Ir 250,01: 9.95%  100,48¢ 4.0(% N/A N/A
First Community Banl| 216,31 8.63%  100,21¢ 4.0(%  125,27: 5.0(%
December 31, 201
To Be Well
For Capital Capitalized Under
Adequacy Prompt Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provisions

(Amounts in thousand Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets
First Community Bancshares, Ir $282,72¢ 16.7(% $135,44: 8.0% N/A N/A
First Community Banl| 255,21¢ 15.29% 134,080 8.0(% $167,60¢ 10.0(%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets
First Community Bancshares, Ir 261,467 15.4%% 67,72  4.00% N/A N/A
First Community Banl| 234,22t  13.91% 67,04. 4.0% 100,56 6.0(%
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets (Leverage)
First Community Bancshares, Ir 261,46° 9.9¢%  104,97: 4.0(% N/A N/A
First Community Banl| 234,22t 8.9¢% 104,300 4.0(%  130,38: 5.0(%
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The primary source of funds for dividends paid iy €Company to shareholders is dividends receivad the Bank, which are subject to
banking regulation restrictions. Approval by regaty authorities is required to declare dividerfdhié dividends are to be paid in something
other than cash, if the cumulative dividend paynexteeds the net retained income of the currenttgedate plus the retained net income of
the preceding two years, or if payment of the divid would cause the Bank to become undercapitalized

The Bank issues mortgages insured by the U.S. Brapat of Housing and Urban Development (“‘HUD”) ad@dD-approved Title Il
Supervised Mortgagee. A Title Il Supervised Mortgagnust maintain an adjusted minimum net worthlof$llion. Not complying with this
minimum net worth requirement may result in peraltsuch as the revocation of the Bank’s licenssstee HUD insured mortgages, which
may have a material adverse effect on the Compdimgacial condition and results of operations. Bamk's adjusted net worth was $201
million as of December 31, 2013, and $205.54 milkks of December 31, 2012, which significantly exdseminimum net worth requiremet

Note 22. Parent Company Financial Information
The following table presents condensed financi@rimation for the parent company as of the datesimthe periods indicated:

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

(Amounts in thousand 2013 2012
Assets
Cash and due from ban $ 10,87 $ 12,47¢
Securities available for sa 13,33t 11,05
Investment in subsidiai 310,74 343,91:
Other asset 9,69i 4,541
Total asset $ 344,65: $ 371,98
Liabilities
Other borrowing: $ 582 $ 194
Subordinated det 15,46+ 15,46¢
Total liabilities 16,04¢ 15,65¢
Stockholders Equity
Preferred stoc 15,25: 17,42:
Common stocl 20,49: 20,34:
Additional paic-in capital 215,66: 213,82
Retained earning 124,53! 111,62
Treasury stocl (33,88Y) (6,45%)
Accumulated other comprehensive I (13,449 (439
Total stockholder equity 328,60t 356,32.
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 344,65. $ 371,98:
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(Amounts in thousand

Cash dividends received from subsidiary bank
Other income

Operating expens

Income tax expens

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidii
Net income

Dividends on preferred stox

Net income available to common shareholc

(Amounts in thousand
Operating activities
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating

activities:
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidi
Gain on sale of securitit
(Increase) decrease in other as
Increase (decrease) in other liabilit
(Increase) decrease in other operating activ
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi
Investing activities
Proceeds from sales of securities avail-for-sale
Payments to acquire securities avail-for-sale
Investment in subsidiar
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of preferred s
Proceeds from stock options exerci:
Payments for repurchase of treasury s
Payments for repurchase of warrs
Payments of common dividen
Payments of preferred dividen
Proceeds from other financing activiti
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
Cash and cash equivalents at end of"
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CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
$ 43,90( $ 8,10t $ —
72€ 44k 2,220
(1,647) (1,31¢) (1,796
36¢ (55) (150)
(20,039 21,40( 19,74"
23,31: 28,57, 20,02¢
1,02¢ 1,05¢ 703
$ 22,28t¢ $ 27,51¢ $ 19,32¢
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended Decembet, 3
2013 2012 2011
$ 23,31 $ 28,571 $ 20,02¢
20,03! (21,400 (19,74)
(199) (49) (139)
(5,292 12 (1,529
332 58¢ (5,74%)
(10¢) (58) 77€
38,08¢ 7,781 (6,359
3,38( 2,151 2,63¢€
(5,000) (5,137 (6)
- = - = __ (670
(1,620 (2,986) 2,06(
— — 18,80:
78¢ 144 32
(28,427) (1,017 (904)
— — (30)
(9,476 (8,162) (7,155
(992) (1,120 (55¢)
28 137 10C
(38,079 (10,019 10,28"
(1,609 (5,219 5,98¢
12,47¢ 17,69 11,70¢
$ 10,87: $ 12,47 $ 17,69
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Note 23. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following table presents selected financiahdat quarter for the periods indicated:

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per shate
Interest income

Interest expens

Net interest incom

Provision for loan losse

Net interest income after provision for loan los
Other income

Net gain (loss) on sale of securit

Other expense

Income before income tax

Income tax

Net income

Dividends on preferred stox

Net income available to common shareholt

Basic earnings per common sh

Diluted earnings per common shi
Dividend per common sha

Weighted average basic shares outstan
Weighted average diluted shares outstan

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per steteg
Interest income

Interest expens

Net interest incom

Provision for loan losse

Net interest income after provision for loan los
Other income

Net gain (loss) on sale of securit

Other expense

Income before income tax

Income tax

Net income

Dividends on preferred stox

Net income available to common shareholc

Basic earnings per common sh

Diluted earnings per common shi
Dividend per common sha

Weighted average basic shares outstan
Weighted average diluted shares outstan

Year Ended December 31, 201

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
$ 28,00¢ $ 27,41 $ 26,69¢ $ 27,36¢
4,642 4,55( 4,37( 4,272
23,36: 22,86: 22,32¢ 23,09:
1,142 3,20¢ 2,33¢ 1,52¢
22,22( 19,65 19,99: 21,56¢
7,742 6,73¢ 8,15( 6,74¢
117 117 (39 20¢
19,54« 18,53 20,15 20,75¢
10,53 7,972 7,951 7,76(C
3,39¢ 2,531 2,53¢ 2,43¢
7,141 5,43¢ 5,41z 5,32
25€ 258 261 252
$ 6,88: $ 5,182 $ 5,151 $ 5,07z
$ 0.34 $ 0.2¢ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.27
0.34 0.2¢ 0.2¢ 0.2¢
0.1z 0.1z 0.1z 0.1z
20,032,69 19,997,99 20,008,86 19,136,31
21,258,49 21,205,07 21,123,78 20,233,73
Year Ended December 31, 201
First Second Third Fourth
__Quarter __Quarter __Quarter __Quarter
$ 22,68: $ 24,18: $ 31,53¢ $ 31,25¢
4,708 4,69¢ 5,077 5,12(
17,97, 19,48 26,45¢ 26,13¢
922 1,62( 1,91¢ 1,22(
17,05¢ 17,86¢ 24,54: 24,91¢
7,94 8,35- 10,93 9,00(
51 9) 22¢ 217
16,19: 20,13 20,32¢ 21,73
8,85 6,07t 15,38: 12,39¢
2,852 1,997 5,322 3,951
6,001 4,07¢ 10,05¢ 8,43¢
283 28¢ 22C 272
$ 5,71¢ $ 3,79¢ $ 9,83¢ $ 8,161
$ 0.3z $ 0.2C $ 0.4¢ $ 0.41
0.31 0.21 0.47 0.4C
0.1C 0.11 0.11 0.11
17,849,37 18,561,71 20,013,26 20,063,87
19,158,17 19,872,10 21,329,61 21,314,02
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- Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm -

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of First Community Bancshares, Inc. agiSiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related cdasetl statements of operations, comprehensive imconanges in stockholders’ equity
and cash flows for each of the years in the thes-period ended December 31, 2013. These contlifiaancial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Oupoasibility is to express an opinion on these foiahstatements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &andbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and diss in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptexiused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegrferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of First
Community Bancshares, Inc. and its Subsidiariesf &cember 31, 2013 and 2012, and the resultsedf doperations and their cash flows
each of the years in the three-year period endegmber 31, 2013 in conformity with accounting pifites generally accepted in the United
States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2013, based on criteria establishédt@mnal Control-Integrated Framework
(1992)issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regated March 11, 2014
expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectigsra the Company’s internal control over financégorting.

/sl Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina
March 11, 2014
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- Managements Assessment of Internal Control over Financial Regrting -

First Community Bancshares, Inc. (the “Companyeisponsible for the preparation, integrity, and ffaesentation of the consolidated
financial statements included in this Annual Report~orm 10-K. The consolidated financial stateraemtd notes included in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K have been prepared in confgrmith U.S. generally accepted accounting pringead necessarily include some
amounts that are based on management’s best estianad judgments.

We, as management of the Company, are responsibéstablishing and maintaining effective intercahtrol over financial reporting that is
designed to produce reliable financial statementohformity with U.S. generally accepted accouptininciples. The system of internal
control over financial reporting as it relateshe financial statements is evaluated for effectéasrby management and tested for reliability.
Any system of internal control, no matter how wadkigned, has inherent limitations, including thegbility that a control can be
circumvented or overridden and misstatements deertw or fraud may occur and not be detected. Alscause of changes in conditions,
internal control effectiveness may vary over titdecordingly, even an effective system of internahtrol will provide only reasonable
assurance with respect to financial statement pagipa.

Management conducted an assessment of the effeetis@f the Company’s internal control over finahoéporting based on the framework
in thelnternal Control — Integrated Framework (1998sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission.
Based on this assessment, management concludétsthgdtem of internal control over financial reforg was effective as of December 31,
2013.

Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP, independent registerddigpaccounting firm, has issued an attestatiomriepn the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2013. The Report of Indeperidegistered Public Accounting Firm,
which expresses an unqualified opinion on the &ffeness of the Company'’s internal control oveafioial reporting as of December 31,
2013, appears hereafter in Iltem 8 of this Annugdd®eon Form 10-K.

Dated this 11" day of March, 2014.

/s/ William P. Stafford, Il /s/ David D. Brown
William P. Stafford, Il David D. Brown
Chief Executive Office Chief Financial Office
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- Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm -

To the Audit Committee of the Board of Directorsldhe Stockholders
First Community Bancshares, Inc.

We have audited First Community Bancshares, Ind.Subsidiaries (the “Company”) internal control pfieancial reporting as of December
31, 2013, based on criteria establishethtarnal Control-Integrated Framework (1998sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organiza
of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s managemmeasponsible for maintaining effective internahtrol over financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness ofriateontrol over financial reporting, includedtive accompanying Management'’s
Assessment of Internal Control over Financial Répgr Our responsibility is to express an opiniantbe Company'’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8dé/nited States). Those stande
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenalteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordw@r financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, and testing aald&ing the design and operating effectivenesstefnal control based on the assessed risk.
Our audit also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circunestave believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaaesuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over firgad reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshef assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financakestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeipnrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (Bjige reasonable assurance regarding preventiomely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygseds that could have a material effect on then@iiz statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, First Community Bancshares, Incinteined, in all material respects, effective intdrcontrol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2013, based on criteria establishbdemal Control-Integrated Framework (1998sued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the consolidated
financial statements of First Community Bancshalres,as of and for the year ended December 313,281d our report, dated March 11,
2014 expressed an unqualified opinion on thosedtmiaged financial statements.

/sl Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina
March 11, 2014

136



Table of Contents

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Aounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedu

In connection with this report, we conducted aneaton, under the supervision and with the pgrtition of management, including our
Chief Executive Officer (“CEQO”) and Chief Financiafficer (“CFQ”), of the effectiveness of our dieslrre controls and procedures pursuant
to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “ExgeaAct”) Rule 13at5(b). Based upon that evaluation, the CEO and €#t@luded that,

of December 31, 2013, our disclosure controls andquures were effective.

Disclosure controls and procedures are our Comgasoyitrols and other procedures that are designedsure that information we are
required to disclose in the reports we file or sithmder the Exchange Act is recorded, processednsarized, and reported within the time
periods specified in the SEC’s rules and formscIdsure controls and procedures include, withauitéition, controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information we are requoetisclose in the reports that we file or submnitler the Exchange Act is accumulated and
communicated to management, including the CEO &#d,@s appropriate, to allow timely decisions rdgay required disclosure.

Management, including the CEO and CFO, does nataxhat our disclosure controls and internal adatwill prevent all errors and all
fraud. A control system, no matter how well coneéiand operated, can provide only reasonable brsatiate, assurance that the objective
the control system are met. Because of the inhd&meitations in all control systems, no evaluatwfcontrols can provide absolute assurance
that all control issues and instances of fraudnif, within our Company have been detected. Thdsrént limitations include the realities
that judgments in decision making can be faulty #mat breakdowns can occur because of simple ernmistake. Additionally, controls can
be circumvented by the individual acts of some @esscollusion of two or more people, or managefevierride of the controls.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repogin

We assess the adequacy of our internal controlfanencial reporting quarterly and enhance our astin response to internal control
assessments and internal and external audit anthtegy recommendations. There were no changeariimgernal control over financial
reporting during the quarter ended December 313 20t materially affected, or is reasonably kkil materially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting.

Managemer's Report on Internal Controls over Financial Retiog

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness ohtaunal control over financial reporting as ofd@enber 31, 2013, is included in Item 8,
“Management’s Assessment of Internal Control oveafcial Reporting,” of this report. Our indepentauaditors’ report on management’s
assessment of internal controls over financial mépg as of December 31, 2013, is included in I&rfReport of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm,” of this report.

Item 9B. Other Information.
None.
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PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace.

The information required in Item 10 of this repgrincorporated by reference to our Proxy Staterfmrthe Annual Meeting of Stockholders
to be held on April 29, 2014 (“2014 Annual MeetipgThe Proxy Statement will be filed with the SE@pto the 2014 Annual Meeting. The
following list provides the heading under which tlequired information is incorporated by refereiceur Proxy Statement for the 2014
Annual Meeting:

» Information regarding directors and executive @fficis included in “Proposal 1: Election of Dirast® “Continuing Incumbent
Directors” “Non-Director Executive Officer” “Nominees for the Class of 20” and“Corporate Governan(”

» Information regarding compliance with Section 16{)he Exchange Act is included in “Section 1@aheficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance”

» Information regarding the Audit Committee and thed& Committee Financial Expert is includec*Board Committee”

We adopted a Standards of Conduct that appliel & aur directors and employees, including oungipal executive officer, principal
financial officer, principal accounting officer oontroller, or persons performing similar functioAscopy of our Standards of Conduct is
available on our website, www.fcbinc.com. Thereehbeen no waivers of the Standards of Conductectkat any of the above officers.

Since the disclosure presented in our Proxy Statefited with the SEC on March 13, 2013, for thenAial Meeting of Stockholders held in
2013, no material changes have been made to tisegures by which stockholders may recommend nomiteeeur Company’s Board of
Directors.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC .

W. C. Blankenship, Jr. I. Norris Kantor

Retired Agent, State Farm Insurance Of Counsel, Katz, Kantor, Stonestreet & Bucknetpiteys at
Law; Board of Governors, Bluefield State College

Samuel L. Elmore

Retired Senior Vice President — Commercial LendorgRaleigh William P. Stafford

County, W. Va. Market, and Past Chief Credit Offjdéirst President, Princeton Machinery Service, Inc.

Community Bank; Past Executive Vice President,zEiis

Southern Bank, Inc.; Past President and Chief GipesaOfficer, William P. Stafford, II

Beckley National Bank; Past Vice President, KeytGgan Chief Executive Officer, First Community Bancshares.;
Bancshares; Director, Raleigh County Commissiogimg Attorney at Law, Brewster, Morhous, Cameron, Carithore,

Kersey & Stafford, PLLC
Franklin P. Hall
Businessman; Chairman, Hall & Hall Family Law Firfgrmer
Commissioner, Virginia Department of Alcoholic Bezge
Control; Former Chairman, The CommonWealth Bankntey
Minority Leader, Virginia House of Delegates; Corsgibner,
Richmond Redevelopment & Housing Authority

Richard S. Johnson

Chairman, President, and CEO, The Wilton Compatmé&gctor
and Past Chairman, Economic Development Authofithe City
of Richmond; Trustee Emeritus, University of Richrdc
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC .

William P. Stafford, Il
Chief Executive Office

Gary R. Mills
Presiden

David D. Brown
Chief Financial Office

Robert L. Schumacher
General Counst

E. Stephen Lilly
Chief Operating Office

Robert L. Buzzo
Vice President and Secrete

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, FIRST COMMUNITY BANK

James H. Atkinson, Jr.
Retired Chief Executive Officer, Peoples Bank ofgitiia

W. C. Blankenship, Jr.
Retired Agent, State Farm Insurance

Juanita G. Bryan
Homemaker

Robert L. Buzzo
Vice President and Secretary, First Community Bhass, Inc.;
President Emeritus, First Community Bank

C. William Davis
Attorney at Law, Richardson & Davis

Samuel L. EImore

Retired Senior Vice President — Commercial LendordRaleigh
County, W.Va. Market, and Past Chief Credit Offjdeéirst
Community Bank; Past Executive Vice President,zEiis
Southern Bank, Inc.; Past President and Chief GipesaOfficer,
Beckley National Bank; Past Vice President, KeytGgan
Bancshares; Director, Raleigh County Commissio#Agimg

T. Vernon Foster

President of J. La’Verne Print Communications; Eastctor,
TriStone Community Bank; Executive Director: MBAdgrams,
Career Management & Public Relations, University atfisville,
College of Business

Franklin P. Hall

Businessman; Chairman, Hall & Hall Family Law Firfgrmer
Commissioner, Virginia Department of Alcoholic Bezge
Control; Former Chairman, The CommonWealth Bankntey
Minority Leader, Virginia House of Delegates; Corsgibner,
Richmond Redevelopment & Housing Authot
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Richard S. Johnson

Chairman, President, and CEO, The Wilton Compatmé&gctor
and Past Chairman, Economic Development Authofithe City
of Richmond; Trustee Emeritus, University of Richrdo

I. Norris Kantor
Of Counsel, Katz, Kantor, Stonestreet & Bucknetphiteys at
Law; Board of Governors, Bluefield State College

Gary R. Mills
President, First Community Bancshares, Inc.; Chiefcutive
Officer, First Community Bank

Martyn A. Pell
President, First Community Bank

William P. Stafford
President, Princeton Machinery Service, Inc.

William P. Stafford, Il

Chief Executive Officer, First Community Bancshares.;
Attorney at Law, Brewster, Morhous, Cameron, Carlsthore,
Kersey & Stafford, PLLC

Frank C. Tinder
President, Tinder Enterprises, Inc. and Tinco Lrep€lorporation;
Realtor, Premier Realty
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Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information regarding executive compensation i®iporated by reference to our Proxy Statementi®r2014 Annual Meeting under the
headings “Compensation Discussion and Analysis”‘&uard Committees.”

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andVlanagement and Related Stockholder Matters

The following table presents information regardomgnpensation plans under which our equity secsrére authorized for issuance as of
December 31, 2013:

Number of
securities
to be issuel
upon
exercise of Weighted-average
outstanding

Number of securities
remaining available
for future issuance

exercise price of under equity
options, outstanding compensation plans
warrants options, warrants (excluding securities
Plan category and rights and rights reflected in column (a)
CY (b) (©
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holde
apP y V 68,49¢ $ 21.21 521,28:®
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holde
app y y 306,33: $ 20.3: —
Total 374,82¢ 521,28

(1) Includes the 2012 Omnibus Equity Compensation Bfeh2004 Omnibus Stock Option Pl

(2) Includes the 2001 Directors’ Option Plan, 1838ck Option Plan, and other plans related to lpasiness combinations. These plans are
generally expired or not available to issue neviomst warrants, or right

(3) Shares available for future issuance were unde2@i@ Omnibus Equity Compensation Pl

Additional information regarding security ownerslifocertain beneficial owners and management isrparated by reference to our Proxy
Statement for the 2014 Annual Meeting under thelimggInformation on Stock Ownership.”

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence.

Information regarding certain relationships anated transactions and director independence ispocated by reference to our Proxy
Statement for the 2014 Annual Meeting under thelimegs “Related Person Transactions” and “CorpoBdeernance.”

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information regarding principal accounting fees andvices is incorporated by reference to our P@&tagement for the 2014 Annual Meeting
under the heading “Independent Registered Publeoieting Firm.”
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Item 15.

PART IV

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(@) Documents Filed as a Part of this Rep

(1)

The following financial statements are incorporatgdeference from Item 8 of this Repc

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&012012.

Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years#mecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomss{Lfor the Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012@bd.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhol&psity for the Years Ended December 31, 2013, 284a 2011.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Yeaded December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfiimp on Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) All schedules for which provision is made ie tpplicable accounting regulation of the SEC an&ted because they are not
applicable or the required information is includedhe consolidated financial statements or relaiates theretc
(b) Exhibits
Exhibit
_No. Exhibit
3(i) Articles of Incorporation of First Community Baneshks, Inc., as amended
3(ii) Amended and Restated Bylaws of First Community Bhares, Inc. (2
4.1 Specimen stock certificate of First Community Bdraes, Inc. (3
4.2 Indenture Agreement dated September 25, 200:
4.3 Declaration of Trust of FCBI Capital Trust datecb®enber 25, 2003, as amended and restate
4.4 Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement datec®@épt 25, 2003. (¢
4.5 Certificate of Designation of 6.00% Series A Noncletive Convertible Preferred Stock. |
10.1** First Community Bancshares, Inc. 1999 Stock Opfigreement (8) and Plan. (
10.1.1* First Community Bancshares, Inc. 1999 Stock OpEitan, Amendment One. (1
10.2** First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2001 Nonqualifdactor Stock Option Plan. (1.
10.3* Employment Agreement between First Community Baaes) Inc. and John M. Mendez dated December 18, 23
amended and restated (21) and Waiver Agreement
10.4** First Community Bancshares, Inc. and Affiliates &xé/e Retention Plan (12), Amendment #1 (13), Antendment #2. (32
10.5** First Community Bancshares, Inc. Split Dollar Péard Agreement. (1<
10.6** First Community Bancshares, Inc. Supplemental BarscRetirement Plan, as amended and restated
10.7** First Community Bancshares, Inc. Wrap Plan, as aegand restated. (1
10.9** (F107r;n of Indemnification Agreement between First @mmity Bancshares, Inc., its Directors, and Ceraiacutive Officers.
10.10* Form of Indemnification Agreement between First @amity Bank, its Directors, and Certain Executivii€@rs. (17)
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Exhibit
_No.

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14**

10.15*

10.16**

10.17*
10.18**
10.19**
10.21*
10.22**

10.23**

11
12*
21*
23.1*
31.1*
31.2*
32*

101.INS***

101.SCH***
101.CAL***
101.LAB***
101.PRE***
101.DEF***

Exhibit
First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2004 Omnibus S@gtion Plan (18) and Stock Award Agreement. |
First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2012 Omnibus EgqDdmpensation Plan (3
First Community Bancshares, Inc. Directors Defe@etnpensation Plan, as amended and restatec
Employment Agreement between First Community Baacst) Inc. and David D. Brown dated December 1682(22)

Employment Agreement between First Community Baaes) Inc. and Robert L. Buzzo dated DecemberQ@,2as
amended and restated. (:

Employment Agreement between First Community Baass) Inc. and E. Stephen Lilly dated DecembeR68, as
amended and restated. (:

Employment Agreement between First Community Bamk @ary R. Mills dated December 16, 2008. (
Employment Agreement between First Community Bamk Martyn A. Pell dated December 16, 2008. |
Employment Agreement between First Community Bamk Robert L. Schumacher dated December 16, 2008
Employment Agreement between First Community Bamk ark R. Evans dated July 31, 2009. (

Form of Restricted Stock Grant Agreement undert Eisnmunity Bancshares, Inc. 2012 Omnibus Equitpn@ensation
Plan. (33)

Separation Agreement and Release between First QaitynBancshares, Inc. and John M. Mendez datedusiu@g,
2013. (34)

Statement Regarding Computation of Earnings pereSiia0)
Statement Regarding Computation of Rat

Subsidiaries of the Registre

Consent of Independent Public Accounting F

Rule 13+14(a)/15¢14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Office
Rule 13+14(a)/15¢14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Office

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chigfhancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section(,3% adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Documel

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntrié
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documel
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doeni#

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhér
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* Incorporated herewitt

**  |ndicates a management contract or compensation

***  Submitted electronically herewit

#  Attached as Exhibit 101 to the Annual Report omi-10K for the year ended December 31, 2013, of Firsh@anity Bancshares, In
are the following documents formatted in XBRL (edXd&/e Business Reporting Language): (i) Consoldi&alance Sheets as of
December 31, 2013, and 2012; (ii) ConsolidatedeBtants of Income for the years ended December(@B,2012, and 2011;
(iii) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive imedor the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012@ht} (iv) Consolidated
Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the yeamdeeihDecember 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011; (v) CorselidStatements of Cash Flows
for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, aht 20d (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statets.

(1) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3(i)tbé Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the periodezhJune 30, 2010, filed on
August 16, 201C

(2) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 of the@nt Report on Form-K dated September 24, 2013, filed on Septembe?2@83.

(3) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1té Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period enBedember 31, 2002, filed on
March 25, 2003, amended on March 31, 2(

(4) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.2 v Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the periodesh8eptember 30, 2003, filed on
November 10, 200:

(5) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.3l Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the periodesh8eptember 30, 2003, filed on
November 10, 200:

(6) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.4teé Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the periodegh8eptember 30, 2003, filed on
November 10, 200:

(7) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 of the@nt Report on Form-K dated May 20, 2011, filed on May 23, 20

(8) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.5he Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the periodezhJune 30, 2002, filed on
August 14, 2002

(9) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1h# Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period enBedember 31, 1999, filed on
March 30, 2000, amended on April 13, 20

(10) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4fthe Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the pegodled March 31, 2004, filed on
May 7, 2004

(11) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4tef Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the perindexl June 30, 2002, filed on
August 14, 200z

(12) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of @@rrent Report on Forn-K dated December 30, 2008, filed on January 5, 2

(13) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 of @@rent Report on Forn-K dated December 16, 2010, filed on December 170z

(14) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.8hef Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ehBecember 31, 1999, filed on
March 30, 2000, amended on April 13, 20

(15) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of @@rent Report on Forn-K dated December 16, 2010, filed on December 1702

(16) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.1 of @@rrent Report on Forn-K dated August 22, 2006, filed on August 23, 2(

(17) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.8 &xhibit 10.2 of the Current Report on Form 8-KedbFebruary 25, 2014, filed on
March 3, 2014

(18) Incorporated by reference from Annex B to2084 First Community Bancshares, Inc. DefinitivexBr Statement filed on March 15,
2004.
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(19) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.£3h@ Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the peroadied June 30, 2004, filed on
August 6, 2004

(20) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.2 of @@rent Report on Forn-K dated August 22, 2006, filed on August 23, 2(

(21) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of @@rent Report on Forn-K dated and filed on December 16, 20

(22) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 of @@rent Report on Forn-K dated and filed on December 16, 20

(23) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of @@rent Report on Forn-K dated and filed on July 6, 20C

(24) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 of @@rrent Report on Forn-K dated and filed on July 6, 20C

(25) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 of @&rent Report on Forn-K dated and filed on July 6, 20C

(26) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4 of @@rent Report on Forn-K dated and filed on July 6, 20C

(27) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.5 of @@rent Report on Forn-K dated and filed on July 6, 20C

(28) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 of then@nt Report on Form-K dated April 2, 2009, filed on April 3, 200

(29) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 of @@rent Report on Forn-K dated December 16, 2010, filed on December 1¥0Z

(30) Incorporated by reference from Note 1 of the NaveSondensed Consolidated Financial Statementsded herein

(31) Incorporated by reference from the 2012 First ComitguBancshares, Inc. Definitive Proxy Statemeletdfion March 7, 201:

(32) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of @@rent Report on Forn-K dated February 21, 2013, filed on February 29,3

(33) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.1 of @&rent Report on Forn-K dated and filed May 28, 201

(34) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.1 of @@rent Report on Forn-K/A dated August 12, 2013, filed on September 3,2
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized on the 1L day of March, 2014.

First Community Bancshares, Inc.

(Registrant)
By: /s/ William P. Stafford, Il By: /s/ David D. Brown
William P. Stafford, Il David D. Brown
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Executive Officer) (Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accourdi

Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ William P. Stafford, Il Director and Chief Executive Officer March 11, 2014
William P. Stafford, Il
/s/ David D. Brown Chief Financial Officer March 11, 2014
David D. Brown
/s W.C. Blankenship, Jr. Director March 11, 2014
W.C. Blankenship, J
/s/ Samuel L. EImore Director March 11, 2014
Samuel L. Elmort
/s/ Franklin P. Hall Director March 11, 2014
Franklin P. Hall
/s/ Richard S. Johnson Director March 11, 2014

Richard S. Johnsc
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Exhibit 12

STATEMENT REGARDING COMPUTATION OF RATIOS

Cash Dividends Per Share
Book Value Per Share

Return on Average Asse
Return on Average Sharehold Equity
Efficiency Ratio (GAAP)

Efficiency Ratio (Non-GAAP)

Loans to Deposit

Dividend Payout

Average Shareholde Equity to Average Asse
Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital Ratio

Total Risk-Based Capital Ratio

Leverage Rati
Net Charg-offs to Average Loan

Nonperforming Loans to Total Loa

Nonperforming Assets to Total Loans and OR

Allowance for Loan Losses to Total Loans

Allowance for Loan Losses to Nonperforming Assets

Allowance for Loan Losses to Nonperforming Loans

Net Interest Margit

Dividends Paid to Common Shareholders/Average Cammo
Shares Outstandir

Total Shareholders’ Equity/As-Converted Common 8har
Outstanding

Net Income/Average Asse
Net Income/Average Sharehold Equity

Noninterest Expense/(Net Interest Income Plus Nerést
Income)

See schedule under Item 7 — Management’s Discuasidn
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Giems

Average Net Loans/Average Deposits Outstan:

Dividends Declared to Common Shareholders/Net Ircom
Available to Common Shareholde

Average Shareholde Equity/Average Assel

(Shareholders’ Equity Plus Qualifying Subordinaizbt) —
Intangible Assets —Securities Market-to-market Gdteserve
(Tier 1 Capital)/ Risk Adjusted Asse

Tier 1 Capital Plus Allowance for Loan Losses/Réskusted
Assets

Tier 1 Capital/Average Asse
(Gross Charc-offs Less Recoveries)/Average Net Loi

(Nonaccrual Loans, Loans Past Due 90 Days or QreRites
Unseasoned Restructured Loans)/Gross Loans Neteditded
Interest

(Nonaccrual Loans, Loans Past Due 90 Days or Gteate
Unseasoned Restructured Loans, Plus OREO)/GrossLet
of Unearned Interest plus ORE

Allowance for Loan Losses/(Gross Loans Net of Unedr
Interest)

Allowance for Loan Losses/(Nonaccrual Loans, Lodast Dug¢
90 Days or Greater, Unseasoned Restructured LBuns,
OREO)

Allowance for Loan Losses/(Nonaccrual Loans plus
Nonperforming Loans

Tax Equivalent Net Interest Income/Average Earmisgets



Title
First Community Banl|
Greenpoint Insurance Group, It

First Community Wealth Management, |i

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

State of Incorporation

Virginia
North Caroling

West Virginia

Exhibit 21



Exhibit 23.1

-Consent of Independent Reqistered Public Accountingirm -

To the Audit Committee of the Board of Directorsldahe Stockholders
First Community Bancshares, Inc.

We consent to the incorporation by reference irrégstration statements pertaining to the 2013f&egistration (Form S-3, No. 333-
187818); 2012 Omnibus Equity Compensation PlanniF8#8, No. 333-183057); 2011 Convertible PrefeBadres (Form S-3, No. 333-
175262); the 2004 Omnibus Stock Option Plan (Fofé) Bo. 333-120376); the 2001 Directors Stock Qp#dan (Form S-8, No. 333-
75222); the 1999 Stock Option Plan (Form S-8, 3B33B); the Employee Stock Ownership and Savings Harm S-8, No. 3383865); an
the TriStone Community Bank Employee and DirectmcE Option Plans (Form S-8, No. 333-161473) o$tF@ommunity Bancshares, Inc.
and Subsidiaries (the “Company”) of our reporteddilarch 11, 2014, with respect to the consolidéitethcial statements of the Company
and the effectiveness of internal control overiiitial reporting, which reports appear in the ConypmB013 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

/sl Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina
March 11, 2014



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, William P. Stafford, Il, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of First Community Bancshares, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dondtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our

supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over financigloiting or caused such internal control over finan@porting to be designed under

our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrattisslosure controls and procedures and presentéisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affectedis reasonably likely to materially affect, ttegistrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; an

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial

reporting, to the registre’s auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cordvel financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invawveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 11, 2014

/s/ William P. Stafford, Il

William P. Stafford, Il
Chief Executive Office



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, David D. Brown, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of First Community Bancshares, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dondtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over financigloiting or caused such internal control over finan@porting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrattisslosure controls and procedures and presentéisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affectedis reasonably likely to materially affect, ttegistrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; an

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial

reporting, to the registre’s auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cordvel financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invawveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 11, 2014

/s/ David D. Brown

David D. Brown
Chief Financial Office



Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of First Cormmity Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 1@Kthe period ended
December 31, 2013, as filed with the SecuritiesBxchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Rgptine undersigned hereby certify
the officers’ best knowledge and belief, pursuart& U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiioBe906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that:

(a) the Report fully complies with the requiremesit$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExajeAct of 1934, as amended; and

(b) the information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Dated this 11" day of March, 2014.
First Community Bancshares, Ir

/s/ William P. Stafford, Il

William P. Stafford, Il
Chief Executive Office

/s/ David D. Brown

David D. Brown
Chief Financial Office




